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Gentlemen:

Pursuant to Section 2, Article lX-D of the Philippine Constitution and Section 43 of
Presidential Decree No. 1445, otherwise known as the Government Auditing Code of the
Philippines, we transmit herewith our report on the results of the audit of the accounts and

transactions of the Social Housing Finance Gorporation (SHFC) for the years ended
December 31 , 2019 and 2018.

The report consists of the lndependent Auditor's Report, the Audited Financial Statements of

the SHFC, the Observations and Recommendations, and the status of lmplementation of
Prior Years' Audit Recommendations.

The Auditor expressed a qualified opinion on the fairness of presentation of the financial

statements of the sHFC for the years ended Decembet 31,2019 and 2018 because the

Undistributed Collections (UC) under Other Payables account, totaling P394.076 million and

P430.326 million as at December 31 , 2019 and 20'18, respectively, remained un-posted to
the Mortgage Contracts Receivable (lrilCR) under Receivables account, due to the absence

of a policy on the proper and timely distribution of uc to the individual ledgers of the

member-borrowers (MBs) concerned. Thus, the other Payables and Receivables accounts

are both overstated by the same amounts.

lvloreover, the account balances of the lnvestments in Treasury Bills of P1 .604 billion in 2019

and P4.080 billion in 2018: Receivables, current ol P102.21'1 million in 2019 and P109.829

million in 2018; Other current Assets of P518.260 million in 201 9 and P352.802 million in

201 8; Receivables, non-current of P18.335 billion in 2019 and P16.667 billion in 2018; and

Other Non-Currenl Assets of P552.560 million in 2019 and P549.874 million in 2018 or a

total ot P21.112 billion and P21.759 billion as at December 31,2019 and 2018, respectively,

are misstated by undetermined amounts due to the absence of accounting policy that

harmonizes with the provisions of PFRS I Financial lnstruments, requiring classification,

measurement and impairment of these financial assets. Furthermore, expected credit losses

on these financial assets were not recognized through a loss allowance contrary to the
requirements of PFRS 9.
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For the above observations, we reiterated the prior years' audit recommendations that
It/anagement:

a Submit work breakdown schedule to post and allocate UC for CY 2019 by at least

50 percent of the UC by CY 2020; and
50 percent of the UC by CY 2021 .

b. Reconcile the variance between the SL and GL balances by at least

50 percent of the UC by CY 2020; and
50 percent of the UC by CY 2021 .

c. Require the lnformation and Communication Technology Department (ICTD) to
enhance the database to include the High Density Housing (HDH) Pro.iects and all
other accounts not yet in the database; and

d. Formulate written policy on the number of days within which to d istribute/allocate
payments made by lvlBs to avoid the accumulation of UC.

For absence of accounting policy on financial instruments

We recommended that Management formulate a policy on financial instruments that
harmonizes with the provisions of the PFRS 9 to fairly present the financial statements.

OTHER SIGNIFICANT AUDIT OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

'1. The present vaiue of expected payments to cover future retirement benefits of SHFC's
employees was not measured and recognized regularly in the books as benefit cost and
benefit obligation, contrary to PAS 19 on Employee Benefits and PAS 1 on Presentation
of Financial Statements, resulting in the understatement of both the expense and liability
accounts. This defeats the purpose of spreading out the expense over years in service
so that the benefit expense recognized in the financial statements does not differ
materially with the benefit expense at the reporting/availment period and whtch has
likewise an adverse impact on cash flows.

We recommended that Management

Recognize in the books the present value of expected payments to cover future
retirement benefits as expense and liability, pursuant to PAS 19;

b. Disclose in the Notes to Financial Statements pertinent and necessary information
required under paragraph 1 35 of PAS 19 on Employee benefits, and

c. Seek assistance from a qualified actuary services in the measurement of all material
poslemployment benefit obligations to carry out a detailed valuation of the obligation
before the end of the reporting period.

2. The money value of the accumulated unused leave credits amounting to P12.307 million
paid to SHFC employees was not recognized regularly in the books as expense and

accrued liabilities at the end of the reporting period when leave credits are earned,
contrary to PAS 19 on Employee Benefits, resulting in the overstatement of expenses in
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current year and the understatement of liabilities in prior years. This defeats the purpose
of recognizing the expected cost of employee benefits when services are rendered.

We recommended and Management agreed to regularly recognize in the books the
money value of accumulated unused leave credits at the end of the reporting period
when the employees render service, in accordance with PAS 19.

3. The Alyansa ng l/amamayan sa Valenzuela Multi-Purpose Cooperative (AMVA-MPC)
Project completed at a cost of P704.082 million under the HDH Program, is inhabited by
853 occupants, or 60 percentof the 1,440total [/Bs approved by the Department of the
lnterior and Local Government (DILG), without the necessary documentary requirements
prescribed under Corporale Circular No. 16-046 and Corporate HDH Circular No. 17-
013, thus, casting doubt on the eligibility of the occupants as the intended rightful
recipients of the Program. This would deprive the original MBs living along waterways
and danger zones of their right to own decenl and affordable housing units. failing to
achieve the ob.lectives of the Program.

a. Conduct a thorough validation of occupants in the HDH units as against the original
masterlist of MBs from DILG, and submit an Updated Masterlist of Beneficiaries to
the latter for Certification,

b. Require the Community Associations to submit to SHFC the required documents for
substitution of the actual occupants to avoid eviction and unauthorized substitution of
lhe original MBs; and

c. Abide strictly with the guidelines on substitutron of MBs under Corporate Circular
Nos. 16-046 and Corporate HDH Circular 17-013 to ensure that the recipients are the
rightful beneficiaries of the Program.

The other audit observations together wrth the recommended courses of action, which were
discussed by the Audit Team with concerned l\ilanagement officials and staff during the exit
conference conducted on March 09, 2020, are discussed in detail in Part ll of the report.

ln a letter of even date, we respectfully requested the SHFC's President to take appropriate
actions on the recommendations contained in the report and to inform this Commission of
the actions taken thereon within 60 days from the date of receipt hereof.

We acknowledge the support and cooperation that the Management extended to the Audit
Team, thus facilitating the completion of the report.

Very truly yours,

COMMISSION ON AUDIT

By

,-c- . l;q* P. ^tr*
MA. LISA P. INGUILLO
Drrector lV
Cluster Drrector
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We recommended that lvlanagement:



Copy furnished:

The President of the Republic of the Philippines
The Vice Presidenl
The Speaker ol the House of Representatives
The Chairperson - Senate Finance Committee
The Chairperson - Appropriations Committee
The Secretary of the Department of Budget and lvlanagement
The Governance Commission for Government-Owned and Controlled Corporations
The Presidential l\.4anagement Staff, Office of the President
The UP Law Center
The National Library
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

INTRODUCTION

The Social Housing Finance Corporation (SHFC) was organized and established on June
21, 2OO5 by virtue of Executive Order (EO) No. 272 which was signed and approved by the
President of the Republic of the Philippines on January 20,2OO4.

As a wholly-owned subsidiary of the National Home Mortgage Finance Corporation
(NHMFC), SHFC was created primarily as the lead agency in undertaking social housing
programs that will cater to the formal and informal sectors in the low-income bracket and in
taking charge of the development and administration of social housing program schemes,
particularly the Community Mortgage Program (CMP) and the Amortization Support and
Developmental Financing Programs of the Abot-Kaya Pabahay Fund (AKPF) as well as
other social housing programs of the NHMFC.

Presently, SHFC is merely a trustee of the transferred CMP funds and assets. The NHMFC
remains in control of the affairs of SHFC and it did not abandon its obligation to use its
ownership under a trust relationship having retained its full control over the subject funds.

The governing board of SHFC, which exercises its corporate powers and determines its
policies, is composed of the following: (a) the Chairman of Department of Human Settlement
and Urban Development (DHSUD); (b) the President of SHFC; (c) the Secretary of
Department of Budget and Management (DBM); (d) the Undersecretary of Department of
Finance (DOF); (e) the President of NHMFC; (0 the Undersecretary of Department of the
lnterior and Local Governrnent (DILG); and (g) four private sector representatives.

The President is assisted in the management of SHFC by the Executive Vice-President, two
Vice-Presidents, three Officer-in-Charge (OlC) Senior Vice-Presidents, 19 OIC Vice-
President, three Department Managers and 42 OIC Department Managers. The personnel
complement for calendar year 2019 is 577, with 230 regular and 347 agency-hired
employees. To date, the SHFC has 14 Satellite/Regional Offices located in B.acoor Cavite,
lsabela, Naga City, Puerto Pdncesa City in Palawan, Bacolod City, lloilo City, Cebu City,
Davao City, General Santos City, Cagayan de Oro City, Zamboanga City, Roxas City,
Calamba City and Tubigon Bohol.

The DBM-approved Corporate Operating Budget (COB) of the SHFC for CYs 2019 and
20 18 amounted to P3.303 billion and P2.761 billion, respectively, which were utilized as
follows:

2018

Particula rs Budget Utilization Budget
(ln Thousand Pesos)

Utilization

Personnel services
Maintenance and other operating expenses

307,678
401,331

84,308

288,103
373,058

52,809
2,560,302

281.959
350.285
129,110

2,000,000

261,235
267 ,722

57,060Capital outlay
Lo?!s oU!!ey 2,509 340 916 467

_ ,, , "., , , 3,302,65' 3,?W?.

The registered office of SIIFC is at Banco de Oro Plaza, 8737 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (ln Philippine Peso)

l. Comparative Financial Position

Particulars
2018

2019 (As restated) (
lncrease
Decrease)

Assets
Liabilities
Eq u ity

28,197,893,054
21,738,246,540

6,459,646,514

27,361,085,100
21 ,251 ,442,925

6,109,642,175

836,807,9s4
486,803,615
350,004,339

ll. Comparative Results of Operations

Particulars 2019 2014
lncrease
Decrease)

Total income
Total expenses
Profit before tax
lncome tax expense
Profit after tax
Subsidy from National Gov't

846,008,932
621 ,804,910

39,053,717
22,711 ,857

201,492,165
727 ,506,829
928,998,994

717,793,791
513,574,152
58,070,563
26,291,956

177 ,927 ,683
590,247,183
768,174,866

128,215,14',1
'108,230,758
(19,016,846)

(3,580,099)
23,564,482

137,259,646
160,824,128Comprehensive income

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

2019
Performance lndicators Accomplishments wtTargets

Social lmpact
lltitize Housing Subsidies for the Prcvision of

Shetter Secuity and lmprcved Housing
Quality thru HDHP, CMP and Marawi
Shelter Projecls

. 31,357 lSFs tor the 139 projects
provided with sheller secuitY

25.000 31,357 35./o

Number ot i SFs Assisted)
StakeholderS
Percentage of Satisfied Customers

. Number af Stakeholders who give
a rating of at least Satisfactory -
90%

900/0 SHFC received a very
Satisfactory rating of 93.36% in
its pre{akeout services in the
Customer Satisfaction SurveY
conducted by University of the
Philippines, National College of
Public Administration and
Governance

Financial
lmprove Collection Etliciency Rato

. Collection Efficiency Rating -
u%

/ncDase Net Operating lncome (Before Tax
and Subsidy)

. P120 million Net Revenue
lmprove Budgel Utlization Rate

. Total Disbursement of DBM
ADDroved COB - 90%-1 00%

Not less than 90% but
not more than 100%

84%

P140 million

72.034k

P175.779 million

10%

1jya

10%

lntemal Process
lmprove Suppott Systems for Effoctive and

E lic,ent Processes
. DICT - approved lssP
. lmplementation of Phase 1 of the

DICT - apprcved ISSP

ISSP Phase ll were fully
developed, optimized and fully
implemented to include ZEUS-
SHFC Portal. CAIS Kiosk,
lnventory Management System,
Voucher lnformation System,

(Forward)

100% implementation of
Phase ll of the ISSP

10%

EIIIE--

10%

99.710/o
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2019
Perlormancc lndicators Tarqets Accomplishments wt.

Oocument and Knowledge
Management System and
Proiecl Record Management

Leaming and Growth
Attain Quality Manage ent Cedification

. Attain /SO 9001:2015
Re-Cedificalion

Attain ISO:2015 Re-
Certiflcalion
(all or nothing)

SHFC ISO 9001:2015 Re
Certification from SOCOTEC
Certiflcation Philippines lnc for
ISO 9001 on December 19,2019

10%

5%Per@ntage of Employees Meeting
Requied Competencies
. 1OO% Compldtion ol a

Competency Bas€d Job
Desciption (Set comqetencY
Basoline by 2019)

100% Completion of all
Competency Based Job
Description
(Note: Set Competency
Baseline by 2019)
(all or nothing)

SHFC Completed all 211 out of
211 position titles it's
Competency Based on Job
description

SCOPE OF AUDIT

Our audits covered the examination, on a test basis, of the accounts and financial
transactions of the SHFC and the AKPF - Amortization Support and Developmental
Financing Program for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 and were conducted
in accordance with the lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit lnstitutions (lSSAl). Our
audit was aimed 10 determine the fairness of presentation of the financial statements in

accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and to assess the propriety of the
financial transactions and compliance of SHFG with government laws, rules and regulations.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S OPINION

We rendered a qualified opinion on the fairness of the presentation of the financial
statements of the SFHC for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 because the
Undistributed Collections (UC) under Other Payables Accounts, totaling P394.076 million
and P430.326 million as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, remained un-posted
to the Mortgage Contracts Receivable (MCR) under Receivables account, due to the

absence of a policy on the proper and timely distribution of UC to the individual ledgers of
the member-borrowers (h,4Bs) concerned. Thus, the Other Payables and Receivables
accounts are both overstated by the same amounts-

Moreover, the account balances of the lnvestments in Treasury Bills of P1.604 billion in
20'19 and P4.080 billion in 2018; Receivables, current of P1O2.211 million in 2019 and

P109.829 million in 20'18; Other Current Assets of P518.260 million in 2019 and P352.802
million in 2018; Receivables, non-current of P1 8.335 billion in 2019 and P16.667 billion in

2018; and Other Non-Current Assets of P552.560 million in 20t9 and P549.87 4 million in

2018 or a total of P21.112 billion and P21.759 billion as at December 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively, are nrisstated by undetermined amounts due to the absence of accounting
policy that harmonizes with the provisions of PFRS I Financial lnstruments, requiring
classification, measurement and impairment of these financial assets. Furthermore,
expected credit losses on these financial assets were not recognized through a loss

allowance contrary to the requirements of PFRS 9.



For the above observations, we reiterated the prior years' audit recommendations that
Management:

For Undistibuted Collections

a. Submit work breakdown schedule to post and allocate UC for CY 2019 by at least.

i. 50 percent ofthe uc by cY 2020; and
ii. 50 percent ofthe UC by CY 2021.

c. Require the lnformation and Communication Technology Department (ICTD) to
enhance the database to include the High Density Housing (HDH) Proiects and all

other accounts not yet in the database; and

d. Formulate written policy on the number of days within which to distribute/allocate
payments made by MBs to avoid the accumulation of UC.

For absence of accounting policy on financial instruments

we recommended that Management formulate a policy on financial instruments that
harmonLes with the provisions of the PFRS 9 to fairly present the financial statements.

OTHER SIGNIFICANT AUDIT OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

1. The present value of expected payments to cover future retirement benefits of SHFC's
employees was not measured and recognized regularly in the books as beneflt cost and

benefit obligation, contrary to PAS '19 on Employee Benefits andPAS 1 on Presentation
of Financial Statements, resulting in the understatement of both the expense and liability

accounts. This defeats the purpose of spreading out the expense over years in service
so that the benefit expense recognized in the financial statements does not differ
materially with the benefit expense at the reporting/availment period and which likewise

has a significant impact on cash flows.

We recommended that Management

a. Recognize in the books the present value of expected payments to cover future

retirement benefits as expense and liability, pursuant to PAS 19;

b. Disclose in the Notes to Financial Statements pertinent and necessary information
required under paragraph 135 of PAS 19 on Employee benefits; and

c. Seek assistance from a qualified actuary services in the measurement of all material
poslemployment benefit obligations to carry out a detailed valuation of the obligation
before the end of the reporting period.

i. 50 percent ofthe UC by CY 2020; and
ii. 50 percent of the UC by CY 2021.

b. Reconcile the variance between the SL and GL balances by at least:



2. The money value of the accumulated unused leave credits amounting to P12.307 million
paid to SHFC employees was not recognized regularly in the books as expense and
accrued liabilities at the end of the reporting period when leave credits are earned,
contrary to PAS 19 on Employee Benefits, resulting in the overstatement of expenses in

current year and the understatement of liabilities in prior years. This defeats the purpose
of recognizing the expected cost of employee benefits when services are rendered.

We recommended and Management agreed to regularly recognize in the books
money value of accumulated unused leave credits at the end of the reporting period
when the employees render service, in accordance with PAS 19.

3. The Alyansa ng Mamamayan sa Valenzuela Multi-Purpose Cooperative (AMVA-MPC)
Project completed at a cost of P704.O82 million under the HDHP, is inhabited by 853
occupants or 60 per cent of the 1,440 total Member Beneficiaries (MBs) approved by the
Department of the lnterior and Local Government (DILG), without the necessary
documentary requirements prescribed under Corporate Circular No. 16-046 and
Corporate HDH Circular No. 17-01 3, thus, casting doubt on the eligibility of the
occupants as the intended rightful recipients of the Program. This would deprive the
original MBs living along waterways and danger zones of their right to own decent and
affordable housing units, failing to achieve the objectives of the Program.

We recommended that Management

a. Conduct a thorough validation of occupants in the HDH units as against the original'
masterlist of MBs from DILG, and submit an Updated Masterlist of Beneficiaries to
the latter for Certification;

b. Require the Community Associations to submit to SHFC the required documents for
substitution of the actual occupants to avoid eviction and unauthorized substitution of
the original MBs; and

c. Abide stricliy with the guidelines on substitution of MBs under Corporate Circular
Nos.16-046 and Corporate Circular HDH No. 17-013 to ensure that the recipients
are the rightfully beneficiaries of the Program.

SUMMARY OF IiUDIT SUSPENSIONS, DISALLOWANCES, AND CHARGES AS AT
YEAR-END

Total disallowances amounting to P76,804,312 consist of ND No. 2019-01(2018) amounting
to P5,657,500, ND No. 2017-01-CIB-TD amounting to P71,030,479, and balance of ND

2016-01 (2014) and ND 2015-04 (2014) with outstanding balances of P116,333. No Notice

of Suspension and Notice of Charge was issued.

STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF PRIOR YEARS'AUDIT RECOMMENOATIONS

Out of 78 audit recommendations for both SHFC and AKPF embodied in the CY 2018
Annual Audit Repcrt, 34 were fully implemented, 33 were partially implemented, nine were
reconsidered, one was not implemented and one was issued wfth Notice of Disallowance.
Out of the 34 partially/not implemented audit recommendations, 24 were reiterated in Part ll
of this Report.
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LIST OF ACRONYMS

Definition
Amortized CostAC
Authori ofFAFAB
Avai{able For Sale SecuritiesAFS
Assets Held in TrustAHT

FundAbol Ka a PabahaAKPF
sa Valenzuelansa MAI

Abstract of CollectionsAOC
shment RAccom

Amortization S rt and Develo ental Financi Com nentASDFC
AVAWC ainst Women and Children

Construction and Site Develo
Anti Violence
Buildi entBCSD
Bureau of lntemal RevenueBIR

BODs
Ban ko Sentral Pit asBSP
Bureau of TreasuBTr
Bud et Utilization R uestBUR
Comrnun AssociationCA
Civil Aviation Auth of the Phil nesCAAP
Commun Association lnformation S stemCAIS
Collective mentn
Cooperative Devel ent Aut

CBA
CDA

Casir Flow GuaranCFG
Com rehensive and I rated Shelter Financin ActCISFA
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Community Mortgage Receipts
Commu ePMort

Collective N otiation reementCNA

Budn
Ca ital Outl
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Dai Collection ReDCR
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De rtment of Human Settlement & Urban Develo mentDHSUD
De rtment of the lnterior and Local GovemmentDILG
De rtment of Finance

rtment of Finance CoDe orate Affairs GrouDOF-CAG
artment of TranDOTr

Acronym

Area of Bataan

AR

Board of Directors

CMP
CMR

CO

DBM-PS

DOF
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General A riations Act
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Government Fares reement
Government Financial lnstitutionsGFI
General Led rGL
Greater Metro Manila AreaGMMA
Gumamela Nei orhood Housi t-GNHC
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GAD Plans and Bud

n

Govemment of the PhiliPpinesGoP
GPB

General Procurement and Poli BoardGPPB
Government Service lnsurance stemGSIS
Hi h Densit Hous;
Home Devel ment Mutual FundHDMF
Home GuaraHGC
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lR Rs
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LIR Loans I nstallment Receivable

LPA Lease Purchase A
LSISC dation and lntere6t
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IVCR a Contract Receivable

Corfraa Receivabl€ - Co M ramMCR-CMP Mo mmu

MMRB Micro Medium Rise Bui6in
MOA Memorandum of reement

MOOE Maintenance and Other rati enses

MRAAF Monih of Accountabi for Accountable Forms

Morl Redem on lnsurance

NCR National Ca P on
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National Government ncres

NGOs Non Govemment anizations

NHA National Housi Autho
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NS Notice of Suspension
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Phil, ne National Raih,vaPNR
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PS Personnel Services
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RCI
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stemSocial S

Transfer Certificate of TitleTCT
TRAIN Law
UC

Unified Home Lending Program
Undistributed Collections

UHLP
Vehicle Acquisition Assistance ProgramVAAP
Vice PresidentVP

SWA

Tax Reform Acceleration and lnclusion Law



PART I.

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Republic of the Philippines
COMMISSION ON AUDIT

Commonwealth Avenue, Quezon City

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Social Housing Finance Corporation
(SHFC), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the National Home Mortgage Finance
Corporation, which comprise the statements of {inancial position as at December 31,

2019 and 2018, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in

equity, statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to financial
statements including a summary of significant accounting policies.

ln our opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the Bases for Qualified
Oprnion section of our report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all

materiaf respects, the financial position of SHFC as at December 31, 2019 and 20'18,

and its financial performance and rts cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSS).

Bases for Qualified Opinion

The Undistributed Collections (UC) under Other Payables account pertain to payments

of member-borrowers which remained un-posted to the Mortgage Contracts Receivable
(MCR) under Receivables account. This overstated both the Other Payables and
Receivables accounts by P394.076 million and P430.326 million as at December 31,
2019 and 2018, respectively. Further, the account balances of the lnvestments in

Treasury Bills of P1.604 billion in 2019 and P4.080 billion in 2018; Receivables, current
of P102.211 million in 201 9 and P109.829 million in 20 18, Other Current Assets of
P518.260 million in 2019 and P352.8O2 million in 2018; Receivables, non-current of
P18.335 billion in 20 1 9 and P16.667 billion in 20 18; and Other Non-Current Assets of
P552.560 million in 2019 and P549.874 million in 2018 or atolal of P21.112 billion and
P21.759 billion as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, are misstated by

undetermined amounts due to the absence of accounting policy that harmonizes with the
provisions of PFRS I Financial lnstruments, requiring classification, measurement and
impairment of these financial assets. Furthermore, expected credit losses on these
financial assets were not recognized through a loss allowance contrary to the
requirements of PFRS 9.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Social Housing Finance Corporation
Banco de Oro Plaza
8737 Paseo de Roxas
Makati City



We conducted our audits in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Aud,lols Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial sfatements section of our
report. We are independent of the SHFC in accordance with the Code of Conduct and

Et'hical standards for commission on Audit officials and Employees (code of Ethics)

together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial

stitements in the Phitippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in

accordance with these requirements and the code of Ethics. we believe that the audit

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified opinion.

Responslbl/rtles of Management and Those Charged with Govemance for the Financial

Stafemenls

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial

statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or enor.

ln preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing sHFC's
abitity'to continre as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going

con"'ern and using the going Concem basis of accounting unlessmanagementeither
intends to liquidaG SHFCoT to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do

so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing sHFC's financial

reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibitities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error. and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable

assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordance with lssAls will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or

in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with lsSAls, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecling a material misstatement resulting

from fraud is higher than for one resulting from enor, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.



Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of SHFC's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
SHFC's ability to continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause SHFC to cease to continue as going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information in Note 32 to the financial
statements is presented for the purpose of filing with the Bureau of lnternal Revenue and
is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such supplementary information
is the responslbility oi the management of SHFC. The supplementary information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements. ln our opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the Bases
for Qualified Opinion section, the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

COMMISSIOI.. ON AtjDlT

-*-dll,o\,1
EMMA B. ALCOVE
Acting Supervising Au

June 26, 2020

r



Ko,Vqq,ng Konwidd sa Maginlutang Panrundwt
A

lrl
uu

FiLIP lN*O

Thc mansgrlrlent of SOCTAL HOUSNC FII{ANCIE CORPORATION is responsiblc for tln
preparation ir.rd fair prescntation of rhe financisl statcmcflts, including the schc{ulcs auachexl

ihcrcin, lor *e years cndcd Dcccmber 31, 2019 aod Dcccrnbcr 31,2018 in acmrdancc r,r.ith the

prcscribed tinancial rcporting framerNort indicatcd thcrein, ond for such intcrnrl conltol as

maragemcnr dctcrDincs is neessary to coablc thc preparation of fin$cial stai€menrs thar are

frse tom matcrial missucment, whethct duc ro fraud or error.

In preparing rlre iinarrial ilrlcmadts, managcmeol is rcsponsible for asscssing the

SOCLAL HOUSNG FINANCE CORPORATION's sbility o continue as a going concem'

disclosing. as applioblc, maners rclaled lo going concern and using thc 8oin8 qrncem basis of
accounting unlcss m:uragcment ei&cr inlcnds ro liquidare rhc SOCIAL HOUSING FNANCE
CORPORA'IION or to cease opcntions, or has no realigtic almnativc to do so.

Sc(v |t-dr! Fir- C,zEa-

STATEMEM OT MANAGEMtrNT'S RESPONSIBILITY
rOR NNANCIAL STATEMENTS

Thc Board of Ditetors or Truslccs is rcsporsible for ovctscchg tb€

SOCIAL HO{JSING TINANCE CORPORATION's financial rc'porting poccsr.

Thc Bosrd ol Dir,ectors or TnBtccs rcviews ard sppFovc5 thc finarrcial stEtcmcots, incltding
the schedr:les anachcd rhcrtin, aad submis thc samc to thc stoclholdcrs or mcrnbers.

ATTY. AIT}OLFO RICA B. (:AtsLIIiG
Yicc Chairpcrson oI ihe Board

'[he Commi.ssion on ]\udit, ttuough its authorieed Bpre$4nhtirc, ha3 exarnined thc Iinencisl

statcmqtrs r)l'the co:llpaDy p{rsusnt lD Secrion 2. Articlc [x-D of the Philippinc Corrstituribn

and Soction 2E of rhc Prcsidcntiaf Decrce No. 11145, othcr*ise knov.'n as thc Oovcmrnent

Auditing Co;lc of the Philippirns. Thc audit rlas conducted in accotd$ce nith lntemational

Stlndlrd$ ot Suprenre Ardit Institutions urd thc audirot in ils rcport to thc stockholdcrs or

membets, lras exprcsscd it-s rrpinion on the faimcss of prtsentation upon complction of such

audit-

'o{h.**RT]B
OIC - Scnior Vicc Prcsident

]Covenancc GroupC

rtBI.
OIC - \rlcc-Picsident
Finance and Complft llcrship Deparmcnt

t
I

Signed this 26'h &y of June 2020
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SOCIAL HOUSING FINA'TCE CORPORAT]ON
(A Wholly-owned Subsiriary ofthe National Home Mortgage Finance Corpordion)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
December 31, 2019 and 2018

(ln PhiliPPine Peso)

Note
2018

2019
As restated)

ASSETS

Current A3setg
Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets
Receivables
lnventories
Other cunent assels

4

6
7

I

5,139,064,90,6
1,603,895,203

r02,210,988
5,653,906

518,259,530

4,043,304,515
4,O79,763,312

109,828,543
4,141,476

352,802,U3
7 8,589,880,189

Non4urrent Assets
Receivables
lnvestment property
Property and equipment
lntangible assets

Deferred tax assets
Other non-current assets

6
I
10
11

12

13

18,253,'t 36,871
1,789,693,558

1a6337,@2
1,275,O24

/r5.805,281

552,560,105

16,587,080,818
't,405,524,803

182,33a,824
1,35',1,642

45,034,947
549.873,877

m,828,808,521 18,771,204,911

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

197 ,054 27 ,361 085,100

Other payables

14
'15

16

17

18

1,27O,',t2434s
27,919.245

1,715,710
238,r41,935

1,2',t3,925,O'13

24,782,244
4,670,960

249,636,799
1,399,637,5001 754,782

3,026,656,05-1 2,892,652,520

Non-Current Liabilitiee
Financial liabilities

Trust liabilities

41,84a,223
18,669,742,260

s8.547 ,28'l
18,300 243,124

18,711,59o,rlE3 18,358,790,405

TOTAL LIABILITIES 21,738216,5& 2',1,251,442,925

Retained earnings
Stockholders'equlty

19

19

6,449,646,514
10,000,000

6,O99,642,175
10,000,000

TOTAL EQUITY 6,459,646,514 6,109,642,175

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EOUITY 28,197393'054 27,361,085,100

The Notes on pages 9 to 47 form Part ot these financial statenEnts.

5

Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
lnter-agency payables

Trust liabiiities

Deferred credits/uneamed income

14

16



SOCIAL HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION
(A wholly-owned Subsidiary of the National Home Mortgage Finance Corporation)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSTVE INCOME
For the Years Ended December 31 , 2019 and 2018

(ln Philippine Peso)

Note 2019 2018

INCOME
Service and business income 20 660,858,627 571 ,644,7',15

660,858,627 571,644,715

EXPENSES
Personnel services
Maintenance and other operating expenses
Non-cash expenses
Financial expenses

21

22

24

282,643,330
312,369,967

22,043,308
4,748,305

251,714,762
238,109,244

17,939,222
5,810,924

621,804,910 513,574,152

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(BENEFIT)
Current
Deferred tax

26.1

26.2
23,482,191 26,774,930

(482,974)(770,334)
22,7',t1,857 26,291,956

PRQFIT AFTER TAX
Net assistance/subsidy 27

201,492,165
727,506,829

177 ,927 ,683
590,247 ,183

NET INCOME / COi,r]PREHENSIVE INCOME 928,998,994 768,'t74,866

The Notes on pages 9 to 47 form part of these financial statements

6

tNcoME FROM OPERATTONS 39,053,7',17 58,070,563

Othcr non-operating income 25 185,150,305 '146,149,076

pRoFtT BEFORE TAX 224,204,022 204,219,639



SOCIAL HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION
(A wholly-owned subsidiary of the National Home Mortgage Finance CorpoEtion)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

(ln Philippine Peso)

Paid in
Capital

19.1

Total
Equity

Balance as at January 1,2018
Comprehensive income for the year

Dividends
For transfer to NHMFC

10,000,000 5,506,117,468 5,516,',l17,468
768,174,866 768,174,866
(113,452,888) (113,452,888)

0
0
0 (6 't .'t97 ,271\ 61 ,197 ,271)

Restated balance as at December 3 18 10,000,00q 6,099,642,1 09,642,175

Balance as at January 1,2019 '10,000,000

0
6,099,642,175 6,109,642,175

372,737 ,327)Prior period adjustments 372,737 ,327) (

Restated balance as at January 1, 2019
comprehensive income for the year

Dividends paid CY 2018
Dividends payable CY 20'19

10,000,000 5,736,904,848
928,998,994
(95,960,626)

0
0
0 110,296,702) (110,296,702\

Appropriated Retained Earnings
Funds appropriated for HDH Project
Retained Earnings for transfer to NHMFC

Un-appropriated Reta ined Earninqs

6,384,479,898
60,505,380

4.661,236

The Notes on pages I to 47 form part of these financial statements

7

Jfi;;?=-

Retained
Earnings

19.2

5.726,904.848
928,998,994
(95,960,626)

Balance as at December 31, 2019 10,000,000 6,2149,646,514 6,459,646,514



SOCIAL HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION
(A Wholly-owned Sub3idiary of the National Home Mortgage Finance Corporation)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Forthe Years Ended December 31. 2019 and 2018

(ln Philippine Peso)

Note 2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROTI OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash inflows
Colleclion of income,/revenue

R€ceipt of assistance/subsidy
Trust receipts
Collection of receivables
Receipt of inter-agency fund transfeE
Other receipls

1 ,102,A25,825
752.827,898

51,862,733
7,585,309
5,152,209

10,703,941

1,034,710,227
0

s3,55'1,355
6,488,000

3,855,524,281
2,441,174

1,930,957,915 4,992,315,041

Cash outtlows
Release offunds foa mortgage contracts
Payment of expenses
Refund ol deposlts
Remittance of personnel benefit ccntribulions and mandatory deductions

Payment for prepaid expenses
Purchase of inventories
Granl of cash advanc?s
Release of inter-agenc/ fund transfers
Other disbursements

2,194,440,OO1
21A,747,816
17A,479,328
99,9'18,900
73,477,661
15,583,983
't3,508,589
'10,014,353

2,3',15,233

0

21a,723,23t
83,916,945

105,000,525
61,105,051

6,344,142
13,434,963
26,005,021

1,805,693,662

Tolal cash outflows 2,806,4a5,864 2,320,303,586

Net cash (used in) Provided by operating activities 1875,527, 2,612,A11,455

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash inflows
Proceeds from malured investments/redemption of long{erm

inveslments/retum cn investments 7 ,O4A,125 ,8159,660,189,249
192,,r83,337 118, 756.216Receipl of interest earned

Total cash inflows 9,852,672,586 7,166,882,031

Cash outflows
Purchase of inveslments
PurchaseJconstruction of property, plant and equipment

Grant of loans
Purchase of intanqible assets

7,1A4321,',141
550,446,189

7,700,000
042,944

7.739,102,249
42 612,594

3,420,000
50,659

Tolal c€sh outflows 7,743,a5O,274 7,785,1A5502

Net cash provided bv (used in) investing activities 2,109,322,312 (618,903,471)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACNVINES
Cash outflows

Payment of cash dividends

Payment of fnancial expenses for technical assistance

Payment of long-term lrabilitjes

95,960,626
26,3t8,585
12,567,751
3,t87,010

113,452,888
21,788,216
11,604,577

Payment of interest on loans and other frnancialcharqes 4, 150,145

Total cash outflows (138,033,S72) (1s0,995,866)

Net cash used in tinanclnq activities (138,033,972) (150,995,866)

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equ ivalenis at beginning ofthe year

1,095,760,391
4,043,304,515

1,902,112,114
2,141,192,397

CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS A-]'END OF YEAR 5,139,064,906

The Notes on pages I to 47 form parl of these finanoal slatements

4,043,304,515

B



SOC/AL HOUSI NG FI NAN CE CORPO RAT ION
(A Whotly Owned Subsidiary of National Home Mortgage Finance Corporation)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 20{9 AND 2018
(Amounls in PhiliPPine Peso)

I

1. CORPORATEINFORMATION

On January 20, 2004, Executive Order (EO) No. 272 was signed and approved-by the

President oi the Republic of the Philippines authorizing the National Home Mortgage Finance

corporation (NHl\,1FC) to organize and establish the social Housing Finance corporation

1Snrc1, as a wholly-owned subsidiary, in accordance with the corporation code and

|"rtin"iit rutes and regutations issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).

bnn6 nrs been formilly organized and established on June 21, 2OO5 with the issuance of

the Certificate of lncorporation under SEC No. CS 200510702'

As a wholly-owneci subsidiary of NHMFC, SHFC was created primarily to be the lead agency

to undertake sociai housing programs that will cater to the formal and informal sectors in the

low-income bracket and shall take charge of developing and administering social housing

progr", schemes, particularly the Crommunity Mortgage Program (CMP) and the

Amirtization Support and Developmental Financing Programs of the Abot-Kaya Pabahay

Fund (AKpF) as'well as other social housing programs of the NHMFC, to allow the NHMFC

to focus on its primary malldate that is, developing the secondary market for home mortgages.

presently, SHFC is merel.y' a trustee of the transferred cMP funds and assets. The NHMFC

remains-in controi of the affairs of SHFC and did not abandon its obligation to use its

ownership under e trusl relationship having retained its full control over the subject funds.

Aside from the cl.lP and AKPF, SHFC has been implementing the Localized community

rrrto,tgrgu Program (LCMP) since July 2010. LCMP is a derivative of cMP that would assist

ana Em-power'ihe local government units (LGUs) in achieving their housing programs for the

informal sector in their respective areas.

ln 2010, the Presiclent of tire Philippines issued a directive in line with the Ten-Point covenant

with the Urban Poor, to ensure a safe and a flood resilient permanent housing solution for

lnformal Settler Families (lSFs) residing in danger areas in the National Capital Region (NCR)'

The directive falls squarely wiihin the mandate of SHFC, thus, in furtherance to its mandate

and primary purpo"e, tnu ftign Density Housing (HDH) Program was created and promulgated

to extend financing assistance to organized communities for the construction of HDH projects

and for acquisition of lots i'or near-site, in city and near city relocations'

on December 7,2C17 a Trust Agreement was entered into by and between the Department

of Transportation (DOTr) and sHFC for the construction of Micro Medium Rise Building

inrrraigllcNlp Vei-iical, regular CMP, and other community driven housing programs and

shelter solutions that will primarily benefit the lsFs living along the Tutuban-Los Baffos

segment and calamba-Batangas branchline (Phjlippine National Railways south c_ommuter

er[lea;. An initial amount of}3 billion pesos (First Tranche) was transferred to SHFC on

r"iiiraiy 20,2o1B to finance the resettlement program for the said PNR Project. For the

""tir"tv 
tt the Norih-South Railway Project Phase ll, SHFC will receive the total amount of

P14 billion pesos.



SHFC'S registered office, which is also its principal place.of business' is located at No' 
-8737

ir."" a" ioxas, Makati City. The registered office of NHMFC ls located at Filomena Building

lll, 104 Amorsolo Street, Legaspi Village, Makati City'

The financial statements of SHFC as at and for the years ended December 31' 2019 and

ioia;;r" authorized for issue by sHFC's Board of Directors (BoD) on June 10, 2o2o.

!. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

TheSignificantaccountingpoliciesthathavebeenusedinthepreparationoftheseJinancial
,iui"rint" 

"r" 
summariied below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the

years presented, unless otherwise stated'

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statem ents

a

b

Statement of Compliance with Phitippine Financiat Repofting Sfandards

The financial statements of SHFC have been prepared in accordance with

pfrilippi"" 
-ii.""iial 

Reporting Standards (PFRS). applicable to Government

b;;i;;;; Enterprises (bBEsi issued bv the Philippine^ Financial Reporting

St""jiia. Council, pursuant'io the requirement under Commission on Audit

6ir""iri-p". iois_oog. pFRSs are adopted by the Financial Reporting

6irni"rO. Council (FRSC) from the pronouncements issued by the

f"i"i""i."ri Accounting Standards Board (IASB), and approved by the

Philippine Board of AccountancY.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the

,"mrt"runt base-s specified by PFRS for each type of asset' liability' income

"nJ "rp"nuu. 
The measurement bases are more fully described in the

accounting Policies that follow.

Adoption of the Commission on Audit (COA) Revlsed Chart of Accounts (RCA)

ln compliance with COA Circular No 2020-002 dated January 28' 2020' SHFC

lo"pi"i'ln" nCn in its trial balance for CY 2019 and 2018' General Ledger and

a;;il;ty Ledger accounts were diligently analyzed and manually mapped to

tn" nCn. 'Sff fi." accounting framewoik is designed to provide clear and reliable

int"r*"t,on regarding the aihievement of its operational objectives, compliant

with the aPPlicable PFRSs

Presentatia n of Financial Statemenfs

The financial statements are presented in accordance with Philippine

n"."r"ii"g Sir"tird (PAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements' SHFC has

;;i;;i ;;ed pind g to its financial instruments' and thus' cannot disclose

the impact to its equity.

Certain change in presentation provides more reliable and relevant information

,nO 
-U"tt"t 

u-nderstanding of the company's financial statements' Amounts

;;;;nt; +ot oecemuo- 31, 2018 have been reclassified to enhance the

'10
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comparability with the current yea/s financial statements. The reclassifications
pertain to financial liabilities previously presented as part of other payables'

such reclassifications are presented in the statement of financial position as

shown below:

December 3{,2018
Amount

reclassified
After

reclassification
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Other payables
Other professional
services
Clerical services

1 ,212,066,408
1,401,496,105

55,943,523

1,858,605 1,213,925,013
(1,858,605) 1,399,637,500

(55,2s7,840) 685,683

257,840 55,257 840055

The Management believes that such reclassifications has no impact on the prior

years' statement of comprehensive income.

d. Functional and Presentation Cunency

These financial Statements are presented in Philippine peso, SHFC,s functional

andpresentationcurency.andallvaluesrepresentabsoluteamountsexcept
when otherwise indicated.

Items inclucied in the financial statements of sHFc are measured using its

functional currency. Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic

environment in which SHFC operates.

2.2 Adootion of Ne\,v and Amended PFRS

Effective in 2019 that are relevant to SHFC:

(i) PFRS 16, Leases (new) - The new standard will eventually replace PAS

17 , Leases.

For lessees, it requires to account for leases 'on-balance sheef' by

recognizinga"rightofuse'assetandaleaseliability.Theleaseliabilityis
initiaiiy r-neisured as the present value of future lease payments' For this
purpole, lease payments include fixed, non-cancellable payments for

iease elements, amounts due under residual value guarantees, certain

types of contingent payments and amounts due during optional periods.to

tlre extent that-extensi;n is reasonably certain. ln subsequent periods, the

"right-of-use" asset is accounted for similar to a purchased asset subject to

de-preciation or amortization. The lease liability is accounted for similar to a

financialliabilitywhichisamortizedusingtheeffectiveinterestmethod.
However, the new standard provides important reliefs or exemptions for

short-term leases and leases of low value assets. lf these exemptions are

used, the accounting is similar to operating lease accounting under PAS

17 where lease payments are recognized as expenses on a straight-line

basis over the lease term or another systematic basis (if more

lepresentative of the pattern of the lessee's benefit)'

Before
reclassification

11



For lessors, lease accounting is similar to PAS 17's. ln particular, the
distinction between finance and operating leases is retained. The
definitions of each type of lease, and the supporting indicators of a finance
lease, are substantially the same as PAS 17's. The basic accounting
mechanics are also similar, but with some different or more explicit
guidance in few areas. These include variable payments, subleases, lease
modifications, the treatment of initial direct costs and lessor disclosures.

(i0

(ii0

(iv)

(v)

IFRIC 23, Llnceftain over lncome Tax Treatments. The interpretation
provides clarification on the determination of taxable profit, tax bases,
unuseci tax losses, unused tax credits, and tax rates when there is
uncertainty over income tax treatments. The core principle of the
interpretation requires the Company to consider the probability of the tax
treatment being accepted by the taxation authority. When it is probable that
the tax treatment will be accepted, the determination of the taxable profit,

tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and tax rates shall be on

the basis of the accepted tax treatment. Otherwise, the Company has to
use the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on the

surrounding circumstances, in determining the tax accounts identified

immediately above.

PFRS 9 (Amend menl), Financial lnstruments - Prepayment Features with

Negative Compensation. The amendment clarifies that prepayment

features with negative compensation attached to financial instruments may

still qualify underthe Solely Payments of Principal and lnterest (SPPI) test
As such, the financial assets containing prepayment features with negative

compensation may still be classified at amortized cost or at Fair Value with

changes Through Other Comprehensive lncome (FWOCI).

PAS 28 (Amendment), /nvestmenl in Associafes - Long-term lnterest in
Assoclates and Joint Venture. The amendment clarifies that the scope

exclusion in PFRS I (2014) applies only to ownership interests accounted
for using the equity method. Thus, the amendment further clarifies that
iong-tei'm interests in an associate or joint venture - to which the equity

meihoci is not applied - must be accounted for under PFRS I (2014), which

shall aiso include long term interests that, in substance, form part of the
entity's net investment in an associate orjoint venture.

PAS 19 (Amend ments), Emptoyee Benefits - clatification on amendments,
curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan, the current service cost

and net interest for the remainder of the annual reporting period are

calculaled using updated actuarial assumptions - i.e. consistent with the
calculation of a gain or loss on the plan amendment, curtailment or

settlement.

PFRS 3 (Amendments), Bushess Combinations and PFRS 11

(Amendmentts), Joint Arrangements - Remeasurement of Previously Held
!nterests in a Joint Operation. The amendments clarify that previously held

b. Effective for annual peiods beginning on or after January 1, 2020 and
thereafter:

(i)
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interest in a joint operation shall be remeasured when the Company obtains

control of the business. On the other hand, previously held interests in a
joint operation shall not be remeasured when the Company obtains joint

control of the business.

(ii) PAS 12 (Amendments), tncome taxes - Tax Consequences of Dividends'
' ' Th; amendments ctaiity ttrat all income tax consequence of dividend

payments should be recognized in profit or loss.

(iii)PAS23(Amendments),Borrowingcosts_EligibilityforCapitalization.T.he.amendmentsclarifythatanyspecificborrowingwhichremainsoutstanding

after the related qualifying'asset is ready for its intended purpose' such

borrowing will then form part of the entity's general bonowings when

calculating the capitalization rate for capitalization purposes'

(iv)PFRSlTlnsurancecontractssupersedesPFRS4lnsurancecontractsas
'''atJanuaryl,2O2l.Thenewstandardrequiresinsuranceliabilitiestobe

measured at a current fulfillment value and provides a more uniform

measurementandpresentationapproachforallinsurancecontracts-
These requirements are designed to achieve the goal of a consistent'

principle-based accounting for insurance contracts'

c Deferred effectivity:

PFRS 10 (Amendments), Consolidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28

inr"nOr"i,t.l, lnvestments rn Assocrates and Joint ventures - Sale or

bontribution of Assets betwe en an lnvestor and its Assocrates or Joint Venture

tini"ir" date defened indefinitety). The amendments to pFRS 10 require full

i"l"g^itio" in the investods finantial statements of gains or losses arising on

tire site or contribution of assets that constitute a business as defined in PFRS

i,-euiin"." combinations, between an investor and its associate or joint

,"nirt". Accordingly, the partial recognition of gains or losses (i'e'' to the

extent of the unrelaied investois interests in an associate or ioint venture) only

appties to tnose sale of contribution of assets that do not constitute a business

CorresponOing amendments have been made to PAS 28 to reflect these

Jrng.;. tn 
-addition, PAS 28 has been amended to clarify that when

J"iu,ilining whether assets that are sold or contributed constitute a business,

"r'""ilti 
rn"ff consider whether the sale or contribulion of those assets is part

oi 
",rft,pf" 

arrangements that should be accounted for as a single transaction'

Under the prevailing circumstances, the adoption of the-foregoing 1ew alq
amendedPFRSsisnotexpectedtohaveanymaterialeffectonthefinancial
statements of the CorPoration

2.3 Financial Assets

A financial asset is any asset that is:

a. Cash;

b. An equity instrument of another agency;

13



c. A contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset;

d. A contractual right to exchange financial assets or liabilities with another entity

on potentially favorable terms; or

e. A contract that will or may be settled in the Corporation's own equity instruments
and is a non-derivative for which the Corporation is or may be obliged to receive

a variable number of the Corporation's own equity instrument; a derivative that
will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Corporation's own equity

instruments. For this purpose, the Corporation's own equity instruments do not

include puttable financial instruments classified as equity instruments.

Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets are recognized in the Statement of Financial Position when,

and only when, SHFC becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. At initial recognition, the Corporation measures its financial assets

at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not at fair value through profit

or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets. After initial recognition, the Corporation measures its financial

assets at fair value or amortized cost in accordance with PFRS rules on financial

instrL,ments.

Classification

A more detailed description of the categories of financial assets relevant to the
authority are as follows:

Cash and cash equivatents are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at

cost. Cash includes cash on hand and in bank. Cash equivalents are shortterm,
highiy liquid investments that are readily convertible to cash and or at a very

near maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of
changes in interest rates. Cash is measured at face value.

Accounts receivables are open accounts arising from the sale of service in the

ordinary colirse of business and not supported by promissory notes.

Non-trade receivables, i.e. loans receivable, represent claims arising from

sources other than the sate of service in the ordinary course of business

Loans and receivables are none derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and maturities that are not quoted in an active market.

They are not entered into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale

and are not designated as or financial assets at FVTOCI or financial assets at

Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVPL).

Subsequent to initial measurement, loans and receivables are canied at

amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment in

value, if any. Any interest earned on loans and receivables shall be recognized

as part of "lnterest income" in the Statement of Comprehensive lncome.

14



Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees that are integral part of the effective interest rate. The
periodic amortization is also included as part of interest income. Gains or losses

are recognized in profit or loss when loans and receivables are derecognized

or rmpaired, as well as through the amortization process'

Allolvance for impairment is maintained at a level considered adequate for
potentially uncollectible receivables. The level of allowance is based on

historical' collection, current economic trends, and changes in the customer
payment terms, age status of receivables and other factors that may affect

collectability. The illowance is established by charges to income in the form of
provision of doubtful accounts (now referred to as impairment).

lnventorie

2.5 Prepa rnents and Othe r Current Assets

2.6 Propert'v and E,Jui ent

a. lnventory Held for Consumqtion

Supplies and materials purchased for inventory purposes are recorded using

the Ferpetual lnventory System. ln compliance with PAS 2, SHFC's inventory

helci foi consumption is valued at lower of cost or net realizable value'

lnventories are reclassified to expense upon issuance thereof and recorded

based on the Report of Supplies and Materials lssued.

b- Semi-expendable ProPertY

These are iangible items below the capitalization threshold of P15,000 as

prescribed under Paragraph 5.4 of COA Circular No. 201&006 on Conversion

irom the Philippine Government Chart of Accounts under the New Government

Acccunting System per COA Circular No. 2004-008, as amended, to the RCA

for GCs u;dei COA Circular No. 2015-010, new' revised and deleted accounts'

and relevant accounting policies and guidelines in the implementation thereof.

Semi expendable properties are recognized as expense upon issuance thereof'

Prepayments and other current assets pertain to other resources controlled by

sHFC-as a result of past events. They are recognized in the financial statements

when it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to sHFC and the asset

has a cost or value that can be measured reliably.

other recognized assets of similar nature, where future economic benefits are

expected to flo',v to SHFC beyond one year after the end of the reporting period or

in ihe normal operating cycle ofthe business, if longer, are classified as non-current

assets.

An item of Property and Equipment (PE) is initially recognized at cost. The cost of
an asset compr"isei its purchase price and costs direclly aftributable to bringing the

asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for additions, major

15

F
s



improvements and renewals are capitalized while expenditures for repairs and

maintenance are charged to expense as incurred.

After initial recognition, PE are carried at acquisition cost or construction cost less

subsequent dep-reciation and amortization and impairment in value, if any'

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives

of the assets as follows:

Years

Building and imProvements
Machinery and equiPment
Office furniture and equiPment
Transportation equiPment
Furniture, fixtures and books
Leased assets imProvements

30 to 50
5 to 15
5 to 15
5 to 15
2 to 15

Over the useful life of the improvement or
the lease term whichever is shorter

An item of property and equipment, including the related accumulated depreciation

,ni irprit."nt loises, is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic

Uenetit'i ,re expected to arise from the continued use of the asset Any gain or loss

;;;g;; derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net

;6;;"i proceedi and the carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss

in the year the item is derecognized.

2.7 Investment P ro;--,ertv

2.8 lntanoibie Assets

AninvestmentpropertyiSapropertyheldtoearnrentalincomeand/orforcapital
;;;";i;iil poieniiat, 

'uut 
noi toi sate in the ordinary course of business' use in the

il;;;;ii;; d"rpply of goods or services or for administrative purposes lnvestment

lrooertv is initiallv cirried at acquisition cost plus costs incuned for site

ilrli"rjr".t ""0 
horn" buitding. subsequent to initial recognition, investment

piop"tiv is consistently measuied using the cost model which is cost less

!""ir,jr"t"o depreciation and impairmenl, if any, in accordance with PAS 16's

,."*{;i;u,-,-,"il. ,owever, sHFC's investment property only represents land which is

valued at cost \^/ith no accumulated depreciation'

lnvestment property which is derecognized upon disposal or when permanently

,riinJiu*n t.n, use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.

lntangibleassetsareaccountedforunderthecostmodel.Thecostoftheassetis
ir," "t"rnt 

of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other

considerations given up to acquire an asset at the time of its acquisition or

oroduction. Capitalized costs are amortized on a straight-line basis. over lhe

;"i'-;"d ;."fri'tives ranging from three to five years as the lives of these intangible

assets are considered finite.

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs

ifi;;"a to acquire and install the specific software. costs associated with
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maintaining computer software are recognized as expense in profit or loss as
incurred

When an intangible asset is disposed of, the gain or loss on disposal is determined

as the difference between the proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and

is recognized in profit or loss.

2.10 P isicns and nti encr

2.9 Financial Liabilitles

Financial liabilities are contractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial

asset or to exchange financial instruments with another agency on potentially

unfavorable terms. Financial liabilities are recognized when the corporation

becomes a party to the contractual terms of the instrument. All interest related

charges are iecognized as an expense in profit or loss under the caption Financial

Expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive lncome'

Trade and other payables, due to related parties and other non-cunent liabilities

are recognized initiaily at their fair values and subsequently measured at amortized

cost, usi;g effective interest method for maturities beyond one year, less settlement
payments.

Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities if payment is due to be settled

within one year or less after the end of the reporting period (or in the normal

operating cycle ofthe business, if longer), or sHFC does not have an unconditional

rignt to alfer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the end of the

reporting period. Otherwise, these are presented as non-current liabilities'

Financial liabilities are derecognized from the statement of Financial Position only

when the obligations are extinguished either through discharge, cancellation or
expiration. Ttie difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability

derecognized and the consideration paid or payable is recognized in profit or loss.

provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow

of economic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or

amount of the outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the

presence of a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event'

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle

the present obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of

the reporting period, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the

present oblijaiion. Where theie are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood

ihat an outfl6w vrill be required in settlement is determined by considering the class

of obligations as a whole. When time value of money is material, long-term

provisijns are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax rate that reflects

market assessments and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the

provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense. Provisions

are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adiusted to reflect the current

best estimate.
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ln those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of
present obligations is considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be
provideci foriannot be measured reliably, no liability is recognized in the financial

statements. similarly, possible inflows of economic benefits to sHFC that do not yet

meet the recognition criteria of an asset are considered contingent assets, hence,

are not recognized in the financial statements. On the other hand, any

reimbursemenl that SHFC can be virtually certain to collect from a third party with

respect to the obligation is recognized as a separate asset not exceeding the

amount of the related Provision.

2. r, Revenue and E nse nition

Revenue compi-ises revenue from rendering of services measured by reference to

the fair value of consideration received or receivable by sHFC for services

rendered.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that the revenue can be measured feliably; it

is probable that f-uture economic benefits will flow to SHFC; and the costs incurred

or to be incurred can be measured reliably. ln effect, the recognition of an income

occurs simultaneously with the recognition of a decrease in liabilities or an increase

in assets. ln addition, the specific recognition criteria must also be met before

revenue is recognized:

(i) lntei.est income on loan receivables is recognized using the effective interest

method that is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts

through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount

of the financial asset: and

(ii) lnterest inccme on regular and time deposits is accrued on a time proportion

basis, by.reference to ihe principal amount outstanding and at the interest rates

applicable.

cost and expenses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive lncome

when decrease in future economic benefits related to a decrease in an asset or an

increase in a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably. This meang in eff_ect,

that recognition of expenses occurs Simultaneously with the recognition of an

increase in liabi{ities or a decrease in assets.

\Nhen economic benefits are expected to arise over several accounting periods and

the association with income can only be indirectly determined, expenses are

recognized in the income statement on the basis of rational allocation procedures.

Thisls often necessary in recognizing the expenses associated with the using up

of assets. These allocition procedures are intended to recognize expenses in the

accounting periods in which the accounting benefits associated with these items

are consumed.

An expense is recognized immediately in the statement of comprehensive lncome

when'expenditure flroduces no future economic benefits or when future economic

benefits do not qualify or cease to qualify for recognition in the statement of

Financial Position as an asset.
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Cost and expenses are also recognized upon utilization of services or at the date
they are incurred. All costs are reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
on an accrual basis.

2.12 Emplovee Benefits

The employees of SHFC are members of the Social Security System (SSS) which
provides life and retirement insurance @verage.

The Corporation recognizes the undiscounted amount of short-term employee
benefits, like salaries, wages, bonuses, allowance, etc., as expense unless
capitalized, and as a liability after deducting the amount paid.

The Corporation recognizes expenses for accumulating earned leaves. Non-
accumulating compensated absences, like special leave privileges, are not
recognized.

2. 13 Leases

SHFC as Lessee:

a. Finance Lease

Leases which transfer to SHFC substantially all risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item are classified as finance leases and are
recognized as assets and liabilities at amounts equal to the fair value of the
leased property at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of
minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the
finance costs and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Finance costs are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive lncome.
Capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated
useful life of the asset or the lease term.

b. Operating lease

Leases which do not transfer to SHFC substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease
payments (net of any incentive received from the lessor) are recognized as

expense in profit or loss on a straighlline basis over the lease term. Associated
costs, such as repairs and maintenance and insurance, are expensed as
incurred.

SHFC determines whether an arangement is, or contains, a lease based on the
substance of the anangement. lt makes an assessment of whether the fulfillment
of the arrangenrent is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.
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2.74 Related Parties

Related party transactions are transfers of resources, services or obligations

between SHfC and its related parties' regardless whether a price is charged'

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other

party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and

opeiating decisionsl For SHFC, these are individuals owning, direc{ly or indirectly,

an intereit in the voting power of SHFC that gives them significant influence over

SHFC and close members of the family of any such individual'

ln considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the

substance of lhe relationship and not merely on the legal form'

2.15 lncome Taxes

Tax expense recognized in prolit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and

"rir*t'tu* 
not rec-ognized in other comprehensive income or direcly in equity, if

any.

current tax assets or liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal

authorities relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are uncollected or

unpaid at the enJof the reporting period They are .calculated 
using the tax rates

"ni-ir* 
fr*" appllcable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the

taxable profit foi the year. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are

recognized as a component of tax expense in profit or loss'

Deferred tax is recognized for the future tax consequences and is provided or

accounted for using the liability method, providing for temporary differences

between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting

pripo.u. and the im6unt used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax

iiorio"a is based on the expected manner of realization or setlement of the

I"rrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacled or substantially

enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future

iaiJte pronts *ill be available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax

assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax

benefit will be realized.

The carrying amount of defened tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting

p"rLJ unO LAuced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will

be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized'

Deferrecj tax assets and defened tax liabilities are offset if SHFC has a legally

"nior""roi" 
right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the

deferrecl taxeirelate to the same entity and the same taxation authority'

sHFC's deferred tax asset is computed based on the temporary difference on the

provisioning at the end of the reporting period.
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2.76 Events After the End of the Repo rtino Period

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about SHFC'S
financial position at the end of the reporting period (adiusting event) is reflected in
the financial statements. Poslyear-end events that are not adjusting events, if any,
are disclosed when material to the financial statements.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of sHFC's financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires
Management to make judgments and estimates that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and related notes. Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated

and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future

events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may

ultimately differ from these estimates.

3.1 Distinction Between Operating and Finance Leases

sHFC has entered into various lease agreements. critical judgment was exercised

by Management to distinguish each lease agreement as either an operating or a
finance lease by looking at the transfer or retention of significant risks and rewards

of ownership of the properties covered by the agreements- Failure to make the right
judgment will result in either overstatement or underslatement of assets and

liabilities

3.2 Recognilion of Provisions and Contingencies

Judgment is exercised by Management to distinguish between provisions and

contingencies.

3.3 Key Sources of Estimation Unceftainty

The following are the key assumptions conceming the future, and other key sources

of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant

risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next reporting period:

a. lmpairment of Trade and Other Receivables
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An adequate amount of allowance for impairment is provided for specific and
groups of accounts, where objective evidence of impairment exists. SHFC

evaluates the amount of allowance for impairment based on available facts and

circumstances affecting the collectability of the accounts, including, but not

limited to, the length of SHFC's relationship with the customers, the customers'
current credit status, the average age of accounts, collection experience and
historical loss experience- At present, the Corporation submitted to the Board of
Directors a revised policy on the Loan Loss Provisioning for the board's approval
before its implementation.



b. Estirnation of useful Lives of Propefty and Equipment and lntangible Assets

sHFC estimates the useful lives of property and equipment and intangible assets

basecl on the period over which the assets are expected to be available for use.

The estimated useful lives of property and equipment and intangible assets are

reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous

estimates iue to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence

and legal or other limits on the use of the assets-

The carrying amounts of property and equipment and intangible assets are

anatyzed in Notes 1't and 12, respectively. Based on Management's assessme-nt

as ai December 31, 2O1g and zote, there is no change in the estimated useful

lives of those assets during those years. Actual results, however, may vary due

tochangesinestimatesbroughtaboutbychangesinfactorsmentionedabove.

c. Determination of Reatizabte Amount of Defened 7ax Assefs

SHFC reviervs its deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period and

reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer prob€ble that

sufficient taxable pr6fit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be utilized- Management assessed that the deferred tax assets

iecognizeO as at December 3i, 2019 and 2018 will be fully utilized in the- coming

yl"ii. rt" carrying value of deferred tax assets as of those dates is disclosed

in Notes 13 and 27 .

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

This account consists of:

2019 2018

Cash in bank
Short-term placements

Treasury bills
Time deposits - local cunencY

Cash on hand
Cash - coltecting officers and supervising tellers

4,766,266,072 3,753,077,7 14

258,724,566
{ 00,370,000

214,550,109
60,000,000

15,103,623
s73,069

't 3,155,159
549,109Petty cash

5,139,064,906 4,043,304,515

4.1 Cash in bank consists of funds deposited with government banks for payroll'

corporate operating funds, Take-Out Funds, High Density Housing (HDH) Program

and for the pNR South Commuter Project (DOTr Project). Cash in bank earns

interest at prevailing interest rates of 1-40 to 2-75 pet cent per annum for the time

a"po"it ,ni O. f O pe-r cent for the current account. The increase represents primarily

the P753 millicn Subsidy from the National Government for HDH Projects'

short-term ptacements consist ot (a) treasury bills which are short term, highly

liquid inveslments that are readily convertible to .known- 
amounts of cash with

original rnaturities of three (3) months or less from dates of placement and that are

4.2
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subject to an insignificant risk of change in value, and (b) time deposit - local
currency which represents investment in time deposits classified as highly liquid
investments maturing from 60 days up to 91 days or not more than three.months
from date of placements.

4.3 Cash on hand consists of: (a) collections of cash collecting officers and supervising
tellers in the last working day of the year and were deposited only on the first
working day of the succeeding year, as well as cash advances granted to cash
disbursing officers; and (b) petty cash fund established at the Head and
RegionaUSatellite Offices to defray immediate or emergency petty expenses

4.4 Cash ccltecting officers/supervising te//ers includes collection of P91 ,632 which was
reporteci lost due to theft as alleged by the concemed employee- A request for relief
from accountability was already filed with the COA in December 2010. Appropriate
action is put on hold pending receipt of COA decision on the matter. However, as
at December 31 , 2019, there was still no update regarding the said issue. Moreover,
the significant decrease of about P2 million was due to lower collections received
at the end of the Year.

5. FINANCIAL A.SSETS

This refers to lnvestments in Treasury Bills amounting to P1.604 billion and P4.080 billion as
at December 31 , 2C1 I and 2018, respectively. These are short-term highly liquid investments

with average prevailing interest rates of 1.85 per cent per annum maturing from 91 days up

from the date of placements.

6. RECEIVABLES

This account consists of

2019 2018

Current:
Due from parent corporation
Due from other funds - AKPF
lnterest receivable
Due from government corporations
Due from NGAs
Due from officers and employees
Receivables - disallowances/charges

59,447,575
19,527,643
15,180,211
4,314,542
1,521,704
2,'t 51,939

67 ,37 4

59,345,804
14,878,373
28,196,237

5,665,320
1,036,855

600,243
105,711

102,210,988 109,828,s43

Non-current:
Mortgage contract receivable
Assets held in trust (AHT) - insurance receivables
Loans receivable
Unamortized origination cost

't7 ,942,A73,6',|.1
345,592,162

23,556,718
22,701,469

16,300,197,436
317,867,189

23,635,'1 1 0
24,400,391

Assets held in trui - interest receivables 433 095 095
18,335,157,05s 16,666,533,221

Less: Allowance f

t (AHT)

ment
18,253 136 871 16,587 080

82 020 '184 79 452,403
818
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6.1 Due from Parent Corporation

This acccunt includes CMP amortization payments and other collections made by
NHMFC for the account of SHFC. This account also comprises Management fee
computed pursuant to the provision under Section Vl of the Trust Agreement
entered into by and between NHMFC and SHFC.

This refers to the interest accrued on various money placements at end of the year
with various dates of maturity.

6.3 Due from Other Funds (AKPF)

This account refers to accumulated Personnel Services (PS) and other
Adminrstrative expenses ofthe fund paid in advance by SHFC during the year.

6.4 Due from Govei'nment Corporations

Housing and Urban Development Coordinating Council (HUDCC) - This account
represents the total advances made by SHFC for the account of HUDCC pertaining

to office building special assessments and other administrative expenses.

Social Security System - This represents the total advance payments made by

SHFC on account of sickness and maternity benefit claims of employees.

6.5 Due fron Na tioiral Government Aoen c es (NGAs)

This account represents purchases of supplies from Department of Budget and
Management - Procurement Service (DBM-PS) which are not yet delivered.

6.6 Receivabl es - Disallowances/C harqes

This account consists of receivables from Officers and Employees set up in
compliance to the Notice of Finality of Decision dated June 29,2016 and October
26, 2016 issuecl by COA, for the disallowed P5,000 cash gift as part of the 13th

month pay and the P20,000 additional Grocery Subsidy granted to SHFC
employees in CY 2014, respectively- The remaining balance represents uncollected
amount from resigned employees.

6.7 Mortoacle Contract Receivab le (MCR)

a. Current - This account amounting to P9.139 billion and P8.056 billion as at
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, includes CMP taken-out projects

from the time of transfer up to the end of each year .

b. High Density Housing (HDH) - The amount of P5.098 billion and P4.491 billion
as ai December 31,2019 and 2018, respectively, represents loan granted to
the beneficiaries of High Density Housing Program (HDHP) payable in 30 years.
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This account also represents draw down releases to various projects intended
for HDHP beneficiaries.

6.8 Assets held in trust (AHD - lnsurance Re ivables

This consists of the general ledger balances transferred from NHMFC as at

September 30, 2005. The balance of this account increases whenever there ls
renewal of the Mortgage Redemption lnsurance (MRl) coverage advanced by

SHFC for qualified Community Associations. The balance reduces upon collection

of insurance repayments from MBs which can be determined only upon proper

posting of amortization payments to MBs ledgers.

6.9 Unamort ized Mortoaoe Oriqination Cost

This stands for the unamortized portion of the origination and Appraisal cost which

is treateC as outright exPense.

c. Past due - The account amounting lo P2.812 billion and P2.813 billion as at
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, represents the past due portion of
the loan at the time of transfer up to December 31, 2019. This also includes
CMP projects taken-out from 1989 to 1993, which were retained by NHMFC but
eventually transferred to SHFC with a monetary value of P621 million
representing outstanding principal loan balances as at December 31, 2009. The
transferred loan balances were based on the Community Association's ledger
subject to adjustments upon the determination of the actual outstanding
principal balance that should be based on the member beneficiaries (MBs) loan

ledgers.

d. Restructured interest - bearing principal -This account amounting to P644.080
million and P675.413 million as at Oecember 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively,
refers to delinquent bonowers who availed ofthe Restructuring Program offered

by SHFC, in accordance to Republic Act (RA) No. 9507, otheMise known as
the 2C08 Socialized and Low Cost Housing Loan Restructuring Act of 2008, a
rescue package for housing loan borrowers.

e. Restructured - noninterest - bearing principal - This account amounting to

P19E 439 million and P214.065 million as at December 31, 2019 and 2018,

respectively, refers to loans with unpaid interests availed by delinquent

borrowers who also availed the Restructuring Program offered by SHFC.

Items in litigation - This represent the outstanding balance of receivables from

delinquent bommunity Associations transferred to the Legal Department for
foreciosure and with petitions already filed in court. Said outstanding balance is

the ariginal amount transferred from NHMFC.

f
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6.70 Loans Receivable

6,11 held i ru Receiva

This consists of interest receivable earned from AHT - insurance receivables

6.72 Allowance for lmpairment

Movements in the allowance for impairment for mortgage contract receivable are

as follows:

This represents the car and calamity loan availed by SHFC officers and employees
in the amounts ol P22.918 million and P0.638 million as at December 31, 2019 and

P22.457 million and P1.177 million as at December 31, 2018, respectively, which

are payable in 10 years.

Balance,
Januayl, 2018

Additional
Provisior'l

Recovery/
Reversal

Balance,
December 31,2019

Mortgage contracts receivable
Current accounts 7,479,M'.t 533,385

4,835,608
11,782,338
50,660,252

2,009,300
0

1 ,972,944

0

0
(1,947,848)

0

6,8/14,908
9,834,490

52,633,196

4,695,'164

Past due acaounts
> 3 months - 12 months
> 12 months - 3 years
> Over 3 years

Items in litiqation 4,695,'164 0 0

79,452,403 4,515,629 (1 ,947,848) 82,020,184

7. INVENTORIES

This account consists of:

2019 2018

lnventory held for consumPtion
Office supplies inventorY
Accountable forms, plates and stickers
Drugs and medicines inventory
Other supplies and materials inventory

Semi-expendable furniture and fi xtures
Semi-expendable office equipment
Semi-expendable lT equiPment
Semi-expendable other machinery and equipment
Semi-expendable communication equipment

1,496,487
203,738

22,271
11,497

1,669,955
1,193,'t 57

666,342
230,916
152,96{

6,582

2,065,312
200,873

17,083
0

728,904
887,126
249,496

0
26,100

6,582Semi-expendable books
4,181,4765,553,906
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OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

The account consists ot:

2019 2018
Advances to contractors
Guaranty deposits
Advances to special disbursing officer
Prepayments

431,437,863
3,041,833
'1,572,740

956,803
268,168

80,982,123

346,870,596
2,971,584
1,940,356

936,807
83,000

0
ances to officers and employees

Other d sits
518 259 530 352 802 1Ar)

Advances to Contractors

This refers to amount paid in advance as mobilization fee to contractors for HDH
projects which shall be deducted from the progress billing based on the percentage

of completion of the project.

8.2 Guaranty DeDosits

This account represents guaranty fees for SHFC's rental of Regional Offices and
warehouse amounting to P3.042 million and P2.972 million as at December 31'
2019 and 2018, respectively.

8.3 Advances to Special Disburs Officer

This account is used to recognize the amount granted to SHFC's accountable
officers and employees for special purposeltime-bound undertakings to be
liquidated within a specified period.

8.5 Advance s to Ofiicers and E olovees

This account is used to recognize amount advanced to officers and employees for
official travel.

8.6 Other Deposits

This account includes amount paid in advance or 20% down payment for the
properties to be acquired from the Bangko Central ng Pilipinas amounting to P79
million and also includes amount paid in advance to suppliers for acquisitions with
cash on delivery terms of payment amounting to P2 Million.

?7

8.4 Prepavments

This includes payments in advance consisting of rent and insurance to be amortized
for one year.



9. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The account balances amounting to P1.790 billion and P1,406 billaon as at December 31,

2019 and 2018, respectively, represent land acquired for building construction and site
development for use of lSFs under usufruct arrangement with HDHP beneficiaries. These are
canied at acquisition cost plus costs incurred for site development and home building.
Disclosure for the fair value of the investment property is not possible due to lack of appraiser
to date. However, SHFC is intending to engage the services of external appraisers for fair
value measurements for the following year.

SHFC Corporate Circular No. 13-026 on HDH guidelines provides for the implementation

framework of SHFC's participation in the priority P50 billion lnformal Settler Families (lSF)

Housing Program for the relocation of lsF residing in danger areas and waterways in Metro
Manila. To further strengthen said corporate objective, corporate circular HDH No.14-005

Series of 2014 was made pertaining to the acquisition of property by SHFC and usufruct under

the HDH Program. Through these circulars, as affirmed through Board Resolution No. 391,

series of 2014 and under its Articles of Incorporation and by-laws, SHFC is fully empowered
to pursue the acquisition of property in its own name and for the eventual disposition to the
CAs, or entering into a usufruc{ arrangement, for the implementation of the HDHP.

Buildings
and Other
Stauctutes

Leased Assets
lmprovementS,

Buildings

Fumiture,
Fixtures &

Books

Machinery
and

Equipment

Motot
Vehicles

Construction
in Progres-s-

Buildings and
Other

Structures

Total

Cost
January 1,20'19

Adjustments
Additions

20'1,330,000
0
0

3,627,253
0

68,200,683
0

0
0

27,503,748
0
0

327 .U4.728
(1,166,821)

1,840 721 367 428.824 15 996 144 21 633 666

000 27 356 904 3 995,230 71 629 144 27 503 78A U7,811,573507 15 996December 3'l 2019 201

Accumulated
Depreciation

January'1,2019
Depreciation

(30,023,083)
(6,781,868)

(13,796,021)
(1,506,619)

(32,499,567)
(6,167,550)

0 (17,04s,107)
0 (1,799,004)

(145,005,904)
(16,467.987)

(1.U2.126)
(212,946)

December 31 2019 86,804,951 15 302 640 855 072 667.117 0 18 u4,111 161 473 891

t{et Book Value

-!eee!q!e!4-?9ls : 11!r,525,049 12,054,264 2,140,158 32,962,390 15,996,1it4 8,659,677 r86,337,682

Cost
January 1,2018

Adjustments
Additions

201,330,000
0
0 870 45 156 289

19,522,839
(20,000)

3,216,437
0

37,8/.9,24s
0

20,289,9'18
0

242.208,439
(20,000)

0
0
07 180 165 410 816 30 351 438 7

December 31 2018 201,330,000 26.683.004 3.627,253 68,200,683 0 27.503,788 327.U4 .728

Accumulated
Depreciation

January 1, 20'18
Depreciation

173.241,215\ (12,789,807) (1,393,241) (26,348,804) 0
0

(15,213,s ) (128,986,631)

December 31. 2018 80 o23 0a3
006 214
796 021

,885 150 763
642 499 567

831
0 17 045 107

543 16,019 273
145.005 904

182.338.824
Net Book value

21,306,917 12.886.983 1,985 0 10,458,681
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The details of the account are shown below:

26.683,004
(1,166,821)

127 35,701,116



1. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

details of this account are shown below

2019 2018
Cost
Accumulated amortization

6,917,129
565,487

Net book value 024 1 ,351 ,642

2. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

is account refers to the P45.805 million and P45.035 million deferred taxes for the year

20'19 and 2018, respectively, computed after adjustments effecting the temporary and
nt differences during each year (see Note 26.2)

3. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

This account refers to assets held i n trust on AKPF. The AKPF was previously under the
ministration of the NHMFC. Due to the passage of EO No. 272, lhe management of the
ortization Support and Developmental Finaneing Programs of AKPF was transferred to

SHFC in 2005

account is treated in the books of SHFC in the same manner and procedure it was
previously treated in the books of NHMFC wherein periodic increment and reduction of said
account, as a result of its operations, are taken up as credit and debit to Irust Liabilities

ccount. (See Note 16)

Fund balance amounted to P552.560 million and P549.87 4 million as at December 31,

19 and 20'18, respectively. Details are as follows:

2019 2018

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivable - non - current
Receivable - current
Property and equipment, net

non-current assets
lntra-agency payables
lnter-agency payables

315,638,020
67,441,124
4,770,478

153,437
't89,838,167
(19,527,643)

(5,003,469)

310,755,953
68,493,490
10,676,632

179,310
180,869,876
(1 5,1 32,593)
(4,734,684)

Other ables 750 009 234,1071

552 560 105 549 877
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,I4, FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

This account consists of:

2019 2018
Current:
Accounts payable
FoNatd
lnsurance/reinsurance premium payable
Due to officers and employees

1,216,168,542 1,166,587,672

s3,878,380
77,463

47 ,227,140
110,201

1 170 385 1,213,925 013

Non-current:
Loans payable - domestic (office building and

parking space)
SHFC
Housing and Urban Development Coordinating

Council (HUDCC)
3'd Floor
Parking Space (8)

21,006,305
8,901,043

30,756,112
13,032,349

12,025,541
1,765,967

967,312

9,607,155
1,527,O52

806,668Parking Space (5)
41,84A,223 58,547,281

,4.7 Accounts Pavable

This refers to the remaining 50 per cent of CMP loan proceeds and origination fees
retained by SHFC pending compliance with other requirements. The 50 per cent
partial release of loan proceeds is implemented based on NHMFC Board Approved
Resolution No. 3149, series of 2001. This account also includes perfected contracts
with suppliers amounting to P3.422 million and P13.775 million as at December 31 ,

2019 and 2018, respectively.

,4.2 lnsurance/Reins ura Premium Pavable

This account re;ers to one-year insurance premium paid in advance to SHFC by
MBs through Community Associations (CAs) and accordingly remitted upon
enrollment to MRI Pool.

74.3 Loans Pava - Domestic

This account amounting to P41.848 million and P58.547 million for the years 2019
and 2018 represents the cost of the building and other structures acquired from
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) less the principal portion of the monthly
amortization payments .
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15. INTER-AGENCY PAYABLES

This account consists of:

2019 2018
Due to parent corporation (NHMFC)
Due to BIR
Due to Treasurer of the Philippines
lncome tax payable
Due to Pag-lBlG
Due to SSS
Due to Philhealth

18,867,978
4,366,667
2,688,O72
1,427,233

255,262
194,877

18,867,978
5,468,410

0
0

188,010
140,932

119 't 56 116 918
27,919,245 24,782,248

15.1 Due to Parent Corooration (NHMFC)

This account includes expenses for personal services, administrative and operating
expenses, retirement benefits, and renewal/enrollment of CMP accounts at Pag-
IBIG MRI Pool advanced by NHMFC as provided for in the Trust Agreement.

,5.2 Due to BIR

This account represents the taxes withheld from payment of employees'
compensation, origination fees, honoraria, taxes withheld at source and on
government money payments including provision for corporate income tax for the
year.

15.3 Due to Treasure r of the Philiooines

This account represents the lnterest lncome on deposits (net of tax) earned from
the DOTr Fund and DILG Fund to be remitted to the Bureau of the Treasury as
provided in the memorandum of agreement between SHFC and DOTr/DlLG.

16. TRUST LIABILITIES

The account consists of:

2019
2018

(As restated)

Cuirent:
Performance warranty
Bidders bonds

4 670 960

Non+urrent:
NHIVIFC

DOTr
AKPF (See Note 13)
Other trust liabilities

14,756,822,155
3,000,000,000

552,560,105

14,390,009,247
3,000,000,000

549,873,877
360 360 000 360,360 000

18,669,742,260 18,300,243.124
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76.7 National Home Mortqaoe Finance corporation NHMFC)

The transfer of the CMP accounts to SHFC was initially implemented through the

transfer of the cash balance as at September 30, 2005 of P532 million on November
10, 2OO5 and the turnover of the outstanding principal loan balance of the

mortgages taken-out from '1994 onwards. Said conveyance correspondingly

required the transfer of the General Ledger (GL) balances of certain accounts

related to the pr-ogram. ln addition, the transfer also considered the portion of the

GL balances pertiining to mortgages turned over to SHFC and to those retained by

NHMFC.

The CMP Mortgages from 1989 to 1993 with a total outstanding Or!nc1g9.l !91
balance of P62imillion as at December 31, 2009, which were retained by NHMFC'

were eventually transferred to SHFC. This amount is temporarily lodged und,er the

Loans lnstallmbnt Receivable (LlR) - current account but was later reclassified to

LIR - past due account. Details of this account are as follows:

2018
(As restated

Cash
Loan installment receivable
Past due loan installment receivables
Retained earnings balance for transfer to

NHMFC
Land
Notes receivable - National Housing

Authority
lnterest income
Advances to contractors
Origination and apPraisal cost
lnsurance receivable
lnterest receivables
Items in litigation
Unamortized mortgage origination cost
Origination fee payable
Service fee incentives
Technical subsidY
Other professional fees
Accounts payable - MCR
Undistributed collections
Guaranty deposits Payable
lnsurance payable
Due to BIR (Vvithholding tax payable)

Advances from borrowers
Perfonrance warranty Payable 569) (1, 092,569)

(808,273,168)
12,128,274,114
2,750,042,775

428,O10,179

152,666,993
200,000,000

165,678,'128
't 59,08{,662
156,722,265
119,762,108
72,873,957
50,925,357
50,479,961
20,248,206
5,648,600
1,085,672

3,500
1788,472,5271
(1s0,012,482)

172,451,3211
(4,800,627)
(3,848,107)
(1,598,646)

165,678,128
52,302,537

140,008,915
119,762,108
72,873,957
50,925,357
50,479,961
22,177,170

5,648,600
687,000

3,500
(797,927,140)
(1 50,012,482)

(70,720,845)
(4,647,805)
(3,475,119)
(1,598,646)

(1,092,
247756 822,155 14,390,009

JI

2019

467,928,931
1 1 ,107,100,650
2,750,042,775

61 ,197 ,271

278,535,118
200,000,000

14,



i6.2 Deoartment of Transoortation (DOT r)

16.3 Other rust Liabil

The Trust Agreement was entered into by and between the DOTr and SHFC with

an initiat ariount of P3 billion pesos (First Tranche) transferred to SHFC on

February 20,2A18 to finance the resettlement program for the Philippine National

Railways South Commuter Project.

ThiSaccountpertainstoafundgrantedbyDepartmentofSocialWelfareand
Development ioswol and Department of the lnterior and Local Government

(DILG) and released to sHFC amounting to p10.36 miltion and P350 million.

iespectivety. on october 05, 2015, a Trust Agreement was entered into by and

between th; DSWD and SHFC. The pl0.36 million was received on July 01, 2016

andthefundfromtheEmergencyAssistanceProgramofDSWDwasearmarked
forthel43lsFvictimsoftyphoonSendonginCagayandeoroCitytobeused
solely for the purchase of housing materials. sHFC will still pursue the renewal of

the Trust Agreement. AlSo, on June 27 ,2016, a Trust Agreement was entered into

by and betieen the DILG and SHFC, of which the P350 million fund was intended

for HDHP projects and was deposited and maintained in a separate fund account

(HDHP ll) in order not to co-mingle with other funds'

t7. DEFERRED CREDITS/UNEARNED INCOME

This account consists of:

2019 2018
198,297,594 213,923,764Deferred income

Deferred credits 39 I 341 .E 713 035
935 249.636 700238 141

17.1 Deferred lncome

17.2 Delerrcd Crc its

This account pertains to temporary log on interest unpaid upon the application

for restructuring payable within 30 years. Deferred lncome is debited and lnterest

lncome is recognized (credit) upon collection.

This account pertains to the principal portion of amortization payments of sHFC for

the otfice spaces occupied and already paid by HUDCC in advance Upon full

pryr"n, of the toan the account will be closed and corresponding asset will be

transferred to HUDCC.

JJ



18. OTHER PAYABLES

This account consists of:

2019 2018

Undistributed collections
Other payables

394,075,873
1,091 ,678,909

430,326,320
969,31 1 ,180

1,485,754,7A2 1,399,637,500

78. 7 Undistributed Collections

This account re,'ers to amortization payments not yet applied/posted to individual
borrower's account as of statement date due to timing differences and other related
concerns. lt consists of accounts for clearing under the following categories:

2018
Un-posted amortization payments from

remedial accounts
Un-posted amortization payments from HDH

projects
Un-categorized amortization payments
No abstract of collections
Non-transmittal of collection documents by

NHMFC
Collections from MBs who availed of the 1-

year updating scheme
Not in master list
Un-posted amortization payments from

restructured accounts
Un-posted amortization payments from

express lane pro.jects
Others

149,290,757

97,A15,57',l

63,490,271
40,617,287
14,878,645

12,930,463

3,876,084
2,392,626

0

8,784,169

131,033,287

54,897,907

83,570,463
31 ,934,1 78
14.878,645

98,854,050

8,627,171
437,377

5,272,040

821,202
394,075,873 430,326,320

The approval of in-house restructuring program will serve as guidelines for remedial
accounts to begin the process of documentation up to posting and reversal of
amortization payments. Payments categorized under No abstract of collection and
Not in the master list need compliances before collections can be cleared and
posted.

This account consists of:

a. Guaranty Deposits Payable

This account refers to three months and six months cash deposits required for
old and ne\,^/ originators respectively, pursuant to Corporate Circular CMP No.
003, which is calculated based on the total monthly amortization payment plus
one-year MRI premiums.

2019

78.2 Other Pavables

34



Without pre.judice to the first amortization to be paid by the CAs/MBs a month
after the date of take out, this deposit shall be treated as a regular advance
payment on the same date.

Said advance payment shall be regularly credited as monthly amortization
payment in cases of deficient or no payments for the month.

b. Advances from Bonowers

This account pertains to the amortization payments in excess of the amount due

for the curent period but is not deducted from the principal balance upon

distribution of amortization collections.

c. Origination Fee Payable

This account refers to the 50 per cent origination fee retained by SHFC pending

originators' full compliance with requirements.

d. lnsurance Payable

Thisaccountreferstotheone-yearinsurancepremiumpaidinadvanceto
SftfC Oy MBs through CAs and accordingly remitted upon enrollment to MRI

Pool.

t9. EQUITY

,9., Capital Stock

SHFC has an authorized capital stock of P100 million divided into 100,000 slrares

*ith a par ralue of P1,000 each. 25,000 shares were subscribed by the NH{tilFC, of

which, 10,000 shares were paid for P10 million and the balance of P15 million

remains unPaid.

The paid-in portion of authorized capital stock is P10 million and transferable

pursuant tothe distribution mandated by EO No. 272. Of this amount, P9.989 million

ias paiO up by the NHMFC and the remaining amount by various stockholders for

and in behalf of the Government of the Philippines.

19.2 Retained Earningg

Appropriated retained earnings include (a) retained earnings due for transfer to

ruiiUfC as addition to Trust Liability pursuant to the amended Trust Agreement and

iu) runos appropriated for HDH project. RE balance for transfer to NHMFC

amounted to P366.813 million and P6,l .197 mitlion for CYs 2019 and 201 8,

respectively. (See Note 16.1)

Prior period adjustments include the amount of P366.813 million pertaining to RE

balances for trinsfer to NHMFC ftom CYs 2OO5 to 2017.lt also includes lnterest

lncome due to BTr, Percentage Tax set up and Travel Expense totaling P5.924

million. (See Note 16.'l)



20. SERVICE AND BUSINESS INCOME

This account consists of:

2019 2018

Service lncome
lnterest income - loans and receivables
Fines and penalties - business income

Business income
Other business income

Service Fee
Miscellaneous income

387,330,032
254,860,227

342,212,686
215,910,547

'12,950,768

570,714
18,146,153

522,215
660 858 627 571,644 715

Other business income account represents:

serylce Fee which represents the 20 per cent service fee earned by sHFC from enrollment of

the MBs to the MRI Pool particularly interest income from loans and receivables, other

business income and its fines and penalties.

Miscellaneous income account amounting lo P0.522 million and P0.571 million for the years

2019 and 2018 includes:

a. income from penalty on late amortization payments of the MBs;

b. other miscellaneoui income derived from processing fee of the application for penalty

condonation and substitution;
c. photocopy and recovery of vat payments made previously on deferre-d income 

..

d. interest fiom calamity 
-loans 

granted to officers and employees affected by then

typhoon OndoY;
e. surcharges from suppliers on late deliveries; and

f. the recignition of iefund of excess payments amounting to eS!! and !9!ow.1s
miscellarieous income per Office Order No. 07-0075, series of 2007 dated May 10,

2007.

2{. PERSONNEL SERVICES

This account consists of:

2019 2018

Salaries and wages - regular

Other compensation
Year-end bonus
Overtime and night PaY
Personnel economic relief allowance
Representation allowance
Transportation allowance
Clothing/uniform allowance

(Fofwatd)

136,822,7'.17 120,389,086

11,692,378
4,644,006
5,474,748
4,767,s00
4,762,876
1 ,386,189

10,189,640
5,383,958
5,297,O97
4,785,772
4.390,827
1,311,600

Jb



2018
Cash gift
Honoraria
Other bonuses and allowances

1,165,250
199,833

69,537,119

1 ,1 10,500
59,042

65,897,901
103,629,899 98,426,337

Personnel benefit contributions
ProvidenVwelfare fund contributions
Retirement and life insurance premiums
PhilHealth contributions
Pag-lBlG contributions

20,616,338
4,101,409
1,372,910

254,400
82,803

17,540,639
3,399,587
1,341 JAl

514,379
79,217Emp loyees compe nsation insurance premiums

26,427,860 22,875,OO9

Other personnel benefits
Retirement gratuity
Terminal leave benefits

3,456,000
12,306,854

2,324,710
7, 699,620

15,762,854 10,024,330
282,643,330 251 ,714,762

22. MAINTENANCE AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

This account consists ot

2019 2018

Traveling expenses
Traveling expenses * local 21,492,352

385,266
23,112,146

2,1 85,308Traveling expenses - foreign
21,877,618 25,297.454

Training and scholarship expenses
Traininq expenses {5,337,906 616,075o

15, 337,906 9,616,075

Supplies and materials exPenses
Office supplies expenses
Fuel, oil and lubricants expenses
Accountable forms exPenses
Semi-expendable furniture, fixtures and books

expenses
Drugs and medicines expenses
Medacal, dental, and laboratory supplies

expenses
Semi-expendable machinery and equipment

expenses

7,736,110
2,619,{ 83

353,855
188,800

78,057
7,009

0

6,552,166
2,361,215

278,196
23,631

57,OO7
0

8,595

357,366Other supp 351,592
638,1 76

(Forward)

lies and materials expenses
11,334,606 o

3t
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2014
Utility expenses

Electricity expenses
Water expenses

7,301,662
741,O89

7,026,359
694,525

a,042,751 7,720.884
Communication expenses

Telephone expenses
lnternet subscription exPenses
Postage and courier services

1,997,354
1 ,587,319
1,521,967

39,600

2,303,902
1,247,770
1,698,720

0Cable, satellite, teleg raph and radio expenses
5 146 240 A 250 392

Confi dential, intelligence and extraordinary expenses
Discretionary expenses 2,990,135

50s,488
0

670,504Extraordina and miscellaneous expenses
3,495,623 670,504

Professional services
Consultancy services
Legal services
Auditing services
Other professional services

7,899,760
132,720

22,249

6,667,820
280,650

0
685,6831,446,862

9,501,591 7, 634,1 53

General services
Clerical services
Security services
Janitorial services
Other general services

103,028,819
9,928,957
2,673,364

55,257,UO
7,786,792
2,713,469

4 964 909 o 490,054
120 596,04q

Repairs and maintenance
Repairs and maintenance - transportation

equipment
Repairs and maintenance - machinery and

equipment
Repairs and maintenance - fumiture and fixtures
Repairs and maintenance - semi-expendable

information and communication technology
equipment

Repairs and maintenance - leased assets
improvements

Repairs and maintenance - buildings and other
structures

Repairs and maintenance - semi-expendable
furniture and fixtures

3,109,536

491,943

218,626

52,000

5,100

2,452,232

249,680

5,500
2,800

0
0

0

0

0

710,212
(Forward)

3,877,205
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2019 2018

Taxes, insurance premiums and other fees
Taxes, duties and licenses
lnsurance expenses

46,590,257
869,299
169,703

42,363,220
739,109
330,727Fidelity bond premiums

47,629,259 43,433,056

Other maintenance and operating expenses
RenUlease exPenses
Representation exPenses
Litigation/acquired assets expenses
Major events and conventions expenses
Advertising, promotional and marketing expenses
Directors and committee members' fees
Donations
Printing and publication expenses
Financial assistance/subsidy/contribution
Subscription expenses
Transportation and delivery expenses
Membership dues and contributions to

organizations
24,572,135 23,589,879

,l0,226,696

8,023,938
6,750,323
6,504,578
3,630,316
2,277,000
2,459,884

743,930
174,172
121,578
31,149
,t5,420

8,610,609
5,891,358

98,417
6,069,869
3,928,968
2,181,000

20,000
250,477

0
171,401
77,005

1,200

Other maintenance and operating expenses
65,531,119 50, 890,183

312 369,967 238,109 244

23. NON-CASH EXPENSES

This account consists of:

2019 2018

Depreciation
Depreciation - buildings and other structures
Depreclation - machinery and equipment
Depreciation - transportation equipment
Depreciation - leased assets improvements

6,781,868
6,167,550
1,799,003
1,506,620

212,946

6,781,868
6,150,762
1,831 ,544
1,006,214

248,885Dep reciation - furniture, fixtures and books
16,467,987 16, 019,273

Amortization
Origination and appraisal cost {,698,922 n

310,036Amortization - intang ible assets 1, 308,618
310,036

lmpairment loss
Impa irment loss - loans and receivables 2,567,78',1 609,9131,

2,567,781 1 ,609,913
939,22222 043 308

39

3,007,540
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24, FINANCIAL EXPENSES

This account consists of:

2019 2018
lnterest expenses 2,953,686

1,794,619
3,916,86C
1,894.064Bank cha ES

4,748,305 s,810,924

25. OTHER NON-OPERATING INCOME

This account consists of:

2019 2018
lnterest income - notes
lnterest income - bank deposits

181 ,868,285
3,282,020

140,138,443
6,010,633

185 150 305 146,149,076

25. , lnterest lncome - Notes

This account represents interest earned at an average prevailing interest rates of
3.340 per cent per annum for lnvestments in Treasury Bills.

25.2 lnterest lncome - Bank Deposits

This account represents interest earned at prevailing interest rates of 1.40 to 1 85
per cent per annum for the time deposit and 0.10 per cent for the current account.

26. CURRENT A},JD DEFERRED TAXES

This account consists of:

26.1 Reqular Corporate lncome Tax (RClTt

The components of RCIT for CY 2019 are as follows

2018

Net income (loss) before income tax
Non-deductible expense
lnterest income on investmenUbank deposits

224,204,O22
36,652,473

185,150,305) (

204,219,639
29,569,291

146,149,076)

Accounting income subject to tax
Loan loss provision

75,706,190
2,567,7Al

87,639,854
1 ,609,913

Net taxable income
Tax rate

78,273,971
30%

89,249,767
30Yo

26,774,930Current tax expense 23,482,191

40
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26.2 Deferred Tax Asset

Income tax benefit was computed as follows

2019 2018
Deferred tax asset - beginning

Temporary differences
Tax rate

45,O34,947
2,567,78,1

30%

44,551,973
1 ,609,913

3Oo/"

Deferred tax asset - endins
770,334

45,805,281
482,974

45,034 ,947
lncome tax expense 22,711,857

23,482,191
26,291,956
26,774,930

lncome tax benefit 770 334 482,974

ln cY 2019 and cY 2018, sHFC claimed itemized deductions in computing for its
income tax due.

27. NET ASSISTANCE/SUBSIDY INCOME FROM NATIONAL GOVERNMENT

The following are the approved funding allocation and releases from the Department of Budget
and Management (DBM):

2019 2018
Approved funding allocation from DBM Fund releases 752,827,898

(25,321,069)

612,462,120

(22,214,937)
during the year

Financial assistance to Non-Government
Organizations (NGOs) and People's Organizations
(POs) for technical assistance and service fee

Net assistance/Subsidy income from National
Government

727,506,829 590.247183

This is apart from the CMP funding received from NHMFC.

28. LEASES

The related rent expense amounted to P10.227 million and pg.611 million for the years ended
December 3l, 2019 and 2018, respectively. (seeNote22)

Operating Lease

sHFC is a lessee of cffice spaces for Regional Extension Units (REUs) staff. The lease term
is for a period of three years and renewable thereafter.

41
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The minimum rentals payable under these non-cancellable operating lease as at December
31 , 2019 are as follows:

2019
Wthin cne year o nzo .l5,

ond one ar but not later than three ars 918 711
967 763

Finance Lease

SHFC is a lessee with lease term of 15 years, the leased assets and the corresponding lease
liabilities (net of finance charges) under {inance leases are recognized in the Statement of
Financial Position as plant and equipment and borrowings respectively, at the inception of the
leases based on the lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is apportioned between the finance expense
and the reduction of the outstanding lease liability. The finance expense is recognized in proflt
or loss on a basis that reflects a constant periodic rate of interest on the finance lease liability.

The minimum rentals payable under these non-cancellable operating lease as al December
31 , 2019 are as fcllows:

2015
Wthin one year
Beyond one Vear but not later than five vears

20,779.355
25,38'l,009
46 160 364

29. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

As of December 31 , 2019, the composition of the Board of Directors is as follows

Board Position Name Position from Other Agencies
1. Chairman Eduardo D. Del Rosario

2. Vice-Chairman Atty. Arnolfo Ricardo B. Cabling
3. Merrber Usec. Epimaco V. Densing lll
4. Member Usec. Bayani Hidalgo Agabin

Chairman, Department of Human
Settlement and Urban Development
President, SHFC
Under Secretary, DILG
Under Secretary, Department of
Finance
President, NHMFC
Director, DBM
Private Sector
Private Sector
Private Sector
Private Sector

5. Men]ber
6. It/lember
7. Member
8. Member
9. Meniber
10. Member

Dr. Felixberto Bustos, Jr
Atty. Ryan S. Lita
Lyndon B. Catulong, Sr.
Atty. Emiliano C. Reyes
Ronald R. Barcena
Georqe Jt D. Alino, ll

Key Maragemefit Personnel Remuneration and Compensation

42

The key Managerrent personnel of SHFC are the President, Executive Vice-President, five
Vice-Presidents, the various Managers and Division Chiefs of the operating and support
9roups.



Meanwhile, the total remuneration (per diem) received by the members of the Board of

Directors amounted to P2,277 ,OOO and P2,181 ,000 for cY 2019 and CY 2018, respectively.

30. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

C it Risk

l-egal Claims

The account consists of the garnished peso time deposit at DBP amounting to P70331 million

""t"i*o 
by an Urgent Ex pa*e Motion from case AC-973-RCMB-N6R-LVA-024-91-99-2g14

tiif"J SOHtAf ,si Snfi in 2015. This was disclosed in the CY 2015 notes under

contingencies.

None of these contingencies are discussed here in detail so as not to prejudice sHFC's

position in the related disputes.

31. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

SHFC,sprincipalfinancialinstrumentscomprisecash,receivables,duefromarelatedparty,
investment in securities, accounts payable and accrued expenses, and due to related palties.

if'" 
-r"in 

purpose of ihese financiil instruments is to raise working cap1al for SHFC's

operations.

Financial Risk Management

Mortgage Contracts Receivable (Community Mortgage Program Loans)

cMp loans receivable arc 2s-yeat, six per cent interest loans secured by mortgage on the

IrnO 
"uni"ct 

of the loan. The loans are given to qualified. CAs made up mostly of-poor and

unaerprivitegeO tamilies to assist them in 
-purchasing 

the private land where they are informally

settled or buying a relocation site.

The property, subject of loan and mortgage, is registered under the name of the cA. The

pilp|rtv"i. J,jr"r"it uy 
" 

subdivision ptan ano each lot inthe subdivision plan is assigned-to a

il"irO", under a lease purchase agreement (LPA) with the association. The LPAs of the

"rroiirtion. 
are assigned to SHFC is additional security for the community loan.

Credit Poticy for MCRs (CMP Loans)

TheCMPLoanProgramfollowsthelegalmandateoftheUrbanDevelopmentandHousing
Act and is thereford not in conformity witn tne credit standards prescribed by the BSP for

financial institutions under its superviiion. ln lieu of the normal credit standards, the program

"qriiui 
CA members to deposii in advance savings equivalent to three months amortization

as proof of capacily and willingness to pay.
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The exposure to credit risk on SHFC's receivables relates primarily to the 
. 
inability of

customers to fully settle the unpaid balance of accounts receivables and other claims owed

to SHFC.

SHFC generally ascertains credit standing of counterparties before entering into a business

transaction. The examination of credit standing includes the following: (1) financial resources
(2) ownership structure; and (3) quality of Management.

sHFC does not have any significant concentration of credit risk. lts maximum exposure to

credit risk is equivalent to carrying value of its financial assets.

lnsurance

For the duration of the loan, there shall be a mortgage insurance on the lives of the principal

borrowers as identified in the masterlist of members on a yearly renewable term basis. The

insurance premiums shall be included in the monthly amortizations of the members. An

equivalent of one-year modgage insurance premium shall be required from the cAs in the

form of cash deposit prior to the release ofthe loan proceeds.

Security

sHFC follows an appraisal procedure and policy that is markefbased and allows a maximum

loan to value ratio of 100 Per cent.

Collection

The Mortgage contract Receivable (community Mortgage Program Loans) are covered by a

collectiorialreement with the CAs. The CAs collects the monthly amortizations from its
members and remits these to SHFC.

The credit quality by class of MCR based on SHFC'S aging of provisions are detailed in the

fdllowing table.

Recovery/
Reversal

Balance,
December 31, 2019

Ealance,
January 1, 2019

Addilional
Provision

e contracts receivable 16,300, '197,436 2,361,193,438 (7'.18,5',t7 ,263) 17 ,942,873,611Mortgag
Currenl accounts

Past due accounts
> 3 months - '12 months
> '12 months - 3 years
> Over 3 years

(7 .479.O41) (533,385) 18,012,426\

(4,835,608)
(11,782,338)
(50,660,252)

(2,009,300)

(1,572,944)
1,947,848

(6,844,908)
(9,834,490)

(52,633,196)

Items in litiqation (4,695,164) 14,695,164)

(7s,452,403\ (4,515,629) 1,947 ,848 (82,020,184)

16,220,7 45,O33 2,356,677,808 (7',16. 569,415) 17 ,853,427

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk pertains to the risk that SHFC will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations

associaied wiih maturing obligations that are settled by delivering cash or another financial

asset.
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The total financial liabilities of SHFC excluding the statutory obligations such as tax liabilities,
as at December 31.2019 and 2018 are as follows:

2019 2018

Financial liabilities
Deferred credits/unearned income

1,270,',124,385
238,141,935

1,213,925,O13
249,636,799

58,547,281Other payables 41,848,223
1,550 114,543 1 522,109,093

SHFC monitors its risk to a shortage of fund by analyzing the maturity date of its financial

asseG, inctuding financial investments and amount of cash flow provided or used in

operations.

Regulatory Framework

The operation of SHFC is also subject to the regulatory requirements of the Securities and

eicnange commission (SEc). Such regulations not only prescribe approval and monitoring

of activiiies but also impose ce(ain restrictive provisions.

32. COMPLIANCE WITH TAX LAWS

Supplementarv lnformation Required Under Revenue ReouIations (RR) No. 15-2010

on November 25,2O1O, the BIR issued RR No. 15-2010 amending certain provisions of RR

No. 2.1-2002, as amended and implementing section 6(H) of the Tax code of 1997 which

authorize the commissioner of lnternal Revenue to prescribe additional procedural and/or

Jo.rrnuntrry requirements in connection with the preparation and submission of financial

statements 
'accompanying the tax returns. These regulations require that additional

disclosures in the notei 1o financial statements shall be made to include information on taxes

and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable year.

ln compliance with the requirements set forth in RR No. 15-2010, hereunder are the

information on taxes, licenses and fees paid or accrued during the taxable year.

2019 2018

Taxes and licenses
Final tax paid on inconte
lncome taxes withheld on compensation and final

withholdin.g taxes (1 604-CF)
Corporate income tax
Creditable income taxes withheld (expanded)/ income

payments exempt from withholding tax (1604-E)
Percentage tax
Real property tax

36,652,473
30,061,858

23,482,191
16,863,742

6,536,509
1,896,777

500

29,569,291
23,201.212

26,774,930
4,253,816

10,111,O24
2,531,044

500BIR registration
1t 5,494,050 96,441 817

The President signed into law Package 1 of the Tax Reform Acceleration and lnclusion Law

on December 19:2017, otherwise known as the "TRAIN Act" under RA No. 10963. One ofthe
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salient features of the TRAIN Act is the increase of the non{axable personal income to
P250,000 per year for compensation income earners and self-employed and/or professionals.

This act took effect starting in January 2018.

Taxable Revenues

The composition of sHFC',s taxable revenues for the period ended December 31,2019
December 31 , 20'18 is presented below:

2015 2018

Cost of TVICES

The amounts of SHFC's cost of services for the year ended December 31, 2019 and

December 31 , 20'1 I are as follows:

2019 2018

Salaries and employee benefits 282,643,330 251,714,762

Itemized Deduction S

The amounts of itemized deductions for the year ended December 31, 2019 and December
31 , 2018 are as follows:

2019 2018

Professional services
Other maintenance and operating expenses
Traveling expenses
General services
Depreciation
Training and scholarship expenses
Supplies and materials expenses
Taxes, insurance premiums and other fees
Utility expenses
Communication expenses
Financial expenses
Repairs and maintenance
Confidential, intelligence and extraordinary expenses

112,530,410
65,531,119
21,8A7,618
17,567,230
16,467,987
{ 5,337,906
1 {,334,606
10,976,785
8,042,751
5,146,239
4,748,305
3,877,204
3,495,623
3,007,540

62,891,993
50,890,182
25,297,454
19,990,314
16,019,273

9,616,075
9,638,175

13,863,765
7,720,885
5,250392
5,810,924
2,710,213

670,504
310,036

323 230,680,185
Amortization - inta ngible assets

299,951

46

Requirements under RR No. 19-201 1

RR No. 19-2011 requires schedules of taxable revenues and other non-operating income,

costs of sales and services, itemized deductions and other significant tax information, to be

disclosed in the notes to financial statements.

The amounts oftaxable revenues and income, and deductible costs and expenses presented

betow are based on relevant tax regulations issued by the BlR, hence, may not be the same

as the amounts of revenues reflected in the 2019 statement of comprehensive income.

Sale of services 571



33. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Overall risk to operations

The spread of COVID-19 has severely wedged economies locally. Various Government
measures were undertaken to contain the spread of the virus, including lockdown, community
quarantine, and deferment of conslruction projects, resulting in an economic slowdown.

The SHFC has Cetermined that these events are non-adjusting subsequent events.
Accordingly, the financial position and results of operations as of and for the year ended

December 31, 2019 have not been adjusted to reflect their impact.

currenfly, it is not possible to reliably estimate the duration and severity of these
consequences, as well as their impact on the financial position and results of operations of
SHFC for future periods.

Manaoement's olans to deal with effects of the COVID- '1 9 outbreak

The sHFC granted three-month moratorium on the payment of monthly amortizations on

housing loans for all its projects nationwide due to the Enhanced Community Quarantine
(Eac) in Luzon and the declaration of state of calamity over the entire country amid the

covtp-ts pandemic pursuant to SHFC Board Resolution No. 840, series of 2020, effective

March 16,2020 until June 15,2020.

The moratorium program is available to all proiects/accounts HOAs, and MBs underthe cl\rP
and the HDH program nationwide, regardless of projecvaccount status. This means that all

pro.iects/accounts, including those that are newly taken-out, whether updated or delinquent,

are qualifled to avail of the moratorium.

The MBs are continuously covered by the MRI during the moratorium period. Unpaid MRI

premiums, if any, shall be deducted from the MRI prepaymenUadvanced or excess payments

upon fult payment/settlement of the account. lf the MRI prepaymentsiadvanced or excess
payments have been fully utilized, the unpaid MRI premiums shall be settled by the MB.

Effect of ndemic on the collectabi litv of receivables

As a result of the grant of moratorium and/or deferment of payments, the loan term shall

correspondingly exfund by three months. For MBs who will reach the age of 70 years old

during the eitension of ihe loan term, they will no longer be covered by the MRl. The

cons6nuagreemenvconformity to the extension of the loan term shall be submitted by the

HOAs or MBs to the SHFC within this year.

Payment of loan amortization will resume on June 16, 2O2O. The three months of deferred
payments covered by the moratorium shall be paid within three months from the expiration of
it e toan term or immediately upon pre-termination or pre-payment of the account. On

accounts in arrears, penalty shall be computed until March 15,2020. No additional penalties

shall be imposed until June 15,2020.

For updated accounts, payments shall be treated as deposit to be applied to amortization due

after ihe period of moratorium while for the delinquent accounts, payment shall be applied

outright to arrearages before the effectivity of the moratorium.

Effect on Morto oe Redem nlnsurance (MRl) cove raoe
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PART II

OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS



1

AUDIT OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

A. FINANCIAL AUDIT

Undistributed Collections (UC) totaling P394.076 million remained un-posted to
the Mortgage ContracG Receivable (MCR) account due to the absence of a policy
on the proper and timely distribution of UC to the individual ledgers of the
member-borrowers (MBs) concerned. Thus, the UC and the MCR under Other
Payables and Receivables accounts, respectively are both overstated by the
same amount as at December 31, 2019. Moreover, the General Ledger (GL) or
controlling account for UC has a variance of P79.964 million against the
Subsidiary Ledger (SL) balances. The misstatements and the variance affect the
fair presentation of the account balances in the financial statements, contrary to
Paragraph '15 of Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) 1 .

1.1 Paragraph 15 of PAS "l - Presentation of Financial Statements states that:

Financial Statements shall present fairly the financial position,
financiat performance and cash flows of an entity. Fair presentation
requires the faithful representation of the effects of transactions,
other events and conditions in accordance with definitions and
recognition criteria for assels, /rablrties, income and experses set
out in the Framework. The application of /FRSs, with additional
disclosure when necessary, is presumed to result in financial
sfalemenls that achieve a fair presentation.

1.2 The UC account refers to amortization payments from CYs 2008 to 2019 that
have remained un-posted/unapplied to MCR and other affected accounts.

As disclosed in Note 18.1 to the Financial Statements, the account refers to
amortization payments not yet applied/posted to individual borrower's account as

of statement date due to timing differences and other related reasons, such as:

. Payments with no abstract of collections;

. Payments of MBs not in master list;

. Payments of MBs not yet in the database for High Density Housing (HDH)
prolects;

. Collections from MBs who availed of the 1-year updating scheme;

. Un-posted amortization payments from restructured accounts;
r Un-posted amortization payments from remedial accounts;
. Non-transmittal of collection documents by NHMFC; and
o Un-categorized amortization payments.

1.4 The one-year updating scheme based on Republic Act (RA) No. 9507 on
Socialized and Low-Cost Housing Loan Restructuring Act of 2008 provides that
collections under the said scheme will be posted upon completion of the billing

and posting modules of the newly developed program. The approval of in-house
restructuring program will serve as a guideline for remedial accounts to begin the
process of documentation up to posting and reversal of amortization payments.
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The scheme was approved by the members of the Board of Directors on May 24,
2013 and implemented through Corporate Circular No. 13-027 series of 2013.

'1.5 Correspondingly, payments categorized under no abstract of collection should be
verified first in the Community Association lnformation System (CAIS) Kiosk in
order to ascertain the correct amount of amortization to be paid by the borrower
while those not in the masterlist need compliance with the substitution process
before collections can be cleared and posted.

1.6 Review of the accounts under UC showed the following balances as at
December 31 . 2019 and 201 8 with their movements:

Pa rticulars December 31
201 9 20'lB

lncrease/(Decrease)
Amount '/.

Colleclions from

NHMFC
Restructured accounts
Accounts with site development

Loan component
Express lane projects CMP
(not in the database)

Unaccounted
MBs not in maslerlist
MBs not yet in the database
Remedial accounts
HDH proiects (not in database)
Payments without abstract of collection
Payments of MBs who availed of the

one-year updating scheme
(Condonation under RA No. 9507)

Others

o 5,272,040 (5,272,040) (100)

14.878.645'14,878,645
2.392.626 437,377

10,058 10,058

0
1,955,249

0

(20,080,191)
(4,751,087)
7,170.81 8
18,257,470
42,917 ,664

8,683,'109
(85,923,587)

63,490,271
3,876,084
7,170,818

149.290,757
97,815,571
40.617 ,287
12,930,463

83,570,463
8,627,171

0
131 ,033,287

54,897,907
31,934,178
98,8 ,050

(,

447
0

(24\
(55)
100

14
78
27

(87)

1 603 292 811 144 792 148 98
.394,075,872 430,326,320 (36,250,44 7l (8.421

'Variance of '1 due to rounding off

1.7 As shown in the above table, the balance of the UC account decreased by

P36.250 million, or 8.42 per cent from that of last year's UC of P430.326 million.

1.8 The UC accumulated because not all payments are supported by a Remittance
Report and Abstract of Collection reflecting the individual monthly payment by
the MBs, contrary to the Collection Agreement entered into by the Community
Associalions (CAs) and SHFC.

1.9 There are also collections from the National Home Mortgage Finance
Corporation (NHMFC) amounting to P14.879 million that are still

unposted/unallocated to the individual ledgers of the MBs due to the absence of
data/ledger of collections from the parent agency, NHMFC.

1.10 The Unaccounted UC amounting to P63.490 million refers to the accounts
transferred by NHMFC to SHFC with no database of MBs which could be used
as reference in the distribution or application of the amounts to the individual MB
ledgers. The amount was reduced by P20.080 million, or 24 per cent in CY 2019.
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1.11 Likewise, MB Accounts not in the Masterlist decreased by P4.751 million in CY
2019, or 55 per cent as compared to the increase of P1.049 million, or 14 per
cent in CY 2018.

1 . 12 Moreover, there was an increase of UC for payments of MBs not yet in the
database amounting lo P7.171 million in CY 2019 which has no balance in the
previous year. Such increase was due to the delay of processing MB accounts.

1 .1 3 The CY 201 9 UC is accounted as follows

UC Balance - December 31 , 2018
CY 2018 UC distributed/allocated in 2019

430,326,320
(121,808,771)

Balance
Undistributed for 2019
CY 2019 UC distributed/allocated in 2019

308,517,549
1,121,499,932

(1,035,941 ,609)
UC Balance - December 31, 2019 394,O75,872

1.14 The table above shows that UC in CY 2018 amounting to P121.809 million, or
only 28 per cent, was allocated in CY 2019 which is way below the 65 per cent
commitment as recommended in audit in the previous year. The UC account for
CY 2018 still has a remaining balance of P308.518 million as at December 31,
2019.

General ledger balance
Subsidiary ledger (data base):

Remedial accounts
High density project - no database
Payments without Abstract of Collections
One year updating of remedial accounts
MBs not yet in the database
MBs not in the Masterlist
Restructured accounts
Accounts with site development loan

component

394,O75,872

314,111,914

149.290.757
97,815,571
40,617,287
12,930,463
7,179,068
3,876,084
2,392,626

10,058

Variance 79 963,958
20%

1.16 Validation disclosed that SHFC still has no established policy on the
distribution/allocation of collections to the individual ledgers of MBs, however,
through the implementation of the CAIS Kiosk and Portal (an interactive touch-
screen interface), the processing of payments was reduced to 2 to 3 days.

1.'17 The non-posting of the UC accounts amounting to P394.076 million to the MCR
resulteci in the overstatement of both the Payable and Receivable accounts

50

1 .15 Further verification revealed that subsidiary ledger balances amounting to
P314.112 million maintained by the Accounting Division are not reconciled with
the conirolling account or the general ledger balance of UC account amounting to
P394.076 million. The variance of P79.964 million, or 20 per cent of the general
ledger balance increased by P12.751 million or 19 per cent from the CY 2018
variance of P67 .213 million. Details are shown below:



affecting the fair presentation of the said accounts in the financial statements,
contrary to PAS '1. Likewise, the variance of P79.964 million between the GL and
the SL balances of the UC account, renders the account balance unreliable.

1.18 We reiterated our prior years' recommendations in CYs 20{0 to 2018 AARS
that Management.'

a. Submit work breakdown schedule to post and allocate UC for CY 20{9
by at least:

i. 50 percent of the UC by CY 2020 and
ii. 50 percent ofthe UC by CY 2O21.

b. Reconcile the variance between the SL and GL balances by at least:

i. 50 percent of the UC by CY 2020 and
ii. 50 percent ofthe UC by CY 2021.

c. Require the lnformation and Communication Technology Department
(ICTD) to enhance the database to include the HDH Proiects and all
other accounts not yet in the database; and

d. Formulate written policy on the number of days within which to
distribute/atlocate payments made by [UlBs to avoid the accumulation
of uc.

'1.19 Management commented that the Corporate Accounts Division was created to
be responsible rn the reconciliation of the accounts, to liaison with NHMFC and to
undertake other related activities to address the COA observation. Specifically,

the Division will be in charge in carrying out the activities enumerated in the
hereunder SHFC action Plan:

For the NHMFC accounts, coordinate with NHMFC on the appropriate
reconciliation previously done and require submission of electronic or
photocopy of Daily Collection Reports (DCR) which will be used in the
reconciliation activity,

For UC under HDH, Finance and Comptrollership Department has already
initiated piloting the posting of billing and payments using the advanced
interim ledgering worksheet and outsourced the development of the system
for I-lDH accounts; and

For other related UCs, prepare periodic reversal; send out list of names and
recerpts to branches/collection units, and inform branches/collection unit to
advise community associations or would-be-substitute to use MBs original
account number.
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For remedial accounts, apply the newly approved restructuring loan scheme
for 2020 under RA No. 9507 to those paying MBs;



1.20 Also, Management mentioned that the ICTD implemented the CAIS KIOSK and
SHFC Portal facilities to generate Statement of Account (SOA) and Abstract of
Collections (AoC) online which make available all relevant and necessary
information of the HOAS and Member Beneficiaries, thus, avoid accumulation of
un-posted/distributed collections. CAIS Kiosk is now already installed in SHFC
head office, Cebu, Davao, General Santos, Cagayan de Oro and soon in
Zamboanga.

1.21 During the exit conference, Management proposed for a 40 percent commitment
for Ci 2O2O and 60 per cent for CY 2021 lor the reversal of UC. For one year

updating scheme, it was likewise proposed that the amounts collected be

ciassified as a deposit since the actual reversal is made upon the expiration of

the approved one-Year Period.

1.22 As a rejoinder, we stand by our recommendations that Management expedite the
reconciliation and posting of uc account to the individual ledgers of the MBs to
meet the target of 50 per cent reconciliation in CY 2020 and another 50 per cent
in CY 2021, and formulate a policy on the number of days within which to
manually distribute/allocate payments made by MBs for accounts not yet

uploaded in the cAlS Kiosk and SHFC Portal Facilities to avoid the further
accumulation of UC. The reclassification of the UC under the one year updating

scheme to customer Deposits is just a transfer of the balance in another liability

account, hence, will not cure the accumulation of the UC accounts.
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4.1 .1 t)nless paragraph 4.1.5 applies, an entity shall classify
financial assets as subsequently measured at amoftised cost,

fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value

through profit or /oss on the basls ofboth:

(a) the entity's busrhess model for managing the tinancial
assels and

(b) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
asset.

Except for trade receivables within the scope of paragraph
5.1.3), at initial recognition, an entity shall measure a financial
asset or financial tiability at its fair value plus or minus, in the

case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value
through profit or /oss, transaction cosls that are directly
aftributable to the acquisition oflssue of the financial assel or
financial liability.

5.1 1

Absence of accounting policy on financial instruments that harmonizes with the
provisions of the Philippine Financial Reporting Standard (PFRS) 9 with
mandatory implementation effective January 1,2019, pursuant to coA Resolution
No. 2019 - OOO Uatea March 27, 2019, affects the fair presentation of the financial
statements as provided under PAS 1-

2.1 The following are the pertinent provisions of PFRS 9, to wit:



i-1.2 After initial recognition, an ent$ shall measure a financial
asset in accordance with paragraphs 4.1 .1 - 4.1.5 at:

(a) amortised cos:
(b) fair value through other comprehensive ncome, or
(c) fair value through profit or toss.

5.5.1 An entity shall recognise a loss allowance for expected credit
losses orl a financial asset lhaf is measured in accordance
with paragraphs 4.1.2 or 4.1 .2A, a lease receivable, a
contract assef or a loan commitment and a financial
guarantee contract to which the impairment requirements
apply in accordance with paragraphs 2.1(g), 4.2.1(c) or
4.2 1(d).

5.5.17 An entiA shall measure expected credlt /osses of a financial
instrument in a way that reflects:

2.2 Expected features of the mentioned policy would tackle, but not limited to, the
following:

a. the business model at a level of a portfolio:
b. classification or designation of financial instruments;
c. their initial and subsequent measurements;
d. application of Expected Credit Losses (ECL) and credit

generally, in three stages; and
e. any relevant tainting provision or de recognition.

loss allowances,

2.3 Paragraphs 17 and 18 of PAS 1 state that:

17. ln virtually all circumstances, an entity achieves
presentation by compliance with applicable lFRSs.
presentation also requires an entity:

a fah
A fah

(a) to select and apply accounting policies in accordance with
IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors. /AS 8 sets out a hierarchy of
authoritative guidance that management considers in the
absence of an IFRS that specifically applies to an item.

(b) to present information, including accounting policies, tn a
manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
u n d e rsta nd a b I e i nfo rm at io n.

(a) an unbiased and probability weighted amount that is
determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

{b) the time value of money; and
(c) reasonable and supportable information that is available

without undue cost or efforl at the repofting date about
pasf everls. current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.



2.4

{c) to provide additional disclosures when compliance with the
sDecific requirements in /FRSs is insufficient to enable
osers 10 understand the impact of pafticular transactions,
other events and conditions on the ent$s financial position
a n d fi n an ci al p e rIo rm a n ce -

18. An entity cannot rectify inappropriate accounting policies either
by disclosure of the accounting policies used or by notes or
explanatory material.

SHFC, as a government corporation classified as a Government Business Entity
(GBE), is required to apply the PFRS as the applicable {inancial reporting
framework in the preparation of its general-purpose financial statements'
pursuant to Section 3.1 of COA Circular No. 2015-003 dated April 16, 2015.

2. Basis of
Classification

3. Measurement

2.5 Also, COA Resolution No. 2019 - 006 dated March 27,20'19 was issued for all
Government Corporations classified as GBES that have not taken into
consideration the early application of the provisions of PFRS 9, to mandatorily
apply the provisions of the PFRS effective January 1 , 2019.

2.6 Review of the existing policy/guidelines of SHFC, however, disclosed that the
Corporation has not yet applied/implemented the provisions of PFRS 9. The table
below shows the requirements of PAS 39 and PFRS 9 vis-d-vis the present
practice of SHFC in the classification, measurement and impairment of its

financial instruments.

Pa rtic ulars
1. Classification

Categories

PAS 39 PFRS 9 SHFC Present Practice
. Financial Assets al

Fair Value through
Profit or Loss (FVPL)

. Available for Sale
Securities (AFS)

. Held to Maturity
(HTM)
Loans and
Receivables

Financial Assets at
FVPL
Financial Assels at
Other
Comprehensive
ln@me
Financial Assets at
Amortized Cost
(AC)

. HTM
o Loans and

Receivables

Classification is
anchored on specific
definitions for each
classificalion category

Classificalion is
based on business
model and the
contractual cash flow
characterislics

The classilication
depends on the purpose
for which assels are
bought and held

Pat 43. Vvhen a
linancial asset or
fnancial liability is
recognized initially, an
entity shall measure it
at its fair value plus, in
the case of a financial
asset or financial
liability not at FVPL,
transaction costs that
are directly attributable
to the acquisition or
issue of the financial

5.1.1. Except for trade 
1

receivables within the l

scope of paragraph
5.1.3, at initial
recognilion, an entily
shall measure a
iinancial assel or
financial liability at its
fair value plus or
minus, in the case of
a ltnancial asset or
linancial liability not
at FVPL, transaction

Financial assels are
recognized in the
Statements of Financial
Position when, and only
when, the agency
becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of
the instrument. At initial
recognition, the agency
measures its financial
assets at fair value plus
or minus, in the case of
financial assets not at
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SHFC Present PracticePAS 39Particulars
lai value through
statement of
comprehensive income,
aansaction costs that are
direclly attribulable to the
acquisition or issue of
lhe linancial assets.

Subsequent to initial
measurement. loans and
receivables are carried
al amortized cost using
the effective interest rale
method, less impairment
in value, if any. Any
interest earned on loans
and receivables shall be
recognized as part of
"lnterest income" in lhe
slatemenl of income
(now referred to as
Statement of
Comprehensive lncome).

Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into
account any discount or
premium on acquisition
and fees that are integral
parl of the effective
interest rate. The
periodic amortization is
also included as part of
interest income.

Gains or losses are
recognized in prolit or
loss when loans and
receivables ate
derecognized or
impaired, as well as
lhrough the amortization
process.

costs that are directly
attributable to the
acquisition or issue of
lhe financial asset or
financial liability.

5.1.3. Despite the
requirement in
Paragraph 5.1.1, at
initial recognition, an
entity shall measure
trade receivables at
their transaclion price
(as defined in IFRS
15) if the trade
receivables do not
contiain a significant
financing component
in accordance with
IFRS 15 (or when the
entity applies the
practical expedient in
accrrdance with
Paragraph 63 of IFRS
15).

After initial
recognition,
measurement of
financial instruments
depends on
classification
categories.

Afler initial recognilion,
measurement of
Iinancial instrumenls
depends on
classification
categories.

linancialasset or
liability.

No reclassilication
between HTM and AFS

Reclassification is
permitted between
FVPL and AC if
entity's business
model objective
changes, no lainting
rule.

4. Tainling
provision

No hedge accountingNo bifurcation of
asset unless hybrid
contract contains a
hosl and embedded
derivalive that do not
have lhe same

Embedded derivatives
are separated from the
hybrid contract and are
measured at FVPL.

5. Hedge
accounting
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PFRS 9

Entity is required to
reclassify HTM
securities lo AFS if it
sells a substantial
portion before maturily-
The entity will have to
wait for lwo years
betore it reverts the
reclassification.



SHFC Present PracticePFRS 9Particulars PAS 39
economlc
ch aracteristics.

Does not recognize
threshold for hedging
effectiveness

Uses a0o/.-125%
threshold for hedging
effectiveness

Allowance for
impairment is mainlained
at a level considered
adequate for potentially
uncollectible receivables.
The level of allowance is
based on historicat
collection, currenl
economic trends, and
changes in the customer
payment terms, age
status of receivables and
other faclors thal may
affect collectability. The
allowance is established
by charges to income in
lhe form of provision of
doubtful accounts (now
refened to as
impairment).

Based on ECL and
requires recognition
of credit loss
allowances on inilial
recognition of
tinancialassets

ln general, entities
must recognize ECL
in three stages:

Stage I (equires
1z-month ECL) -Upon initial
recognition and as
long as the credit
risk of a financial
asset has nol
increased
signilicantly since
initial recognition
(i.e., good
exposures), the
entity is required to
provide for credit
losses equivalenl to
1z-monlh ECL.
lnterest income is
recognized by
applying the
effec{ive interest
rale (ElR) on the
gross carrying
amount of the
Iinancial assel.

Slage 2 (requires
lifetime ECL) - lf
the credit risk has
increased
significantly since
initial recognilion,
an allowance will be
provided equivalent
to lifetime ECL.
lnteresl incrme
recogoition is the
same as in Slage 1.

Stage 3 (requires
lifetime ECL) - lf
the financial asset
shows objective
evidence of

Based on lncurred Loss
Model wherein
impairment is
recognized at later
stage when credit loss
event has occurred.

6. lmpairment

56

c



Particulars PAS 39 PFRS 9 SHFC Present Practice
impairmenl
tollowing similar
criteria as in IAS 39,
an allowance will be
provided equal to
lifetime ECL.
Additionally, interest
revenue would be
calculated applying
lhe Effective
lnterest Rate (ElR)
to the amortized
cost net of loss
allowance.

Vvhen credit risk has
increased signilicantly
from Stage I to
Stages 2 and 3
above, the amount of
impairmenl
recognized (i.e.,
lifetime ECL) will
correspondingly
increase.

2.7 As at December 31, 2019, the Corporation reported the following financial
assets:

Financial Assets Amount

oh over
Total

Assets
Remarks

lnvestments in treasury bills
Receivables, current (net of mandatory

accounts)
Other current assets (composed mainly

of advances to contractors)
Receivables, non-current
Other non-current assets (refers to assets

1,603,895,203

102,210,988

518,259,530
18,335,157,055

552,560,105

A
A

A
B
A

1 .84
65.02

1 .96

held in trust on AKP
21 112 0 881 7 4.87

A - Under 5-5.16 of PFRS 9, an entity may select its accounting policy for trade
receivables, lease receivables and contract assets independent from each other.

B -Under 5.5.1 of PFRS 9, an entity shall recognize a loss allowance for expected
credit losses on a financial asset that is measured in accordance with Paragraph
4.2.1 (amortized cost) xxx.

2.8 Review of the Statement of Financial Position for CY 2019 showed that the
financial assets amounting lo P21.112 billion represents 74.87 pet cent of the
total assets of SHFC amounting to P28- 198 billion. Non-current receivables
amounting to P18.335 billion, or 65.02 per cent of the total assets, should have
been provided with a loss atlowance for ECL as required in Paragraph 5'5.1 of
PFRS 9. Financial liabilities of SHFC, on the other hand, are classified and

5.69
0.36



measured at amortized cost, under PAS 39 with no impact on PFRS I since
most of the liability accounts are trade and loans payable, borrowings-

2.9 SHFC assesses and computes impairment through Loan Loss Provisioning for
MCR approved under Board Resolution No. 329 dated May 24, 2013. Salient
features of the said Board Resolution are as follows:

Loan Classification Loss Loan Rate
Current Accounts
Current Accounts - Restructured
Past Due

>3-12 months
>1-3years
Over 3 years

Items in Liti ation

2.1O Fot CY 201 9, the computed impairment loss for MCR applying the
aforementioned rates and the allowance for impairment loss as at December 31,
2019 are as foliows:

lmpairment Loss:

25
25

.50

.75
1.00
500

Monthly Provision for CY 2019 Amount
January
February
March
April to December

496,648
133,271
603,876

1,333,986
2,567,78',|

Allowance for lmpairment Loss:

Loan Classification Outstanding
Principal Balance

Loan Loss
Rate

Loan Loss
Provision

Current Accounts
Past Due Accounts

>3-12 Months
>1-3 Years

Over 3 Years

1,368,981,600
1,31 1,265,333

52,263,319,600
93,903,280

6,844,908
9,834,490

52,633,196
4,695,164

3,204,970,400 0.25 8,O12.426

Items in L ation

0.50
o.75
1.00
5.00

82,020,184

2.11 ln addition, ECL has to be recognized, generally in three stages depending on
the magnitude and extent of credit risks and should no longer be based on
occurrence of loss which has been the practice of SHFC.

2.12 lt is also worthy to note that Management consider the amendments to PFRS 9
issued in October 2017, on Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation.
The amendments provide that particular financial assets with prepayment
features that may result in reasonable negative compensation for the early

58



termination of such contracts are eligible to be measured at amortised cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income.

2.13 Moreover, disclosure requirements provided under PFRS 7 relating to recognized

financial instruments within the scope of PFRS 9 were not presented in the
financial statements.

214 rhe absence of an accounting policy on financial instruments that harmonizes
with the requirements of PFRS I with effectivity on January 1' 2019' pursuant to
COA Resolution No. 2019-006, affects the fair presentation of the accounts in the
financial statements.

2.15 We recommended that Management formulate a policy on financial
instrurnents that harmonizes with the provisions of PFRS 9 for the fair
presentation of the financial statements as provided under PAS l.

2.16 Management commented that they are in the process of hiring a consultant who
will guide them in the formulation of policies and/or guidelines for the proper

implementation of PFRS 9, and on the assessment and recording of impairment

losses.

c

2.17

3.1 Section '1 11 of PD No. '1445 on the Keeping of Accounts states that

Also, Management will assess if the foregoing amendments under

specifically the provisions on "Prepayments Features with
Compensation" will apply relative to the current transactions
undertakes.

The variance of P1.077 billion between the balances of the General Ledger(GL)of
the Mortgage Contracts Receivable - Community Mortgage Program (MCR-CMP)

and Subiidiary l-edger (SL) of the Gommunity Associations (CAs) account as at
December 31, 2019, casts doubt on the accuracy, reliability and validity of the
account, contrary to Section 111 of Presidential Decree (PD) 1445 and Paragraph
i 5 of pAS 1 , affetting the fair presentation of the account balance in the financial
statements.

PFRS 9,
Negative

that SHFC

a. The accounts of an agency shall be kept in such deta as is
necessary to meet the needs of the agency and at the same

time be adequate to fumish the information needed by fiscal or
control agencies of the government.

b. The highest standards of honesty, obiectivity and consistency
shatt be observed in the keeping of accounts to safeguard
against inaccurate or misleading information-

3.2 Paragraph 15 of PAS 1 : Presentation of Financial Statements as stated in
Paragraph 1.1 in Part ll of this report is among the criteria forthis observation.
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3.3 CMP is a financing scheme that assists and enables informal settlers, slum
dwellers or residents of blighted areas, in purchasing their housing through their
duly registered CAs, the land they occupy or the land where they would be
relocated. After having turned-over and individualized/unitized the titles by the
CA, these would already be in the name of the MBs. The account is considered
past due when the MB fails to pay three consecutive monthly amortizations of his
housing loan, which is recorded under MCR - Past Due account.

3.4 The SL balances ofthe MBs as at December 31,2019 showed a total of P11.613
billion, aged as follows:

Amount
o/o ovef
Total

Fully paid accounts
0 month to 3 months
More than 3 months to 1 year
More than 1 year to 2 years
More than 2 years to 3 years
More than 3 years to 4 years
More than 4 years to 5 years
More than 5 years and above

75,098
65,979
23,008
14,575
11,393
10,443
9,481

106,'141

n

3,575,812,652
1,368,981 ,431

735,124,432
576,140,953
545,39'1,905
481,911,238

4,329,919,714

0
30.79
11.79
b-JJ
4.96
4.70
4.15

37.28
Total - SL based on MBs 316,118 11,613,282 325 100

Total - SL based on CAs 11,768,037
Variance (1s4,755,283) 1.33

Account SL - CAs

Amount

GL Variance
Variance
over GL

/t4,563,508 (1,075,525,900) 8.38
Bearing Principal

't1,768,037 ,608 12,8

60

Age Number of
Accounts

,608

3.5 The SL of the CAs differed from the total of MBs' individual ledgers by P154.755
million which is higher compared to the CY 2018 variance amounting to only
P18,037. Verification of the two records and inquiry with Management disclosed
that the variance was due to timing difference because the individual ledgers of
the MBs were not adjusted/updated concurrently with the SLs of the CAs.

3.6 Conversely, the SL balances of the CAs totallng P11.768 billion, consisting of
2,801 associations, represent only 91.62 per cent of the GL balance (MCR-CMP)
of P12.845 billion as at December 31 , 2019, reflecting a variance of P1 .077

billion, or an unaccounted difference of 8.38 percent, as detailed below:

MCR - Past Due 1,735,133,053 2,812,146,110 (1,077,013,057)
MCR - Items in 50,925,357 50,925,357 0

Litigation
MCR - Restructured 710,150,385 644,079,789 66,070,596

lnterest-Bearing
Principal

MCR - Non-lnterest 203,703,018 198,439,144 5,263,874



3.7 Validation of the status of prior year's recommendations revealed that
Management is still working on the preliminary activities, such as batch
processing of Ir4B ledgers and generation of balances in the Operation Support
and lnformation System (OSIS).

Thus, the existence of variance between the SL and GL balances casts doubt on
the accuracy and validity of the receivables comprising the MCR - CMP account,
contrary to Section 'l 1 1 of PD No. 1445 and Paragraph 15 of PAS 1 which
requires faithful representation of transaclions reported in the accounts in the
financial statements.

3.9 We reitcrated our prior years' recommendations that Management:

Reconcile the variances between SL of CA and SL of MBs, as well as SL
and GL balances of P{ .077 billion by at least:

i. 65 percent of the variance by CY 2020
ii. 35 percent of the variance by CY 20211' and

b. Require the lnformation and Communication Technology Department
(ICTD) to assist the Finance and Comptrollership Department (FCD) in
enhancing and developing an accurate and updated database.

3.10 Management commented that the reconciliation of the GL and SL balances of the
subject account is dependent on the completion of the posting and updating
records of UC account especially those related to prior periods which affect the
actual distribution of payments in the succeeding periods.

3.1 1 Also, Management mentioned that ICTD already developed the system for
maintaining an effective database as an action plan to achieve the proposed
percentage of reconciliation of variances until fully reconciled in CY 2021. Some
regions, however, are still in the process of linking to the centralized system.

4. The present value of expected payments to cover future retirement benefits of
SHFC's employees rvas not measured and recognized regularly in the books as
benefit cost and benefit obligation, contrary to PAS '19 on Employee Benefits and
PAS 't on Presentation of Financial Statements, resulting in the understatement
of both the expense and liability accounts. This defeats the purpose of spreading
out the expense over years in service so that the benefit expense recognized in
the financial statements does not differ materially with the benefit expense at the
reporting/availment period and which likewise has a significant impact on cash
flows.

58. An entity shall determine the net defined benefit liability (asset)
with sufficient regularity that the amounts recognized in the

a

61

_i

4.1 PAS 19 on employee benefits provides the recognition, measurement and
disclosure of post-employment benefits, specifically the defined benefits plan
under the following paragraphs:



financial stalemenls do not differ mateially from the amounts
that would be determined at the end of the repoiing period.

120. An entity shall recognize the components of defined benefit
cost, except to the extent that another IFRS requires or permits
their inclusion in the cost of an asset, as fol/ows:

(a) sevice cost in profit or loss;
(b) net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) in

profit or loss; and
(c) remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset)

in other comprehensive income.

122. Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset)
recognized in other comprehensive income shall not be
reclassified to profit or /oss tn a subsequent peiod. However,
the entity may transfer those amounts recognized in other
com prehe nsive income with i n equity.

135. An entity shall disclose the infomation that

(a) explains the characteistics of its defined benefit plans
and risks associated with them;

(b) ictentifies and explains the amounts in its financial
statements aising from its defined benefits plan; and

(c) clescribes how its defined benefits plan may affect the
amount, timing and unceftainty of the entity's future cash
flows.

4.2 The same accounting standard defines retirement benefit obligation as the
present value of expected future payments required to seftle the obligation

resulting from employee service in the current and prior periods.

4.3 Records show that SHFC employees are not registered members of the

Government Service lnsurance System (GSIS) but of the Social Security System
(SSS) with different type of social insurance and retirement benefits. SHFC is a
non-cha,tered Government Owned and/or Controlled Corporation (GOCC) that
was organized and created under Batas Pambansa Bilang 68, or The

Corporaiion Code of the Philippines, wherein its primary franchise is disclosed

under its Articles of lncorporation.

4.4 The SHFC has a total of 230 regular and permanent employees with plantilla

positions as at December 3 l , 2019, of which four have retired in 2019, thus
entifling them to retirement gratuity. Due to the absence of established retirement
plan oi agreement, the Corporation granted to its eligible employees the
minimum retirement benefits set forth in RA No. 7641, otherwise known as The

Retirement Pay Law, to wit:

Section 1- xxx ln the absence of a retirement plan or agreement
providing for retirement benefits of employees in the establishment,
an employee upon reaching the age of sixty (60) years or more, but

bz
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not beyond sixty-five (65) years which is hereby declared the
compulsory retirement age, who has seNed at least five (5) years in
the said establishment, may retire and shall be entitled to retirement
pay equivalent to at least one-haff (1/4 month salary for every year
of service, a fraction of at least (6) months being considered as one
whole year.

lJnless the pafties provide for broader inclusions, the term one-half
(1/4 month salary shall mean fifteen (15) days plus one-twelfth
(1/12) of the 1{ moth pay and the cash equivalent of not more than
five (5) days of service incentive leaves. xxx

4.5 Retirement benefits under RA No. 7641 granted by SHFC to all its eligible
employees fall under the category of Defined Benefit Plans, pursuant to PAS 19

on Employee Benefits. The plans that define the benefits that the employees will
receive at the time of retirement computed based on a formula are called defined
benefit plans. Under these plans, it is necessary for the employer to determine
the amount of contribution to meet the future benefit requirements.

4.6 Consequently, there is an obligation on the part of SHFC to estimate the periodic

accrual for the benefits of its employees to ensure availability of resources come
retirement period.

4.7 Verification, however, revealed that SHFC was not able to recognize a retirement
benefit obligation under the Non-Current Liabilities portion in its Statement of
Financial Position (SFP). Moreover, the measurement of defined benefit costs
which include service cost attributable to the current and past periods, interest on
defined benefit liability and actuarial gains and losses, if necessary, were not

recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive lncome (SCl). Both the
recognition of iiability and expense are requirements provided in the Paragraphs
58, 120 and 122 of PAS 19.

4.8 Moreover, paragraphs 27 and 28 of the same standard provide the following'
respectively:

An ent$ shall prepare its financial stafemenfs, except for cash flow
information, using the accrual basis of accounting-

When the accrual basis of accounting ,s used, an entity recognizes
rterns as assefs, /,abrlities, equity, income and expenses (the element
of financial statements) when they satisfy the definition and
recognition criteria for those elements in the Conceptual Framework.

4.9 Records show that the GL of the Retirement Gratuity account has a balance of
P3.456 million as at December 31, 2019 which is the aggregate retirement
benefit given to the retired employees.

4.10 Review disclosed that the recorded Retirement Gratuity for CY 2019 pertains to
the actual pay-out of said benefits totaling P2.651 million with corresponding
credit to Cash-in-Bank - Local Cunency account while the remaining P805'201
refers to the accrual of the benefit.

bJ



4.1 '1 Verification further revealed that SHFC'S retirement gratuity (expense) is
recorded only upon receipt of the approved Request for Payment (RFP) and
Budget Utilization Request (BUR) endorsed by the Human Resource
Development Division (HRDD) for payment of computed retirement benefits.
Moreover, said expense is accrued for beneflts of retiring personnel whose RFP
and BUR are yet to be received by the Accounting Department.

4.12 Likewise, validation of reports disclosed that four of the 12 personnel were
separated from the service in CY 2019 by reason of retirement.

4.13 Thus, the non-recognition of the present value of expected payments to cover
future retirement benefits of SHFC's employees resulted in the understatement of
liabilities as well as defined benefit cost (retirement expense) to be recognized in
its SFP and SCl, respectively. Moreover, the outright recognition of retirement
gratuity and lump sum payout on the year of availment will have an adverse
impact on cash flows.

4.14 We recommended that Management:

b. Disclose in the Notes to Financial Statements pe(inent and necessary
information required under Paragraph 135 of PAS 19 on Employee
benefits; and

Seek assistance from a qualified actuary services in the measurement
of all material post-employment benefit obligations to carry out a
detailed valuation of the obligation before the end of the reporting
period.

4.15 Management commented that they will discuss the matter with their consultant
including the assistance of an actuary service to facilitate the proper
measurement and accounting of future retirement benefits, and the preparation
of necessary disclosure in the Notes to Financial Statements pursuant to
Paragraph 135 of PAS 19.

c
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a. Recognize in the books the present value of expected payments to
cover future retirement benefits as expense and liability, pursuant to
PAS {9;

5. The money value of the accumulated unused leave credits amounting to P12.3O7
million paid to SHFC employees was not recognized regularly in the books as
expense and accrued liabilities at the end of the reporting period when leave
credits are earned, contrary to PAS 19 on Employee Benefits, resulting in the
overstatement of expenses in current year and the understatement of liabilities in
prior years. This defeats the purpose of recognizing the expected cost of
employee benefits when services are rendered.

5.1 PAS 19 on employee benefits provides the recognition and measurement of the
short{erm employee benefits, specifically the accumulating paid absences under
the following paragraphs:



13. An entity shall recognize the expected costs of shoftlerm
employee benefits in the form of paid absence under paragraph
1 1 as follows:

(c) in the case of non-accumulating paid absences, when the
absences occur.

16. An entity shall measure the expected cost of accumulating paid
absences as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay
as resu/t of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the
end of the repofiing period.

5.2 Under the Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) between SHFC and Social
Housing Employees Association, lnc. (SOHEAI), it was agreed that SHFC will
grant the following leave privileges to its employees:

Type of Leave
C red its Leave Credits Granted Money Value

a. Vacation Leave
(VL)

b. Sick Leave (SL)

c. Emergency
Leave

d. Extra Leave

e. Study Leave

fifteen (15) days leave with
pay per year, plus one ('1)

day for every three (3)
years of service upon
regularization.

fifteen (15) days leave with
pay per year, plus one (1)
day for every three (3)
years of service upon
regularization.

five (5) days leave with pay
per year

One (1) travel day-off for
every five (5) days official
travel and two (2) extra
days off for fifteen (15)
days of official travel to be
availed immediately after
travel

Four (4) months with pay
to be used in instances
such as reviewing for bar
examinations and any
licensure examinations,
etc. which can be availed
once.

All unused leave credits
shall be paid their cash
equivalent at 100 per cent
of basic rate at the end of
the year of availment.

All unused leave credits
shall be paid their cash
equivalent at 100 per cent
of basic rate at the end of
the year of availment.

Non-accumulating and Non-
vesting

Non-accumulating and Non-
vesting

Non-accumulating and Non-
vesting
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(a) in the case of accumulating paid absences, when the
employees render seryice that increases their entitlement to
future paid absences;



Type of Leave
Credits Leave Credits Granted

f. Solo Parent
Leave (SPL)

Seven (7) days leave with
pay per year, plus one (1)
day for every three (3)
years of service upon
regularization.

All unused leave credits
shall be paid their cash
equivalent at 100 per cent
of basic rate at the end of
the year of availment.

5.3 Accordingly, employees are entitled to the monetization of some of the leave
credits earned such as sick, vacation and solo parent leave, equivalent to 100
per cent of the basic salary rate. These can be accumulated and carried forward
lo the succeeding years, in case the employee opts not to avail of the money
value of the unused earned leave during the year.

5.4 These benefits are categorically considered as accumulating and vesttng
compensated absences as defined under PAS 19 on Employee Benefits. The
same accounting standard states that an obligation arises as the employees
render services that increases their entitlement to future paid absences, and
prescribes the recognition of accrued liabilities at the end of the reporting period.

5.5 Review and verification ofthe General Ledger schedule showed that SHFC does
not accrue the money value corresponding to the earned/accumulated unused
leave credits of its personnel, contrary to PAS 19 on Employee Benefits. The
Terminal Leave Benefits account is debited and Cash in Bank - Local Currency
account is credited upon availment of monetization or separation from service by
the employee.

5.6 Consequently, monetized leave credits totaling P12.307 million were recorded as
an outright expense in the current period, instead of being recognized regularly at
the end of every reporting period, contrary to Paragraphs 13 and 16 of PAS 19
and the matching principle of accounting.

5.7 The non-recognition on a regular basis of expense and accrued liabilities at the
end of the reporting period when leave credits are earned for the monetary value
of the accumulated unused leave credits, resulted in the overstatement of
expenses and understatement of retained earnings for CY 2019 amounting to
P12.3O7 million, and the understatement of liabilities as at December 31, 2019 in
the same amount. This defeats the purpose of recognizing the expected cost of
employee benefits when services are rendered.

5.8 We recommended and Management agreed to regularly recognize in the
books the money value of accumulated unused leave credits at the end of
the reporting period when the employees render service, in accordance
with PAS 19.

5.9 Management commented that proper coordination among responsible
departments on pertinent data and reports will be observed to ensure that the
expected money value of accumulated unused leave credits are recognized in
the books regularly when leave credit is earneo.
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6. The long outstanding Receivables - Due from Officers and Employees account
amounting to P2.294 million aged from one to more than four years as at
December 31, 20'!,9 and the negative balance amounting to P144,206 with no
receivable set-up in the books due to absence of supporting documents are not
in accordance with Section 6.{ of COA Circular No. 2016-005 and Sections '111

and 1'14 of PD No. 1445, casting doubt on the validity of the account that results
in the inability of SHFC to collect the funds which could have been used for its
operations.

6.2 Section 111 of PD No. 1445 on the Keeping of Accounts as stated in Paragraph
3.1 in Part ll of this report is also a criteria for this observation.

6.3 Section 114 of PD No. 1445 states that

(1) The govemment accounting system sha// be on a double entry
basrs with a general ledger in which all financial transactions are
recorded:

(2) Subsidiary records shall be kept where necessary.

6.4 Review disclosed that Receivables - Due from Officers and Employees account
amounting to P2.151 million as at December 31, 2019 consist of long outstanding
balance amounting to P2.294 million which remained uncollected for periods

ranging from one to more than four years due to lack of proper monitoring by the
Accounting Department. This includes uncollected personal telephone bills

incurred by officers and employees at Head Office and regional satellites, tax
receivables from employees for non-deduction of tax on benefits received, under
deposit of collections from various Regional Offices, unpaid SSS, PagJBlG and
PhilHealth contributions of employees. On the other hand, the existence of
negative balances amounting to P144,206 was due to the absence of valid
supporting documents to set-up the receivable and the lack of monitoring by the
Accounting Department. Details follow:

Particulars Date Aqe Amount Remarks
Tax receivable 2015

Telephone bills various

Under remittance of SSS, various
Pag-lBlG and
PhilHealth Contributions

UnderDeposit-Regional various
Offices

(Forward)

more than
4 years
more than
4 years
more than
2 years

Tax deficiencies on benefits
received in 2015
Personal telephone bills of
employees
No deduction of mandatory
employees' contribution to
government agencies.
Under deposit of various
regional offices

2018 and
below

8,7'16

b/

6.1 Section 6.1 of COA Circular No. 2016-005 states that:

All govemment entities shall conduct regular monitoring and analysis
of receivable account to ensure that these are collected when these
become due and demandable and that cash advances and fund
transfers are liquidated within the prescribed peiod depending upon
their nature and purpose.

0
1,949,549

307 ,341

26,392



Particulars Date Age Amount Remarks
Error - Tax Computation

Overpayment of
maternity benefit

2016 No Subsidiary Ledger (SL)
and no available documents
No available documents

2,294,144
Adjustment - prior years

ln-house and regional
cash receipts

SSS payments

more than
4 years

various more than
4 years

(71,364) No SL and no available
documents.

(70,263) No set-up of receivable on
collecled telephone bills
from Regions. No available
documents

(2,579) No sefup. No available
documents

t144,2061
subtotal 2,149,938

Training Fee Nov. 7-
9, 2019

Current 2,000 Excess seminar fee to be
paid bv participants

Grand Total 2,151,938

6.5 Verification revealed that the account with no SL cannot be collected due to the
absence of records and documents. lnquiry disclosed that the Accounting
Department will deduct the said receivables from the salary of employees who
are still connected with SHFC. On the other hand, demand letter will be sent to
those already separated from the service to inform them of their obligation to
SHFC-

6.6 The Receivable - Due from Officers and Employees amounting to P2.294
million which have been outstanding for periods ranging from one to more than
four years and the negative balance amounting to P144,206 with no selup of
receivable in the books due to absence of supporting documents are not in
accordance wilh Section 6.1 of COA Circular No. 2016-005 and Sections 1 1 1

and 114 of PD No. 1445, casting doubt on the validity of the account that results
to inability of SHFC to collect the funds which could have been used for its
operations.

a. Deduct the amount due from the salary of employees who are still in the
active service;

b. Check whether the money accountability of former personnel is cleared,
and send demand letters to last known address on file, if necessary;
and

c. Exert effort in locating the records and pertinent supporting documents
in order to record and collect the long outstanding receivables and
reconcile the abnormal balances in the account.

6.8 Management commented that salary deductions related to tax on Gift Checks
were effected starting March 2019 concurrent with the set-up of the receivable for
the year 2019, pursuant to the demand made by the Bureau of lnternal Revenue
(BlR) on February 11, 2019. Moreover, tax receivables related to FY 2017 werc
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6.7 We recommended that Management:



7

already collected from April to September 2018, except for the remaining
balance. On the other hand, a memorandum was sent to the Facilities and
Administrative Support Division for the settlement of unpaid telephone bills of
several employees.

B. OTHERS

The Gumameta Neighborhood Housing Cooperative (GNHC) Project amounting to
P551.020 million under the High Density Housing Program (HDHP) was not
completed within the scheduled date of completion despite the approved
extension period until June 30, 2018, contrary to the provisions of the Building
Construction and Site Development Agreement, thus depriving the intended
1,406 lnformal Settler Family (lSF)-beneficiaries living in waterways and danger
zones of decent and affordable housing and defeating the objectives of the
Program including the non-recovery of funds invested in housing.

7.1 Executive Order No. 272 daled January 20,2OO4, mandated the SHFC as the
lead government agency to undertake social housing programs that will cater to
the formal and informal sectors and take charge of the development and
administration of social housing program schemes, particularly the CMP and the
AbolKaya Pabahay Fund (AKPF) program (amortization support program and
development financing program).

7.2 ln furtherance of its mandate and primary purpose, SHFC promulgates
guidelines to provide the implementation framework within which SHFC can
participate in the ISF Housing Project and enable it to extend financing
assistance to organized communities for the construction of HDH projects. The
beneficiaries of the HDH are community associations of informal settlers who are
living in danger areas and along the waterways in highly urbanized cities.

7 .3 The Building Construction and Site Development (BCSD) Agreement executed
by and between the Contractor, known as the First Party, and Community
Associations A to H, known as the Second Party, states that:

WHEREAS, SECOND PARTY desires to engage the services of the
FIRST PARTY for the construction of buildings and site
developntent for its member-beneficiaries;

WHEREAS, the F/RSI PARTY warrants that it is licensed in the
Republic of the Philippines to develop the propefty, and represents
itself to be skilled, competent, capable, and qualified to undefiake
and complete the works herein provided;

ov

6.9 Also, Management mentioned that its Legal Department will send demand letters
to former employees to facilitate collection and will exert best effort and prudence
in locating the necessary documents to record and collect the long outstanding
receivables and reconcile the abnormal balances.



7 .4 The following Articles of the same Agreement provide that

Article lll - The scope of work to be peiormed under this
Agreement shall be fullv completed within one (1) vear from the
release of the ation fund from the govemment financing
institution, the Social Housing Finance Corporation (SHFC).

Article Xl - lt is understood that time ,s an essenl,a/ feature of the
Contract and upon failure of the FIRST PARTY to complete Scope
of Work of the Project on the scheduled completion date, or any
extension thereof mutually agreed upon in witing prior to the
targeted completion date, the F/RSf PARfY shall pay the SECOND
PARTY liquidated damages equivalent to one-tenth of one percent
(1/10 ot 1%) of the value of unfinished scope of work per day of
delay until completion. SHFC is authorized to deduct from any sum
due or will become due to the FIRST PARTY all sums accruing as
liquidated damages in accordance with this paragraph. The
payment of deduction of such damages sha// not relieve the FIRST
PARTY from its obligation and liabilities under this Contract.

Article Xlll - ln the event that the F/RSf PARTY shall in any
manner neglect or fail to perform any agreement herein (including
but not limited to delay), the SEGOND PARTY shail give wriften
notice to fhe F/RSI PARTY to proceed with such work and to
pefform such agreement, and if the FIRST PARTY SHALL FAIL TO
DO SO ACCORDINGLY within seven (7) days from receipt thereof,
the SECOND PARTY and SHFC sha// have the option to proceed
against the bond and enter the premises and to employ any other
contractor to complete the work at the expense of the FIRST
PARTY.

7.5 Corporate Circular HDH No. 14-002 dated March 31,2014 on the lmplementing
Rules and Regulations (lRRs) for Building Construction and Site Development
Loans for HDHP states that:

Secfior: 9. Loan Release for Building Construction and Site Development

Upon review/assessment of the credentials of the Contractor/
Developer and the required documents and permits as contained in
Annex '8" hereof, Management shall endorse the project for Board
approval. Upon approval, a Notice to Proceed shall be issued and
the community association shall request for the mobilization fund
equivalent to fifteen percent (15%) of the site development or
b u ild ing con struction loan.

Re/ease of the loan shall be made in progress billing and in
accordance with the approved work schedule. Re/eases shall be
made up to a maximum of four (4) tranches (exclusive of the 15%
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mobilization fund.) For every payment of loan release, submtssion
of the following requirements shall be made:

a. Statement of Work Accomplishments (SWA) indicating the
percentage of work progress signed by the developer/
contractor, the Community Association, Construction Project
Management and SHFC lnspection Team;

b. Pictures of the projects (showing actual progress);
c. Biiling requirements; and
d. Certificate of Completion and Acceptance (for completed

building)

Prior to the release of each drawdown, SHFC shall determine if the
collateral value of the land, including its improvement is sufficient to
cover the loans based on the repofts submifted by the HDH Team.

7.6 Section 31 - CMP Modalities on the release of Funds for Site Development and
House/Building Construction, however, provides that:

The remaining eighty-five percent (85%) of the funds shall be
released up to twelve (12) tranches based on the work schedules
ancl loan drawdowns submifted by the CNBuilder and duly
approved by SHFC. The last tranche shall be released upon
submission of all documents listed in the Checklist of Requirements
for Loan Re/eases.

7.7 The GNHC, is a near-city relocation intended for 1,406 lSFs living along the
Tullahan River, San Juan River, Lagarian Creek, NPC transmission line,
Tonsuya River and dumpsite.

7.8 The GNHC obtained a loan from SHFC for the acquisition of lot for their
relocation, as well as site development and house construction. The tenurial
agreement entered into by the Community Association (CA) and SHFC is
through usufruct.

7 .9 Board Resolution No. 473, s. 2015, approved the acquisition of a lot with an area
of 120,592 square meters (sq. m.) amounting to P96.474 million, or at P800.42
per sq. m.. Board Resolution No. 517, s. 2016, likewise approved the site
development and building construction amounting to P443.837 million for the
GNHC project located at Brgy. Kaypian, San Jose Del Monte, Bulacan, with the
following cost details:

Cost Amount Share per ISF
Phase I

Lot
Direct Cost.

Subsidy - CSO Service fee
Taxes

Administrative Cost (2,000/lSF)

2,100,000
5,786,415

96,473,600

7,897,416
2,812,OOO

68,616

68,616107,183,016
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Cost Amount Share per ISF
Phase ll

Site Development
Building Cost
lndirect Cost

146J62,287
275,637,713

103,957
196,044

22 037 126
443,837,126 300,001

Total 551,O20,',!42 368,617

7.1O For Phase l, the amount of P77.179 million or 80 per cent of the total lot
acquisition cost of P96.474 million was paid to the lot owners on June 7, 2016.
The lot was covered by the following Transfer Certificates of Title (TCTs).

TCT No. Lot Owner
Land Area

(sq . m.)
2s9965 (M)
T-241761
040-2012003s44
040-2012003945
T60.487 (M)
040-201s036998

B

D

59,949
35,977

5,000
688

18,290
688

76,740,800

4,550,400

14,632,000
550 400

7.11

7.12

120,592 96,473,600

Review of the BCSD Agreement disclosed that the site development and
construction of 1,046 duplex with loft type units shall be fully completed within
one year from the release of the mobilization fund.

Verification of disbursement voucher revealed that the mobilization fee
amounting to P63.270 million was received by the contractor through Check No.

62303 cated September 15, 2016. The project, however, was not completed
within the one-year period stipulated in the Agreement, or on September '15,

2017. Thus, the contractor requested an extension of until June 30, 2018 ofthe
construction period and was approved under Board Resolution No. 613 s. 2017,
citing the reasons enumerated below.

a. Payment scheme;
b. Revision of progress billing payment scheme;
c. Conflict with former land owner for its farming activities;
d. Material supply shortage due to high demand for construction materials;
e. Ready mix concrete high demand;
f. High inflation work;
g. Evident competition of construction projects;
h. Material and labor escalation;
i. Weather constraints; and
j. Encroachment of neighborhood areas.
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7.13 Further verification of records showed that the project remained unfinished and
has incurred delay of one year and six months from the period of extension until
the year-end as shown below:

Particulars
September 1

Septernber 1

5,2
5,2

016
o17

Receipt by the Contractor of the mobilization fee
Completion date per Building Construction and Site

Development Agreement
Completion date after period of extension requested
Length of delay from eltension period until year-end

June 30, 2018
1 year and 6 months

(June 30, 2018 to December 31, 2019)

7.14 Review of the project status report submitted by the HDH Division on September
20'19 also disclosed that the total amount of cost incurred as at even date
amounted lo P337 .482 million, representing 80.01 per cent of the project cost
(site development and building structures) as detailed below:

Amount

Drawdcwn
Check

Number Date

1st

znd

3'd
4th

5rh

6rh

7th

8b (partial)

7 4317
74338
74358
7 4375
74395
74417
744U
74534

08t25t2017
10t0512017
11t24t2017
12t22t2017
02t26t2018
05t1012018
07t31t2018
09/05/2019

58,680,540
26,433,482
33,996,798
24,627,829
34,752,719
29,189,832
16,829,982
23,109,447

78,240,720
1 13,485,363
158,814,427
202,597,234
248,934,192
287,853,968
310,293,944
337,481 ,554

18.55
26.91
37.65
48.03
59.02
68.24
73.56
80.01

247 620,629

7.15 Succeeding drawdowns were discontinued due to issues and concerns on the
project, including encroachment and soil erosion, among others, on some parts
of the lot area.

7.17 Evaluation report dated September 30, 2018 prepared by the Construction
Project lvlanager (CPM) represented by ESCA lncorporated disclosed that there
are unfinished houses on some cluster areas. Further, the CPM recommended
that the contractor provide additional manpower for the immediate construction of
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7.16 We noted that despite the slippage of 14 months (June 30, 2018 to Aug 30,
2019), the 8h partial payment amounting to P23.109 million was released to the
Contractor under Check No. 74534 dated September 5, 2019. Under Article Xl of
the Agreement, time is an essential feature and upon failure of the Contractor to
complete the Scope of Work of the Project on the scheduled completion date,
including extension, liquidated damages shall be paid by the Contractor to the
CA for the delay incurred. Moreover, SHFC is authorized to deduct from any sum
due or will become due to the Contractor, all sums accruing as liquidated
damages. Likewise, under Article Xlll of the same Agreement, SHFC shall have
the option to proceed against the bond, enter the premises and employ any other
contractor to complete the work at the expense of the Contractor.



the 400 incomplete/unfinished houses. No Updated Status Report was furnished
the Audit Team, despite request in a Memorandum dated September 5, 2019
addressed to the Department of Engineering of SHFC.

7.18 Ocular inspection on the project conducted by the Audit Team on September 18,

2019 revealed the following: (see Annex A for images)

a. the project is not yet completed;
b. there are no construction activities ongoing;
c. essential developments, such as road networks, rip rapping works have yet to

be constructed and electrical system for some housing units have yet to be
installed;

d. there are lot areas unfit for housing construction and road ways due to
encroachment issue

e. perimeter fences are lacking, posing risk to the lSFs;
f. some areas are bounded by a creek which may cause soil erosion if water

from the river reaches the gutter;
g. the road from the creek area is already cracked, maybe due to the loss oftop

layer soil caused by the increasing level of water from the rive[
h. reinforcing bars are already rusty and deteriorating and roofs are damaged;

and
i. some unfinished houses are already covered with vines and grasses due to

the growth of vegetation in the area.

7.'19 lnquiry with ESCA, lncorporated during the inspection disclosed that 140 housing
units are not yet completed of which 74 units were affected by encroachment and
66 units were due to susceptibility to soil erosion.

7.21 The continuous delay in the completion of the project prolonged the relocation of
the 1,406 lSFs living in waterways and danger areas, depriving them of decent
and affordable housing, thus defeating the objectives ofthe HDHP. The delayed
completion of the project also caused the non-recovery of funds invested in the
housing prolect.

7.22 We recommended that Management:

a. Conduct a re-survey to determine the actual lot area intended for the
housing project less any encroachment, if any;

b. Require the CA to compute for and demand the liquidated damages
from the Contractor, pursuant to Article Xl of the Building Construction
and Site Development Agreement;
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7.20 Although the housing project was chosen through the People's Plan, there
should have been an assessment made by SHFC to determine if the property is
fit for a housing community so as not to risk the safety and health of the
beneficiaries.
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c. Require the CA to implement the following remedies against the
Contractor as provided in the Agreement:

Give written notice to the Contractor to proceed with the work and
perfoffn in accordance with the agreement; and

if the Contractor fails to do so within seven days from receipt
thereof, the CA and SHFC shall have the option to proceed against
the bond, enter the premises and employ other contractor to
complete the work at the expense of the original Contractor.

d. Subrnit updated Accomplishment Report from the Contractor duly
valiclated by the Department of Engineering of SHFC;

e. As part of due diligence for future projects, ensure that the performance
of the contractor/developer is properly evaluated and that loan releases
are made only on the basis of duly validated Statement of Work
Accomplishment pursuant to Corporate Circular HDH No. 14-002 dated
March 31, 20141 and

f, Conduct the necessary geo-hazard assessment and evaluation on the
lot proposed to be used in the HDH project to determine if it is suitable
for housing and safe from hazard before the approval of its acquisition.

7.23 Management commented that they have taken proper actions to address the
issue on the lot area ofthe two owners for the subject property:

Lot Owner A - still in the process of determining the actual total
encroachment area since there is still a variance between the findings of
the SHFC Department of Engineering and that of the private Geodetic
Engineer of the Landowner as to the actual encroachment area.

Lot Owner C - encroachment has already been addressed and it was
agreed upon that the value of the encroachment shall be deducted by
SHFC from the remaining 20 per cent receivable from the landowner. The
transfer of the title under the name of SHFC is cunently being facilitated.

7.24 Also, Management mentioned that several actions have been taken by SHFC to
move the project forward towards completion, however, there are pending
technical and organizational matters that must be addressed by the Contrac{or
and the HOA, respectively. For the technical matters, the Department of
Engineering, SHFC is in constant communication with the Contractor regarding
the accomplishments and revised timelines or construction schedule. With
regards to the organizational matters, HDH Luzon unit is likewise in constant
communication with the HOA and conducting validation activities to ensure that
the membership thereof is intact.

7.25 Further. as a pre-emptive measure and due diligence, the SHFC Board of
Directors through its Board Resolution No. 807 series of 2019, adopted a new
construction scheme to resolve issues involving unfinished site development and
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building construction and to further protect the interest of the CAs through a by-
phase based construction scheme. ln this scheme, site development and
building construction shall be done by phase or number/set of buildings shall be
constructed first before the Contractor can proceed with another set of building
until all are constructed to ensure that the contractor will finish a number of
buildings before continuing with the remaining building.

7.26 As a rejoinder, we stand by our recommendation that Management required the
CA to demand payment of liquidated damages and immediately avail the
remedies provided in the Agreement against the Contractor.

The Alyansa ng Mamamayan sa Valenzuela Multi-Purpose Cooperative (AMVA-
MPC) Project completed at a cost of P704.082 million under the HDHP, is
inhabited by 853 occupants or 60 per cent of the 1,440 total Member Beneficiaries
(MBs) approved by the Department of the lnterior and Local Government (DILG),
without the necessary documentary requirements prescribed under Corporate
Circular No. 16-046 and Corporate HDH Circular No. 17-013, thus, casting doubt
on the eligibility of the occupants as the intended rightful recipients of the
Program. This would deprive the original MBs living along waterways and danger
zones of their right to own decent and affordable housing units, failing to achieve
the objectives of the Program.

8.1 The Aquino administration has allocated a total of P50 billion for five years for the
lSFs Housing Project which aims to clear the easements along the wateruays in
Metro Manila of structures and to provide in city and near site relocation of the
affected families. This complements the Flood Management Master Plan of the
DPWH which shall impact the Metro Manila population as well as nearby cities.

8.2 Corporate HDH Circular No. 17-013, series of 2017, on the Guidelines on
Substitution for the Completion of the Lease Purchase AgreemenVlease
Agreement and Masterlist of Beneficiaries and Loan Apportionment for HDH
Projects provides the following salient features:

Section 2. Completion of the Lease Purchase Agreement
(LPA)/Lease Agreements (LA) and the Masterlist of Beneficiaries
and Loan Apportionment (MBLA)

The LPNLA and the MBLA shail be submifted to SHFC after the
issuance of Notice of Approval and pior to the statt of site
development and house construction. Xxx

Sectlon 3. Conduct of LPNLA Orientation and LPNLA Signing Day

To ensure that LPNLA are completed and submifted after the
issuance of the Notice of Approval and prior to the staft of the site
development and house construction, an LPNLA orientation and
signing day shall be conducted. This shall be organized and
scheduled by SHFC. Refusal to sign the LPNLA on the signing day
shall be a ground for substitution. The HOA shall immediately
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submit to SHFC the list of names of MBs who refused to sign and
the following requirements for substitution:

a. One government issued lD;
b. Filled up substitution form by the substrtute;
c. MBLA:
d. Notarized HOA Board Resolution recommending the

substitution; and
e. HOAI SHFC ceftification of the absence without justifiable

reason or refusal to sign.

Section 4. Review of the LPNLA and the MBLA

S6.clion 5. Substitution

The follovting are the grounds for substitution of MB's in the List of
Beneficiaries in the HDH projects:

a. Execution of a notarized Voluntary Waiver of Rights; or
b. Disinterested MBs (those who have transfened their residence

to another location or migrated to the province) or MB's who are
absent and missing and cannot be located; or

c. Refusa/ to sign the LPNLA on the signing day; or
d. Death of an MB; or
e. Violation of the MB of the policies rules, regulations and

guidelines of the HOA (provided the same is not illegal or
contrary to the guidelines of SHFC) and/or SHFC or existing
laws or ordinances of the locality; or

f. Final and executory decision from the courts or quasi-judicial
body to substitute the MB.

Sectlon 6. Requirements for Substitution

an the ground of disinterested MBs (those who have transferred
their residence to another location or migrated to the province), or
MB's who are absent and missing and cannot be located, SHFC
shall publish in a newspaper of general circulation the demand to
show carlse why the MB based on his disinterest or indifference
towards the HDH project, should not be substituted. lf there is no
response after the prescribed time stated in the publication, the
HOA shall initiate the substitution process and submit the following
requirements:
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To ensure that the MB's availing of HDH financing are the same
MB's at the staft and at the completion of the housing project, SHFC
shall review and validate prior to the start of the site development
and prior to the occupancy of the housing unit. ln this way, SHFC is
able to monitor the MBs who have remained interested in theh HDH
project.
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a. One govemment issued lD;
b. Filled up substitution form by the substitute;
C. MBLA;
d. Notarized HOA Board Resolution recommending the

substitution; and
e. Proof of publication (from HDH or Loan Processing Group)

Section 7. DILG Validation and Cefiificate of Eligibility (HDH
Projects)

The SHFC/HOA shall immediately submit the Board Resolution
recommending the substitution to the DILG upon receipt of the
following:

8.3 Further, Corporate Circular No. 16-046 dated November 9, 20"16 provides
guidelines on the substitution of MBs which shall be initiated by the CA or SHFC,
to wit:

l. Coverage/Grounds for Substitution

The Maste ist of MBs submitted as part of the CMP loan application
is deemed final and may not be amended during the term of the loan
or extension thereof except when there is a valid substitution of the
MB due to the following grounds:

1 . llB has executed a notarized Voluntary Waiver of Rrghts on
his/her allotted loUunit;

2. MB is an absentee MB (absentee is defined as (a) failure to
occupy the asslgned lot/unit without.justifiable reason when they
are supposed to under existing CMP and HDH guidelines; or (b)
MB has impliedly abandoned the project by transferring hi{her
residence to another location; or (c) general disinterest in the
project by being absent for a long period of time and MB can no
ionger be located): (as amended on CMP Corporate Circular No.
17-048)

3. Existence of final and executory decision or order from the court
or quasi-judicial body directing the MB to be substrtufes;

4. Upon death of an MB and his/her Mottgage Redemption
lnsurance (MRI) proceed is insufficient to cover anears in loan
amoftization; and
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. Voluntary Waiver of Rights; or
o Lapse of the prescibed time stated in the publication; or
. Execution of the HOA affidavit on the commission of a violation;

or
. Execution of HOA certification of refusal to sign on signing day;

or
. Receipt of the final and executory decision to substitute the MB.
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5. When any of the following occurs constituting an event or default
under the LPNLA signed by the MB and the CA with the
community. Xxx

6. Unjustified refusal to sign the LPNLA on the signing day
organized and scheduled by SHFC. (additional item per CMP
Corporate Circular No. 17-048)

ll. Eligibility of Subslilules

To become eligible, all substrtutes must comply with the following
requirements:

a. Eighteen (18) years of age but not more than sixty (60) years
except where the rules of succession apply;

b. Filipino Citizen;
c. Not a real propeiy owner or co-ownec
d. Not a beneficiary of any socialized housing proiect of the

govemment;
e. Not a professional squatter as defined in Republic Act No. 7279;

and
f. Att substitutes musl be living along waterways and other danger

zones as endorsed by the CA and certified by the DILG.

lV. Process and Approval of the Substlfution

A. SHFC shalt conduct necessary due diligence on the application
through the evaluation of documents, checking for double
availment, verification of infomation or data submitted to SHFC'
sending of confirmation letters or posting in public places, conduct
of site visit, and/or such other means that will enable SHFC to
vatidate the facts on the ground. Ihe resu/ts or findings of the
SHFC account officer shall be contained in a memo repoft
containing his/her recommendation on whether or disapprove the
substittlion.

g.4 The AMVA-MPC Project under the HDHP is an in-city relocation site intended for

1,440 families of which 538 MBs came from Barangay T. de Leon abutting

Tullahan River. 513 MBs from Barangay Ugong abutting Tullahan River under

the bridge and 389 MBs from Barangay Ugong under the NPC transmission line.

8.5 Records show that the AMVA-MPC obtained from SHFC, a loan amounting to
Pl07.513 million under the HDHP for the purchase of lot (Phase l) consisting of
42,705 square meters, located at La Mesa St., Barangay Ugong, Valenzuela

city. Additional loan amounting to P540.487 million for Phase ll was obtained for
the site development, building construction and provision of loft. The total project

cost of P704.082 million is accounted for as follows:
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Particulars Total Cost
Share per MB
(total of 1,440

MBs)
Direct Costs (Loan by CA)
Phase 1-

Lot Acquisition 107,512,500 7 4,661
Total for Phase I 107 512,500

Phase ll
Site Development
Building Construction

(forward)
Provision of Loft

58,087,500
410,400,000

0
U

072 000 000
Total for Phase ll 540 487,500 375,339

Total Direct Costs - Phases I and ll 648,000,000 450,000

lndirect Costs (Subsidy)
Phase I

Taxes and Related fees
CSO lncentive
Admin Subsidy

2,880,000
2, 160,000
2,880,000

0
0
0

Total - Phase I 0
Phase ll

CSO lncentive Construction Phase
Post Occupancy Phase
Taxes and Related fees
lnsurance Subsidy

MRI - 1 year advance payment
FAPI - 1 year advance payment

Professional Fees
Technical Plans and related fees

Construction Project Monitoring Fees

576,000
1,440,000

14,400,000

3,188,180
477,857

8,995,125
5,404,875

13,680,000Ca act Buildin and Estate Man ement
Total - Phase ll 48 162 037 0

Total lndirect Costs - Phases I and ll
Total Project Costs - Phases I and ll 704,O82,O37 450,000

8.6 Total loan of the CA amounted to P648.000 million, payable in 30 years at 4.5
per cent interest rate per annum. Loan apportionment amounted to P450,000 for
each of ihe 1,440 MBs with monthly amortization of P1,310 for the first ten years
and with an annual increase of ten per cent per year for ten years and fixed rate
of interest starting on the 11m year up to the 30b year.

8.7 The AMVA-MPC P@ect consists of 30 low-rise, three-storey buildings and each
unit has 39.73 square meters including comfort room and loft. Each building
houses 48 MB families.

8.8 On September 5, 2018, the AMVA-MPC issued a Certificate of Completion and
Acceptance (COCA). The MBs started paying their monthly amortization in
November 2018 until April 2019 through the CA. Due to the rising conflicts
between the MBs and the CA, amortization payments were stopped and the

0

74,661

7,920,000

U

0
0

0
0

U

0
0

56,082,037
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8.9

matter was brought to the attention of the City Mayor of Valenzuela. The direct
payment to SHFC was the scheme made as the alternative mode of payment.

Comparison of the Masterlist of MBs furnished by the DILG against SHFC'S

records as published in the newspaper of general circulation dated November 12,

2013 for the purpose of signing the LPA disclosed that the two records were the
same. Comparison of MBs in the SHFC/DILG Masterlist against the Abstract of
Collections attached to the payments made by AMVA-MPC, however, revealed
that a total of 853 occupants, which corresponds to 60 percent of the 1,440 total
MBs, who are paying monthly amortizations are not included in the published

masterlist of DILG. The said MBs are not in the original list as certified by the
DILG and in the records of the SHFC, as shown below:

Building
No-

Masterlist

(Original MBs)

DILG SHFC

Number of Substitutes
(Payments Based on DILG and Total %

SHFC Masterlists) Number of Per
Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Substitutes Building
201A 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019

1

2
3
4

6
7
8
o

10
11

12
l5
14

16
17
18
19
20
21

23
24
25
26
27
28
,o
30

48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48

48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48

17
33

30
14

40

0
0
0
0
o
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
U

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

22
30
36
45
o

28
JI

JO
19
24
25

.E

22
Jt,
28

29

U

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
U

0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
U

0
0
0
0
0
0
U

U

0
U

0
0
0
0
0
n

0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
U

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1

1

2
0
0
0
0

0
0
1

0
0
0
1

1

0
0
0
0
I
0
0
1

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

27 56.25
17 35.42
34 70.83
37 77 .08
30 62.50
15 31.25
33 68.75
40 83.33
33 68.75
22 45.83
30 62.50
36 75.00
46 95.83 :
8 16.67
28 58.33
32 66 67
26 54.17
36 75.00
19 39.s8
24 50.00
25 52.08
35 79.92
25 52.08
25 52.08
23 47 .92
38 79.',17

28 58.33
25 52.08
27 56.25
29 60.42

1,M0 1,440 84454000 853 59.93

It can be gleaned from the above table that nine substitutes reported in October
2018 were again substituted in November and December, staying only for one
month in the units. This is an indication that these MBs have no intention of

acquiring housing units in the HDH project.

8.'10
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8.11 Interview with the Account Officer disclosed that, as to date, the AMVA-MPC has
not submitted any document pertaining to the substitution of the 853 MBs,
contrary to the Corporate HDH Circular Nos. 17-013 and 16-046, thus, validity of
the substitution as well as approval by proper authorities could not be
ascertained. Moreover, it was also observed that payments from the substitutes
were accepted by SHFC, although no substitution process has been approved by
the SHFC.

8.12 The Account Officer in charge of the project conducted validation of
occupancy/resldency on the project site on March '18 to June 9, 2019. Results of
the validation are as follows:

Building
No.

No. of No. of MBs
Units in the DILG

Visited COE

Occupied but no MBs/
lmmediate families at

home during validation
(not verified with DILG

Masterlist)

Not Occupied
{Vacant)

(not verified
with DILG
Masterlist)

No. of MBs
Not in the
DILG COE

1

2
3
4

6
7

10
11

12

14
15
16
17
18
to
20
21
22

24
25
26
27
l6
29
30

48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48
48

32
12
11
17
5Z
'15

6
10
IO

14
12

44
15
18
24
12
28
28
25
16
20
19
to
8
14
17
10
11

25
13

Jf)
29
14
25
JO

Jtr
JZ
34

0
0
1

1

0
U

1

2
0
0
0
0
0
0
4
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0

0
0
2
2
7
2
2
0
0
1

1

0
5
1

0
1

3
0
1

0
2
2
2
0
0
0
3
1

44
4

29
24
35
17
20
22

26
)7
27
40

JI

Jr)
Total 'l,440 531 859 41 9

1,440 1,440

8.13 Only 531 or 37 per cent of the '1,440 MBs in the Masterlist of the DILG with
Certificate of Eligibility (COE) were validated to be original MBs while 859 MBs,

82



or 60 per cent are not in the Masterlist and are deemed to be undocumented
occupants. The remaining 50 or three per cent, consists of 41 housing units
whrch are occupied but nobody was around at the time of validation, while nine
units are vacanVnot occupied with no personal properties found in the units.
Validation by SHFC against the Abstract of Collection disclosed that six
additional substitutes were found to be paying under a different name.

8.14 The notarized LPAsiLAs which serve as the document of the MBs' commitment
to avail of the HDH financing, were not submitted to SHFC, contrary to Corporate
Circular HDHP No. 15-006, series of 20151 stating that the HOA is required to
submit to SHFC the complete set of notarized LPA'/LA of MBs during the second
to the last drawdown of the funds allotted for building construction. Thus, SHFC
was not able to monitor the MBs who remained interested in the AMVA project,
despite publication in the newspaper dated June 4, 2017, which invited all
members of the AMVA included in the DILG Masterlist to attend the LPA
Orientation and signing on June 14, 15 and 16, 2017. Despite the orientation
made in June 2017 and notices to MBs on their failure to attend and sign the LPA
withoul any valid reason as ground for substitution, the AMVA-HOA has failed to
submit the LPAs/LAs of the MBs to the SHFC.

8.15 The survey conducted through a set of questionnaires given to MBs presently
occupying the units on a random basis disclosed that some substitutes obtained
access to their units by paying a certain amount to the Members/Officers of the
CA without getting Official Receipts in return. Since no documents were
submitted by the CA to SHFC, eligibility of the substitutes and the substitution
process could not be validated.

8.16 The only time that a substitute can avail his/her right to own an HDH housing unit
and have it transferred under his/her name is when the precedent MB is in the
original Masterlist, approved by the DILG, waived his right due to a valid reason
as stated under Corporate Circular No. 1 6-046 on the grounds for substitution.

8. '17 ln order for the substitution process to be given due course by SHFC, the
documents required under Corporate Circular No. 16-045 have to be submitted
by the CtuCooperative to SHFC for validation before the substitution of rights can
take place.

8. 1 8 Failure of the CAJCooperative to submit the required documents of the substitute
MBs, casts doubt on the latter's etigibility as the rightful recipients, depriving the
original MBs their right to own decent and affordable housing units. Moreover,
the objectives of the Program to relocate informal settler families living along
waterways and danger zones were not attained.

8.'1 9 We recommended that Management:

a. Conduct a thorough validation of occupants in the HDH units as against
the original masterlist of MBs from DILG, and submit an Updated
Masterlist of Beneficiaries to the latter for Certification;

1 Period for Completion and Subrnission of Lease/Purchas€ Agreements under the High D€nsity Housing
Program.



b Require the CA to submit to SHFC the required documents for
substitution of the actual occuPants to avoid eviction and unauthorized
substitution of the original MBs; and

c. Abide strictly with the guidelines on substitution of MBs as provided
under Corporate Circular No. 16-046 and Gorporate Circular HDH No'
17-013 to ensure that the recipients are the rightful beneficiaries of the
Program.

Management commented that they have already completed the validation of the
occupints on the HDH Units and submited the results of the said validation to
the Screening Committee of the AMVA Council to finally determine the status of
occupants and the number of member beneficiaries who are qualified.

The Screening Committee is composed of the LGU - Housing Resettlement

Office (LGU-HRO) of Valenzuela, Cooperative Development Authority (CDA),

SHFC, representative from the HOA officers and from non-occupant original

MBs. The Committee will finally identify the status of membership and determine

the number of members who are qualified to vote in the General Assembly.

SHFC consistently emphasized to the Council, including the occupants, that only

those certified and endorsed by DILG are recognized as original MBs and that
substitution requests should be submitted for processing in accordance with the
rules of substitution.

8.20

8.21

8.22

I Public bidding was not conducted for the acquisition of insurance provider to
manage the Group Mortgage Redemption lnsurance (MRl) of loan borrowers of
the CMP and other similar home financing programs of SHFC, contrary to RA No.

9184, othervrise known as the Government Procurement Reform Act, thus,
defeating the purpose of possibly selecting from among participating insurance
brokers i better package for the benefit of the MBs who are low income bracket
borrowers that SHFC caters'

9.'l Section 2, Rule t of the 2016 Revised IRR of RA No. 9184, states lhat in line with

the commitment of the Government of the Philippines (GoP) to promote good

governance and its effort to adhere to the principles of transparency,

iccountability, equity, efficiency, and economy in its process, it is the policy of
the GoP that procurement of Goods, lnfrastructure Projects and Consulting

Services shall be competitive and transparent, and therefore shall undergo

competitive bidding, except as provided in Rule XVI of the lRR.

9.2 The law applies to the procurement of lnfrastructure Projects, Goods and

Consulting Services regardless of source of funds, whether local or foreign, by all

branches and instrumentalities of the government, its departments, offices and
agencies, including government-owned and/or controlled corporations and local
government units, subject to the provisions of Commonwealth Act No. 138.

9.3 SHFC is the lead government agency to undertake social housing programs that
cater to the formal and informal sectors in the low-income bracket and shall take
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charge of developing and administering social housing program
particularly the CMP and the AbolKaya Pabahay Fund (AKPF)
(amortization support program and developmental financing program).

schemes,
Program

9.6 ln December 2006, SHFC entered into a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with
an lnsurance Pool, a consortium of life insurance companies in the Philippines to
administer the Group MRI for the benefit of the SHFC and the bonower's account
under the lending program. The MOA retroacted in January 2006.

9.7 The lnsurance Pool, a private entity is the insurance provider of the NHMFC.
\Nhen SHFC took over the administration of the social housing program for the
formal and informal sectors in the low-income bracket, the existing insurance
provider of NHMFC also took charge of the administration of the turned-over
accounts by the NHMFC and the current accounts maintained by SHFC.
Verification disclosed that no public bidding was conducted in the acquisition of
the insurance provider of the SHFC for its member-borrowers since its creation
on January 20,2004.

9.8 For CYs 2O17 to 2019, SHFC had remitted to the lnsurance Pool the MRI
premiums for the housing loans of the member-beneficiaries, detailed as follows:

Year Amount
2017
2018
2019

47,726,097
44,910,658
47.932,437

9.9 Further verification disclosed that the MOA is silent as to the duration or validity
of the Agreement. Article Vlll of the Agreement on the effectivity/termination only
states that the MOA shall be subject to termlnation by either party by giving
notice to the other within 90 days prior to termination and it is understood that it
shall include/cover those previously enrolled by the NHMFC.

9.10 Management commented that previously, the selection of insurance provider was
done through Quotations and Proposals which were then submitted to the
Chairman and Members of the Board for approval. Further, upon review and
based on the representation of the responsible officers of the SHFC, it appeared
that the proposal of the lnsurance Pool is the most viable and advantageous
among the five insurance companies that submitted proposals.
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9.4 The Mortgage Loan is the real estate loan for housing andior lot purchase,
secured by a real estate mortgage (REM) granted to a mortgagor by SHFC and
repayable by monthly installments over a fixed period of years. lt also covers
reconstructed loans applied by the bonower and repayable up to the extent of
the regular/original loan or as applicable and provided by SHFC.

9.5 All borrowers of the CMP and such other similar home financing programs who
are not beyond the age of sixty-five at take-ouUdate are eligible to the Group
MRl, including duly approved substitute member-beneficiary who was subjected
to the mandated underwriting requirements.



9.1'l We emphasized that pursuant to Section 52.1 of RA No. 9184, Shopping is a
method of procurement of goods whereby the Procuring Entity simply requests
for the submission of price quotations for readily available off{he-shelf goods or
ordinary/regular equipment to be procured directly from suppliers of known
qualifications. This method shall be employed in the following cases:

a. when there is an unforeseen contingency requiring immediate purchase, the
amount shall not exceed P200,000; and

b- procurement of ordinary or regular office supplies and equipment not
available in the Department of Budget and Management - Personnel
Senvices (DBM-PS), in the amount not to exceed P1,000,000.

9.'12 Thus, the process of only submitting price quotations is not applicable for the
procurement of MRI coverage provider considering that for CYs 2019 and 2018,
SHFC disbursed P47.932 million and P44.911 million, respectively, to the
lnsurance Pool. The applicable mode of procurement is public bidding so that
Management could secure the best provider at the lowest practicable price, and
for the benefit of the MBs. SHFC did not adhere strictly to the provisions of RA
No. 9i84, defeating the principle of transparency, accountability, equity,
efficiency and economy.

9.1 3 On December 18, 2019, a meeting was conducted by representatives of the
Legal Affairs and the lnsurance and Community Enhancement Departments of
SHFC with the Deputy Commissioner, lnsurance Commission, to discuss the
procurement of a new insurance provider and other related laws and procedures
in terminating the present insurance service provider, the lnsurance Pool. The
lnsurance Commission advised SHFC to coordinate with GSIS the request to
know if the latter can act as the interim insurer.

9.14 Management further disclosed that to date, the opinion of the Office of the
Corporate Government Counsel (OGCC) on the Trust Agreement in relation to
SHFC's proposed establishment of an lnterim Trust Fund was already endorsed
with the Land Bank of the Philippines (LBP) - Head Office.

9.15 Through public bidding, Management could possibly select from among the
participating insurance brokers, a befter package for the benefit of the MBs who
are low lncome bracket borrowers.

9. 16 We reiterated our prior year's recommendation that Management strictly
comply with the provision of RA No. 9184 to conduct public bidding for the
provisions of the group MRI to loan borrowers.

9. 17 We further recommended that Management fast-track the process of
procuring the services of an insurance provider through public bidding.

9.18 Management commented that actions have been taken to resolve the issue at
hand and informed the Audit Team of the timeline of the events and the status of
its resolutions. To date, OGCC's opinion on the Trust Agreement with LBP has
been endorsed to the Branch Head for revision and consideration and is still
awaiting for their response on the said matter.
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9.19 As a rejoinder, we stand by our audit recommendation that Management fast-
track the process of procuring of the services of an insurance provider through
public bidding.

10. The granting by SHFC of car loans amounting to P70.83'l million to its officers
and Board of Directors (BODs) is contrary to the Car Plan approved by the Office
of the President (OP) of the Philippines for Government Financial lnstitutions
(GFls), as the benefit applies only to those that do not receive subsidy from the
National Government (NG), thus rendering the car plan irregular. Moreover, loan
batance amounting to Pi.794 million of BODS who availed of the car plan after the
publication of Executive Order (EO) No. 24 on February 10,2011, as amended by
the Governance Commission for Government€wned or Controlled Corporations
(GCG) Memorandum Circular (MC) No. 2016-01, still remain outstanding as at
December 31, 2019, but which should have already been due and demandable.

10.1 Rules and Regulations for the lmplementation of the Motor Vehicle Lease-
Purchase Plan for GFI Officials were issued pursuant to Monetary Board
Resolution No. 132 to govern the implementation of the Motor Vehicle Lease-
Purchase Plan for GFI Officers. The nature of the "Plan" involves the acquisition
of motor vehicles to be leased/sold to qualified GFI officers. The plan is part of
the package of fringe benefils for GFI officers to enable them to meet the
demands of their work with more facility and efficiency and provide them with
economic means of coping with the prestige and stature attendant to their
respective positions.

10.2 Section 3 of the said Resolution enumerates the following as eligible under the
Car Plan:

(a) Members of the GFI Governing Board;

(b) Any officer based in the Philippines and holding a petmanent
appointment to his position, irrespective of years of service in
the GFI; Provided, that, he does not have any pending
administrative case, nor is he serving any penalty for an
administrative case.

The benefit shall be limited onlv to GFl's that do not receive subsidv
from the nation al aovernment. (emphasis supplied)

10.3 Verification of the Notices of Cash Allocation received by SHFC disclosed that
from CYs 2009 to 2019, it has received a total subsidy of P8.775 billion from the
National Government.

Year Amount
2009
2010
2011
2012

500,000,000
250,787,664
462,140,244

1,250,000,000
(Forward)
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Year Amount
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

11,300,710
806,919,084
978,968,849

1,975,797,545
1,221,669,800

590,247,183
727 506 829

8,775.337,908

10.4 Section 8 on Compensation Structure of E.O. No. 24 provides that

The compensation of members of the Board of Directors/Trustees
shall have the following components:

a) Compensation shall be in the form of per diems Xxx;
b) Compensation in the form of Performanc*Based lncentives

may be allowed and shall be based on agreed upon metrics
Xxx;

c) Annual Retainer Fees and Stock Plans shall not be allowed;
and

d) Salaries, Allowance, Benefits, and other Bonuses sha/, not be
allowed unless specifically authoized by law or Chaier and
approved by the President, provided that the total of foregoing
compensation and per diems shall not exceed the limits
stipulated under Sections 9 and 10 hereof.

10.5 Section 23 of RA No. 10149, GOCC Governance Act of 2011, provides that the
charters of each of the GOCCs to the contrary notwithstanding, the
compensation, per diems, allowances and incentives of the members of the
Board of Directors/Trustees of the GOCCs shall be determined by the GCG
using as a reference, among others, Executive Order No. 24 daled February '10,

2011. Provided, however, That Directors/Trustees shall not be entitled to
retirement benefi ts as such directors/trustees.

'10.6 GCG MC No. 2016-01 provides the following:

(a) Per Diems, but only up to the limits provided in Section I Xxx
(b) Performance - Based lncentives (PBI) in accordance with

Chepter lV herein.

10.7 As such, the car loan, which is considered as an additional benefit, is not among
the components of a Director's compensation structure in the foregoing statute.

10.8 Moreover, the forgone interests, considered as other fringe benefits without the
approval of the OP, are not consonant with Seclion 5 of PD No. '1597. Should the
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grant of the car loans be approved by the OP, such would be subject to fringe
benefit tax as required under ltem No. 5 of Section 2.33 (B), under the Bureau of
lnternal Revenr-re Regulation (BlR-RR) No. 3-98.

10.9 Records show that 9 1 SHFC officials and BODs availed of the car loan since
2009 under the account Loans Receivables - Others (Car Loan) amounting to
P70.831 million, exclusive of the Registration fees and Comprehensive lnsurance
(RCl) and Mortgage Redemption lnsurance (MRl), as detailed below:

Sala ry Grade/Position No. of Availee/s Total Loan Amount
20*
22
24
26
27
28
29

BODs

1

35
b

31
o
2
.)

7

500,000
21,880,000

3,600,000
25,285,000

6,144,000
1,997,000
3,600,000
7 825 000

91 70,831,000
/Vote: Based on "Schedule of Car Loans" as of December 31,2019 provided by the

Corporation.
* SHFC Officer in Acting capacity or designated as Ad Hoc

10.10 Review of records revealed that three members of the Board have car loan

balances totaling Pl .794 million as at December 31, 2019. These car loans were
availed after the publication of EO No. 24 in the Official Gazette on February 10,

201 1, amended by GCG MC No. 2016-0'1 published on June 22,2016. The loan

balances are already due and demandable, to wit:

Availee Loan Availment End of Term
Outstanding
Loan Balance

B
March 2016
January 2015
January 2016

February 2026
December 2024
December 2025

750,000
600,000
444,375

1,794,375

10.1 "l The granting of car loans by SHFC to its ofiicers is contrary to the Car Plan
approved by the OP for GFls because it receives subsidy from the NG, rendering
the car plan irregular. Moreover, loan balance of members of the Board who
availed of the car plan before the issuance of GCG MC No. 20 16-01 , still remain
outstanding as at December 31, 2019, but which should have been already due
and demandable.

10.1 2 We recommended that Management:

a. Secure a post-facto approval from the OP, through the GCG, of SHFC's
Car Plan to its officers;

b. Require the three members of the Board to immediately settle the
amount of Pi.794 million to comply with the provisions of GCG MG No.
2016-01; and
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c. Suspend the granting of car loans until approval from the OP is
secured.

10.13 Management commented that they will be seeking OP's approval of SHFC's car
plan, through the GCG, and that they will be sending formal letters to the three
members of the Board to require them to immediately settle their loan balances.
The suspension on the grant of car loans, however, is not yet implemented since
this is still subject for discussion.

10.14 As a rejoinder, we sland by our recommendation that Management suspend the
granting of car loan to its employees until approval from the OP is secured.
Continuous grant of car loan without the said approval makes the grant irregular,
which is subject to disallowance. Also, we emphasize that should the grant of car
loans be approved by the OP, such would be subject to fringe benefit tax as
required under ltem No. 5 of Section 2.33 (B), under BIR-RR No. 3-98

I 1. Extraordinary and Miscellaneous Expenses (EME) amounting to P2.990 million
were granted to the President of SHFC through cash advance, contrary to COA
Circular No. 2006-001, defeating the purpose of regulating the incurrence of said
expenditures.

1 1 .1 COA Circular No. 2006-01 dated January 3, 2006 provides the following
guidelines on EME and other similar expenses in Government-Owned or
Controlled Corporations/Government Financial lnstitutions and their Subsidiaries:

ll. lt shall cover extraordinary and miscellaneous expenses and
other similar expenses such as discretionary, bus,ness
development expenses, representation expenses and the like
provided that the purpose of said expenditures peftain to any of
the above ciled expenses under the GAA.

lll. Audit Guidelines as follows:

1- The amount of EME, as authorized in the corporate charter
of the GOCC/GF|s shall he the ceiling in the disbursement of
these funds. Where no such authority is granted in the
corporate chaner and the author$ to grant EME is derived
from the GAA, the amounts fixed thereunder shall be the
ceiling of the disbursements:

2. Payment of these expenditures shall be strictly on a non-
commutable or reimbursable basis;

3. Tlte claim for reimbursement of such expenses shall be
supported by receipts and/or documents evidencing
disbursements; and

4. No portion of the amounts appropriated shall be used for
sa/arleg wages, allowance, intelligence and confidential
expenses which are covered by separate appropriations.
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11.2 Section 47 of the General Provisions of the 20'19 General Appropriations Act
(GAA) on EMEs states that:

Appropriations authorized in this Act may be used for the annual
extraordinary expenses of the following officials with the following
ranks and their equivalent, as maybe determined by DBM, not
exceeding the amounts indicated:

a. P264,000 for each Depattment Secretary;
b. P108,000 for each Depaftment Undersecretary;
c. P60,000 for each Department Assrsfanf Secretary;
d. P45,600 for each of bureau or organization of equivalent

rank, and for each head of Depaftment Regional Office
including General Manager of Local Water Distict Category
A and B;

e. P26,400 for each head of Bureau Regional Office or
organization of equivalent rank including, General Manager
of Local Water District in Category C and D; and

xxx

ln addition, annual miscellaneous expenses not exceeding Seventy-
two thousand pesos (72,000) for each of the officers under the
above naned officials and their equivalent are authorized herein.

For the purpose, Extraordinary and Miscellaneous expenses
include, but not limited to, expenses incuned for:

a. Meetings,sem,nars, conferences;
b. Official entefiainment;
c. Public Relations;
d. Educational, athletic and cultural activities;
e. Contributions to civic or charitable institutions;
f. Membership in govemment assocrafibns;
g. Membership in national professional organizations duly

accredited by the Professional Regulations Commission:
h. Membership in the lntegrated Bar of the Philippines;
i. Subscription to professional technical journals and informative

magazines, library books and mateials;
j. Office equipment and supplies; and
k. Other similar expenses not supported by the regular hudget

allocation.

ln case of deficiency, the requirements for the foregoing purposes
shall be charged against available allotments of the agency
concerned. No portion of the amounts authorized herein shall be
used for payment of salaries, allowances and other similar benefits,
and confidential and intelligence expenses.

11.3 The Discretionary, Extra-Ordinary and Miscellaneous Expenses in the DBM-
approved Corporate Operating Budget (COB) for CY 2019 amounted lo P3.742
million. Since SHFC has no approved Charter, the following allowable rates

ol
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prescribed under the GAA for 2019 will be used as the ceiling for the
disbursements:

Position
Equivalent

Position under
the GAA

GAA

Extraordinary Miscellaneous
Total

DBM-
Approved

coB
President

Executive
Vice
President
5 Vice
Presidents

Department
Undersecretary
Department
Assistant
Secretary
Head of
Offices/Group

108,000

45,600

72,OO0

72,O00

180,000

1 17,600

26,400 72,000 98,400

3,742,090

11.4 Verification of the Subsidiary Ledger revealed that the EME account amounted to
P3.486 million as at December 31, 2019, consisting of expenditures of P495,910
for the Executive Vice President (EVP) and five Vice Presidents (VPs) and
discretionary fund amounling to P2.990 million for the President, as detailed
below:

No' of
Plantilla Position Months

Served
Limit

under GAA

EME

Received
RemarksVariance

President
EVP
VP - Offlce of the
Board Secretary
and Compliance
Officer

VP - Legal
Services and
Visayas and
Mindanao Group
VP - NCR and
Luzon Group
VP - Managemenl
Services Group

10 82,000 82,051

12 98,400 98,305

11

Compulsory
retirement January
30,2016, with
extension up to July
30, 2019

51 Compulsory
Retirement May 6,
2019 with extension
up to November 6,
2019

(e5)

0 Promoted from
Manager to VP on
July 1 , 2019

12
11

7

6

180,000
1'17,600

57 ,400

2,990,135
117,600

50,354

2,81 0,1 35
0

98,400

49,200

98,400

49,200

0

683,000 3,486,045 2,810,091
DBM-approved COB 3,742,090

11.5 As gleaned from the above table, the EME (discretionary fund) of the President
exceeded the annual GAA limit of P180,000 by P2.810 million. The amount of
EME fixed under the GAA was not used as the benchmark.

VP- Treasury
Group

92



11.6 Verification of the Disbursement and Journal Vouchers disclosed that the EME
granted to the EVP and the five VPs were disbursed on a reimbursable basis and
within ihe limits prescribed in the GAA. On the other hand, the EME
(discretionary fund) of the President was granted in the form of Cash Advance of
P250,000 per month which is not in accordance with COA Circular No. 2006-001
which provides that the EME shall be strictly on a non-commutable or
reimbursable basis.

1 1 .7 Validation of the Official Receipts (ORs) attached to the liquidation vouchers
disclosed the following:

a. Monthly cash advance amounting to P250,000 for EME and the
corresponding liquidation are summarized as follows:

Date of
Cash

A€lYance

Check
No_

Amount
Date of

Liquidation
JEV Amount Remarks

01t28t2019

02t22t2019

03128t2019

05/03/2019
05t29t2019
06i02/2019

70125t2019

08i2712019
09/26/2019

11t04t2019
11r04/20,l9

12tX512019

93168
93120
93416

93809
94147

98611

98928

99098
99567

103513

104036

107537
107227

227,000

250,000
250,000
250,000

250,000
250,000

250,000

250,000
250,000

250,000

03/05/2019
03t27 t2019
05/03/2019

05t29t2019

06t26t2019
07t2212019

08t23t2019
09t24t2019
'10/30/2019

11t27 t2019

2019030004
2019030022

2019050003
2019050019

2019060007
2019070018

2019080017
2019090013

201900034

2019110031

250,000

Reimburcement

Reimbursement
Amrualliquidated
on January 2020

2,727,000 2,990,137

b. Liquidation reports of the EME consisted of meals, hotel accommodations,
plane fares and catering services. Review of supporting documents disclosed
that meal expenses representing 91 per cent of the total EME, were
supported with two to 15 ORs a day, including weekends and holidays, as
shown below:

Particulars Amount Percentaqe
Meals
Hotel accommodations
Plane fares and land transportation
Rebooking Fees

2,723,622
6,980

146,317
8,426

104,790

91.09
l3

4.89
.28

3.51Catering Services
2 990,13s 100.00

Meal expenses for the services rendered by the catering sewice during
weekends and holidays are liquidated without the necessary documents that
will prove that the meals were intended for official business.

22,062
223,871
249,784

249,886
249,538

249,851

249,702
249,927
249,279

249,730

249,788
238,069

258,650
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c

Period of Cash Advance Liquidation Documents/ORs
September, October, November, December
September, October November
August, September, October

11 .8

11.9 We recommended and Management agreed to:

a. Limit the allocation and disbursement of funds within the rates
prescribed under the GAA;

b. Disburse funds for EME strictly on a non-commutable or reimbursable
basis pursuant to COA Circular No. 2006-001 ; and

c. Exercise prudence in the utilization of funds to ensure that the EME are

used only for the purpose for which they are established.

Despite the monthly grant of cash advance, the ORs supporting the monthly
liquldation pertained to the previous three to four months as shown below:

December 2019
November 2019
October 2019

Thus, disbursements incurred under the EME granted through cash advance is
contrary to COA Circular No. 2006-001, defeating the purpose of regulatang the
incurrence of said expenditures.

12. Excess retirement benefits amounting lo P426,215 were paid to two personnel'

due to inclusion in the computation of services rendered during the period of
extension upon reaching the compulsory retirement age of 65, contrary to
implementing guidelines 

-of 
RA No. 7641 or the Retirement Pay Law and section

,12i, of the ZOiZ Omnibus Rules on Appointnents. illoreover, other personnel

allowances were included in the basic salary as retirement pay base, rendering

the disbursement excessive pursuant to COA Circular No' 2012-03'

12.'l Section 4 of the rules implementing RA No. 7641 provides that:

4.1 Optional Retirement - tn the absence of a retirement plan or
oiher appticabte agreement providing for retirement benefits of
employees in an estabtishment, an employee may retire upon

reaching the age of sixty (60) years or more if he has served for
at least five (5) years in said establishment.

4.2 Computsory Retirement - Where there is no such plan or
agreement refened to in the immediately preceding su-bsection,

an employee shatt be retired upon reaching the age of sixty-five
(65) Years.

4.3 upon retirement of an employee, whether optional or
computsory, his services may be continued or extended on a
case to iase basls upon agreement of the employer and
emPloYee.
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4.4 Service Requirement - The minimum length of service of
seryice in an establishment or with an employer of at least five
(5) years required for entitlement to retirement pay shall include
authorized absences and vacations, regular holidays and
mandatory fulfilment of a military or civic duty.

12.2 ln relation thereto, Section 5 of the Act enumerales the retirement benefits which
the retiree is authorized to receive, viz:

Sectrr:n 5. Retirement Benefits

5.1 ln the absence of an applicable agreement or retirement plan,
an employee who retires pursuant to the Act shall be entitled to
retirement pay equivalent to at least one-half (1/2) month salary
for every year of service, a fraction of at least six (6) months
being considered as one whole year.

5.2 Components of % Month Salary - For the purpose of
determining the minimum retirement pay due an employee
under this Rule, the term "one-half month salan/' shall include
all af the following:

a. Fifteen (15) days of salary of the employee based on his
latest salary rate. As used herein, the term "salary" includes
all remunerations paid by an employer to his employees for
services rendered during the nomal working days and
hours, whether such payments are fixed or ascertained on a
time, task, piece of commission basig or other method
calculating the same, and includes the fair and reasonable
value, as determined by the Secretary of Labor and
Employment, or food, lodging, or other facilities customarily
f urnished by the employer to his employees. The term does

a ments and other monet benefit wh ren
considered as pad of or inteqrated into the reqular salary of
the emplovees: asis supplied)

b. The cash equivalent of not more than five (5) days of
service incentive leave;

c. One-twelfth (1/12) of the 1{ month pay due to the
employee; and
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d. All other benefits that the employer and employee may
agree upon that should be included in the computation of
the employee's retirement pay."
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12.3 Meanwhile, Section 129 of the 2017 Omnibus Rules on Appointments provides
that:

Section 129. No person who has reached the compulsory retirement
age of 65 years can be appointed to any position in the government,
except to a pimarily confidential position.

A person appointed to a primarily confidential position who reaches
the age of 65 ls considered automatically extended in the seNice
untii the expiry date of his/her appointment or until his/her services
are earlier terminated.

The extension of service of a person who will reach the compulsory
retirement age of 65 years may be allowed for a peiod of six (6)
months and in meritorious circumstances may be extended for
another 6 months. The request for extension shall be made by the
Head of Office. The same shall be filed with the Commission not later
than 3 months pior to the date of the official/employees' compulsory
retirement s rendered du the riod of e hall
lonqer be credited as oovernment service. (Emphasis supplied)

12.4 Section 5.1 of COA Circular No. 2012-03 states that:

The term "excessive expenditures" s,gnifies unreasonable expense
or expenses incurred at an immoderate quantity and exohitant price-
It also includes expenses which exceed what is usual or proper, as
well as expenses which are unreasonably high and beyond iust
measure or amount. They also include expenses tn excess of
reasonable limits.

12.5 Review of the retirement pay computation was limited only to two out of four
retired employees since the disbursement vouchers for the remaining retirees
were still in process. The review disclosed an overpayment of P426,215 between
the amount paid and the audited amount based on the criteria set forth under
Section 5, Retirement Benefits of the IRR of RA 7641. Details are shown below:

Retiree A Retiree B
Birthdate
Date Hired
Date Retired
Date of Compulsory Retirement
E)dension of service
Wth President or BOD approval
Year of Service

01130t1954
11t1612006
07t30t2019
01t30t2019

6 months

12

10/15/1953
1111612006
04t15t2019
10t15t2018

6 months
Y

12
1/2 of Basic Salary
Cash Equivalent (daily rate x 5 days)
1112 of 131n month Pay Due

P65,824
30,264
10,97',l

P48, 156
22,141

8,026
Total Components of 1/2 monthly salary

(retir:ement benefit base)
(ForWarcl)

107,059 78,323
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Retiree A Retiree BShould Be Retirement Gratuity
(Retirement benelit base x 12 years)

Actual Retirement Paid

1,284,708 939,876

561 477 089 322
Overpa yinent P276,769 P'.t49,446

Daily Rate : Retiree A = P6,052.78; Retiree B = 
p4,428.20

12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

B_oth. retirees extended their government service for six months with the approvalof the President and Board of Directors. Validation of retiremeni pay
computation, however, disclosed that a total of 13 years of service *as ,""d ai
factor in the total gratuity paid to Retiree A, instead of 12 years and two months.

Moreover, the six-month extension of service lacks the approval of the Civil
Service Commission which serves as the central personnel agency of the
Government. Payments of retirement gratuity were sourced from the government
funds included in their COB approved by Department of Budget and
Management (DBM).

ln addition, other benefits such as PERA, meal allowance, rice allowance, among
others, were included as part of the retirement benefit base for both retireesl
contrary to Section 5_2 of RA No. 7641 and the implementing guidelines of pD
No. 851. lt is prescribed under the RA No. 7641 that components of % month
salary does not include cost of living allowances, profilsharing payments and
other monetary benefits which are not considered as part of or iniegrited into the
regular salary of the employee. The inclusion of these allowances also
contributed in the overpayment of retirement gratuity to the two retired officers.

The computation for the 1112 of 13th month pay also included other benefits and
allowance, contrary to the implementing guidelines of presidential Decree No-
851 , to wir:

The 13k Month Pay Law" which defined 1!h month pay as 1/12 of
the basic salary of an employee within a calendar year. And further
defined Basic Pay as all remunerations or earnings paid by an
employer to an employee for services rendered but may not inctude
cost-of-living allowances granted and all allowances and monetary
benefits which are not considered or integrated as paft of the regulir
or basic salary of the employee.

12.10 Further, sHFC has no retirement plan established for its employees, nor policy
guidelines formulated for the processing and computation oi the benefits. The
formulation of implementing rules and regulations in the processing and
computation of retirement pay is necessary to carry out the provisions of RA No.
7641, after consultation with the GCG which is mandated by the law to act on
behalf of the government in maintaining the operations of GOCCs.

12-11 Foregoing considered, the retirement benefits of p426,21s paid to the two retired
personnel is considered excessive under coA circular No. 2012-03 due to the
inclusion in the computation of the services rendered during the period of
extension upon reaching the compursory retirement age of 65 ind incrusion of
other personnel allowances in the basic salary as retirement pay base, contrary
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to the implementing guidelines of RA No. 7641 and Section 129 of the 2017
Omnibus Rules on Appointments.

12.12 We reccmmended that Management:

Require the retirees concerned to
retirement gratuity totaling P426,215;

refund the overpayment of

Establish a retirement plan and formulate policy guidelines harmonized
with the provisions of RA No. 7641 to be approved by the governing
Board and submitted to GCG for its review and approval; and

Revisit the composition ol lhe y2 month salary used as factor in the
computation of retirement benefits and ensure future retirement pay-
outs are in accordance with the criteria set forth in the IRR of RA No.
7641.

12.13 Management commented that other benefits such as PERA, meal allowance, rice
allowance, etc. included in the computation of the retirement gratuity are
enumerated in Section 5.2 of RA No. 7641. Since these are being received on a
monthly and/or flxed basis, thus had logically been conceptualized to compose
the totality of the remunerations being paid to an employee. Further, these
allowances are sustained in the CBA since 2008.

12.14 On the olher hand, prior to the implementation, Management referred the matter
to the CSC for an opinion, however, it was declined since SHFC is a private
corporation whose personnel are covered by Labor Laws, Thus, Management
consequently focused its compliance based on Labor Laws.

12.15 As a rejoinder, we highlight Section 5.2 (a) of RA No. 7641 which provides further
exception in the general rule wherein the term salary excludes cost of living
allowances, profit-sharing payments and other monetary benefits that are not
considered as part of or integrated into the regular salary of employee.

12.16 This finds support in the case of San Miguel Corporation vs. Hon. Amado G.
lnciong, wherein the catch-all exclusionary phrase "all allowances and monetary
benefits which are not considered or integrated as part of basic salary" shows the
intention to strip the basic salary of any and all additions which may be in the
form of allowances or fringe benefits.

12.1 7 Furthermore, in the CY 2019 Edition of Handbook on Workers' Statutory
Monetary Benefits published by the Bureau of Working Conditions, Department
of Labor and Employment, the "one-half month salary' shall include the following:
a) 15 days salary based on the latest salary rate; b) cash equivalent of five days
service leave; and c) one-twelfth (1112) of the thirteenth-month pay. Thus, it is
equivalent to 22.5 days.

12.18 ln the same handbook, the minimum retirement pay is equal to the Daily Rate
multiplied by 22.5 days multiplied by the number of years in service. Lastly, in
the case of Cebu lnstitute of Technology vs. Ople, it was ruled that existing laws

a.

b

c
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exclude allowances from basic salary or wage in the computation of the amount
of retirement and other benefits payable to an employee.

12.19 With regard to the comment of Management that the mentioned allowances are

sustained in their CBA since 2008, we respectfully disagree. There is no

retirement plan set up by SHFC in their CBA, hence, such allowances should not

be included in the computation of retirement pay

12.20 On the other note, we reiterate that a total of '13 years of service instead of 12

years and two months was used as factor in the total gratuity paid to Retiree A'
ihe years of service of an employee shall cease upon reaching the.mandatory

". age of 65 therefore, services rendered during the extended period shall no longer

be credited as part of employment service

12.21 ll can be observed that the total years of service used as factor for Retiree B is

correctly counted until the mandatory retirement age of 65. .lt translates .that
SHFC became aware of this error and adjusted their computation accordingly in

the subsequent retirement of its employees.

12.22 Accordingly, we stand by our recommendation for Management to require the

refund of the excess retirement gratuity of P426,215 paid to two retirees'

13. Monetization of leave credits was granted at more than the allowable 50 per cent

of leave credits without the supporting documents required under sections 22, 23

and 25 0f the omnibus Rules on Leave and coA circular No. 2012{01 . Moreover,

non-deductionofthemandatoryfive.dayforcedleavepriortothegrantof
monetization casts doubt on the reliability of the employee leave records.

13.1 The Omnibus Rules on Leave prescribe the guidelines on the monetization of

accumulated earned leave credits of ofiicial and employees, to wil:

Sec. 22. Monetization of leave credits - Officials and employees in

the career and non-career service whether pemanent, temporary'

casual or coterminous, who have accumutated fifteen (15) days of VL

credits shalt be allowed to monetize a minimum of ten (10) days;

provided that at least five (5) days is retained after-monetization and
'provided fufther that a maximum of thirty (30) days may be

monetized in a given Year.

Sec. 23. Monetization of 50%o or more of vacatiort/sick leave credits -

Monetization of fifty percent (50%) or more of the accumulated leave

creclits maybe allowed for valid and iustifiable reasons such as:

a. Health, medical and hospitat needs of the employees and

immediate members of the hi{her family;
b. Financiat aid & assislarce brought about by force maieure events

such as catamities, typhoons, fire, earthquakes and accidents

that affect the life, limb and propefty of the employee and his/her

immediate familY;
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c. Educational needs of the employee and the immediate members
of his/her family;

d. Payment of moftgages and loans which were entered into for the.
benefit or which inured to the benefit of the employee and his/her
immediate family;

e. /n case of extreme financial needs of his/her immediate family
where the present sources of income are not enough to fulfill the
basrc needs such as food, shelter and clothing;

f- Other aralogous cases as maybe determined by the
Commission.

The monetization of 50% or more of the accumulated leave
credits shall be upon the favorable recommendation of the
agency head and subject to availability of funds. xxx

Sec. 25. Five days forced/mandatory leave - AII officials and
emptoyees with 10 days or more vacation leave credits shall be
required to go on vacation leave whether continuous or intermittent
for a minimum of five (5) working days annually under the following
conditions:

(a) xxx

(d) Those with accumulated vacation /eave ofless than ten (10) days
shalt have the option to go on forced leave or not. However,
officials and employees with accumulated vacation leave of
fifteen (1 5) days who availed of monetization for days under
Sectiotl 22 hereof, shall still be required to go on forced leave.

13.2 COA Circular No. 2012-001 dated June 14, 2012 provides guidelines on the
documentary requirements in case employees opt to monetize 50 per cent of
their unused leave credits.

1 3.3 As a general rule, employees can only apply for the money value of their unused

vacation leave credits for a maximum of 30 days in a given year. Provided,

however that at least five days are retained after the monetization which

correspond to the forced or mandatory leave pursuant to section 25 of the said

Omnibus Rule.

13.4 On the other hand, section 23 is construed as an exception to the general rule

under Section 22. lt is an extraordinary measure to relieve an employee from

financial difficulties that may be allowed only for valid and justiflable reasons

subject to the discretion of SHFC's Management and availability of funds'
Accordingly, for purposes of monetization, vacation leave credits must be

exhausted before sick leave credits may be used, provided further it has valid

and justifiable reasons and necessary documents are submitted to support the
claim-
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13.5 Review of documents of 50 out of 122 employees who have monetized 50
percent of their accumulated leave credits revealed that the monetization that
were approved and paid are in excess of that allowed under the Omnibus Law as
shown in the following sample computations:

Allowed
per

Year

Monetized Monetized
Leave Amount

No. of
days in
excess

Remarks

VP1 170.750 115.250 286.000 30 275 1,719,300 245 -Monetized
leave
credits
before
retirement.
-Available
balance
before
reliremenl:
VL-5; SL-5
Monetized
more than
ten days of

Monetized
more lhan
ten days of

Monetized
more than
ten days of

Monetized
more than
ten days of

cEo lv 14.831 16.625 31.456

Acct.
Specialist

fi.125 12.125 48.250 30

OIC-Dept. 24.750 24.250 49.000 10

Manager

orc 22.104 16.604 38.708 10

0 20 87,433 20

38 96,909 8

37 204,711 27

27 105,228 ',17

Employee
Leave

Credits
Monetized Remarks

Messenger

121.5 none 100 -No forced leave deducted
-No letter-request for disapproval
of forced leave

-Lacking documents to monetize
50% of SL & VL

-No forced leave deducted
-Lacking documents to monetize
50% of SL and VL

121.85 none 110

(Forward)
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Name of
Employee

Available Leave Credits

VL SL Total

13.6 Review disclosed that the monetizations availed by personnel who exceeded the

limitations of 50 per cent of their total unused leave credits were not supported

with valid documents, such as medical records, statement of accounts of long

outstanding bills, and other documents to support and justify the monetization of

accumuiat;d earned leave credits as required under the Omnibus Rules'

13.7 Further verification of the leave credits revealed that the five-day mandatory/

forced leave was not availed by employees with available leave credits of more

than .15 days prior to the availment of the monetization, contrary to Section 25 of

the Omnibus Law. Details of some sampled monetizations follow:

Forced
Leave

Supervising Acct.
Specialist



Employee
Leave

Credits
Forced
Leave Monetized Remarks

vP2 ?05 none 60

286 none 275

-No forced leave deducted
-No letter-request for disapproval
of forced leave

-Lacking documents to monetize
50% of SL and VL

-No forced leave deducted
-Request to monetize all leave
credits before retirement

-No forced leave deducted
-No letter-request for disapproval
of forced leave

-Lacking documents to monetize
50% of SL and VL

VP1

ProjectEvaluation 123.5
Officer

none 110

13.8 The monetization of leave credits at more than the allowable 50 per cent of leave
credits without the required supporting documents is contrary to Sections 22, 23
and 25 of the Omnibus Rules on Leave and COA Circular No. 2012-001.
Moreover, non-deduction of the mandatory five-day forced leave prior to the
grant of monetization casts doubt on the reliability of the employee leave records

13.9 We recommended that Management:

a. Ensure that the mandatory five-day forced leave is deducted prior to
monetization of leave credits for employees with accumulated vacation
leave balance of 15 days or more;

b. Require the employees who monetized 50 per cent or more of their
leave credits to submit the necessary documents to support their claim
in compliance with COA Circular No. 2012-001 ; and

c Prospectively, ensure that monetization of accumulated earned leave
credits by qualified employees is in accordance with the provisions of
COA Circular No. 2012-001 and Sections 22,23, and 25 of the Omnibus
Rules on Leave.

Management commented that five-day mandatory forced leave is being deducted
on an annual basis, that is, if an employee has unused forced leave at the end of
the year', it will be deducted to the leave credits of the employee prior to his/her
availment of monetization of the following year. Also, it was mentioned that a
memorandum was issued as support to the exemption of various personnel from

the utilization of unused forced vacation leave due to exigency of service which is
allowed under Section 25 (b) of the Omnibus Rules.

Further, Management explained that as part of compliance with Section 22 of the
Omnibus Rules on Leave, the reasons/justifications of employees in availing 50
per cent or n'tore of their unused leave credits are being indicated thru
memos/request in line with SHFC's policy. At the same time, they will
prospectively align said existing policy with the requirements specified under
COA Circular No. 2012-001-

13.10

13.11
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'13.12 As an audit rejoinder, we stand by our recommendation that exemption from the
mandatory forced leave be initiated by the concerned employee to be approved
by the immediate supervisor. The exemption from forced leave defeats the
purpose of providing the employee the opportunity to take paid time off from job
responsibilities in order to maintain work efficiency and effectivity.

13.13 Moreover, the monetization of 50 per cent or more of accumulated vacation and
sick leave should be properly supported with documentary requirements such as
medical certificates, proof of indebtedness, etc. to ensure that the reasons
indicated in the leave form request are valid and justifiable.

'14. The actual amount utilized for the Loans Outlay amounting to P2.560 billion
exceeded by P50.962 million or two per cent the CY 2019 DBM approved COB
amounting to P2.509 billion, contrary to the provisions of Section 15 of Executive
Order (EO) No. 518, series 1979, and Section  (1) of PD No. 1445, thus, defeating
the purpose of ensuring the proper allocation of funds and that the
disbursements and/or accruals are within the authorized amounts,

14.1 EO No. 518, series of 1979 also known as the Government Corporate Budget
EO of 1978, provides guidelines on the review and approval of the budgets of
GOCCs. Section 15 of the Order states that:

Expenditure Authority. A/o govemment-owned or controlled
corporations shall incur obligations or make payments for cunent
operating or capital expenditures after the beginning of each
calendar year without budget as approved under this Order.

14.2 Section 4('l) of PD No. 1445 provides that:

Fundamental Principles - Financial transactions and operations of
any government agency shall be governed by the fundamental
principles set forth hereunder, to wit:

(1) No money shall be paid out of any public treasury or depository
except in pursuance of an appropriation law or other specific
statutory authority

14.3 Conditions set under the CY 2019 approved COB:

a. All expenditures, whether for cunent operating expenditures or
Capital Outlays (COs) shall be made within the limits of available
funds realized from corporate receipts, authorized bonowings
and National Government budgetary support either in the form of
subsidy, equity or loans outlay.

b. Any increase in the approved principal CQB in the course of the
budget year, as may be warranted by additional corporate
receipts, shall require the submission of a supplemental COB to
cover the additional expenditures.

c. Xxx
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14.4 Under existing government regulations, each GOCC, prior to the beginning of
the fiscal year, shall prepare an operating budget consisting of estimated
expenditures and borrowings which shall cover the current operating and capital
expenditures to be approved by its BOD and recommended for submission to
DBM for its review and approval. The DBM-approved COB serves as the
authority to incur expenses and disburse funds within the appropriated amounts.

14.5 Of the total proposed COB amounting to P16.302 billion of SHFC for CY 2019,
only P3.303 billion was approved by DBArl. Comparison of the DBM approved
COB against tlre actual utilization for the year revealed a net under-utilization of
P28.386 million. The amount was net of the aggregate underutilization of
Personnel Services (PS), Maintenance and Other Operating Expenses (MOOE)
and Capital Outlay (CO) amounting to P79.348 million against the overutilization
in Loans Outlay amounling to P50.962 million, details as follows:

Pa rticu lars

SHFC
Proposed

Budget
a

DBM-Approved
Budget

b

Budget
Utilization

c

Varlance
Over/(Under)

Utilization
d=b-c

PS 315,451,000 307,678,565
MOOE 2,366,078,000 401,330,690
co 165,229,000 84,308,111
Sub-total 2,846,758,000 793,317,366
LoansOutlay 13,455,26'1,000 2,509,340,'182

288,102,496
373,058,314

52,808,925
713,969,735

2,560,301,960

(19,576,069)
(28,272,376)
(31,499,186)
(79,347,631)

50,961,778
Total 16,302,019,000 3,302 ,657,548 3,274,271,695 (28,385,853)

14.6 The SHFC's incunence of overutilization of the Loans Outlay amounting to
P50.962 million in CY 2019 is not in conformity with EO No. 518, PD No. '1445

and the conditions set in the approved COB.

14.7 lVloreover, the existing implementing government rules and regulation described
COB as the financial roadmap of operations to ensure that proper allocation of
funds and the disbursements and/or accruals are within the authorized amounts.
It is inherent, however, that there are instances that the approved budget is no
longer sufficient to cover the necessary disbursements or, likewise approved
suppl€mental budget shall serve as the authority for paying or incurring the
same. Records, however, show that SHFC was not able to submit a
supplemental budget and secure further approval from DBM.

14.8 Thus, the actual utilization amounting to P2.560 billion for the Loans Outlay
exceeded by P50.962 million or two per cent the CY 2019 DBM approved COB
amounting to P2.509 billion, contrary to the provisions of EO No. 518, series
1979 and Section 4,(1) of PD No. 1445, thus, defeating the purpose of ensuring
the prcper allocation of funds and that the disbursements and/or accruals are
within tne authorized amounts.

!
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14.9 We recommended that Management:

a. Explain the causes of the excess of the actual expenses over the
budget for loans outlay to ensure that factors attributed to variances are
considered in the future budget planning; and

b. Ensure that expenditures are incurred and paid within the limit provided
under the DBM approved COB.

Management explained that the Community Associations on High Density
Housing Projects (CAs - HDHP) only submitted their applications in the last
quarter of CY 2019. Lots chosen by the CAs have to be acquired by SHFC in

advance after encountering issues with the resettlement sites. ln the case of
People's Plan Ville HOA with 200 lSFs, their choice of property is in Pureza St.
which is owned by the GSIS and Kamaynila HOA for the 894 lSFs and Gulayan
Pilapil for the 440 lSFs which are owned by the BSP. These properties need to
be acquired before the expiration of the SARO. ln addition, these projects were
already accounted for when SHFC proposed a budget for Loans Outlay of
P13.455 billion but the DBM only approved P2.509 billion.

As audit rejoinder, we stand by our recommendation that Management incur
expenditures only up to the extent of the DBM approved budget.

14.10

14.11

15. Remittance of Divideilds to the National Government

Dividends remitted to the National Government (NG), through the Bureau of the
Treasury (BTr) were not computed in accordance with the provisions of RA No.
7656 and its Revised lmplementing Rules and Regulations (RIRR) dated August 5,

1998 and January 26,2016, resulting in under-remittance of dividends amounting
to P13.607 million for CYs 2014 to 2018'

15.1 RA No. 7656, or the GovernmenlOwned or Controlled Corporations (GOCC)

Dividend Law, requiring GOCCs to declare dividends under certain conditions to
the National Government and for other purposes as approved on November 9,

1993, provides:

SEC.3. Dividends. - All government-owned or -controlled
corporations shall declare and remit at least fiv percent (50%) of
their annual net earnings as cash, stock or property dividends to the
National Govemment.

15.2 The Act discusses the definitive purpose of the State to declare a policy for the
NG to realize additional revenues from GOCCS, without impairing their viability
and the purposes for which they have been established, shall share a substantial
amount cf their net earnings to the NG.

15.3 The Revised IRR (RIRR) was issued effective January 26, 2016 to amend the
IRR issued on August 5, 1998. lt simplifies the assessment of dividends through
the use of the Corporate lncome Tax Returns duly filed with the BIR or

authorized agent banks as the basis for dividend computation. lt also
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emphasizes more transparent computations and the efficient administration of
dividend assessments by removing book earnings that have no effect on cash
balances.

15.4 Salient features of the Act, are summarized as follows:

R.h./lRR Applicable
Years Dividend Base Mode/Schedule of

Remittance
RA No. 7656
approved on
November 9, 1993

1993.'r997 Net Earnings* At least 50% of their annual
net eamings as cash, stock or
property dividends.

IRR of RA No.
7656 dated
August 5, '1998

1998-2015 Net Earnings* At least 50% of their annual
net eamings as cash, stock or
property dividends; shall remit
to lhe Bureau of Treasury
(BTr) at leasl fiftv oercent
(507o) of the dividend due on
or before April 30 followino
the dividend year, based on
the financial statements
submitted to Commission on
Audit (COA) for audit. The
balance thereof shall be
computed based on the COA
audited net and shall
be remitted lo the BTr within
seven (7) workino davs after
receipl of the COA Annual
Audit Report for the dividend
year.

Revised IRR of
RA No. 7656
dated January
26,2016

(Forward)

2016-
present

Net Earnings*
Shall iBclude:
(i) lncome subjecl to income
tax, as provided in the Annual
Income Tax Retum2; net of
tax;
(ii) lncome subject to final tax,
as provided in the Annual
lncome Tax Retum Schedule
on Supplemental
lnformation3, net of tax; and
(iii) lncome exempt from tax,
as provided in the Annual
lncome Tax Retum Schedule
on Gross lncome/Receipts
Exempl from lncome Tat',
net of lax

Provided, further that:
1. Net earnings shall not

include program subsidies
and subsidies qranled to

On or before 15 l\rav of each
year, at least fifty (50%) oJ
their Net Earnings as Cash,
Stock and/or Property
Dividends to the National
Govemment. Simultaneous
with the payment of the
Dividends to the BTr, the
GOCC shall send the DOF: (i)
schedule showing the
computation of Dividends due
(copy furnish BT0; (ii) copv
of its Annual lncome Tax
Retum. duly received bv the
BIR or rized aqenl
banks, for the relevant
Dividend Year; (iii) Financial
Statements for the relevant
Dividend Year dulY received
bv the BIR or aulhotizd
aoent bank; and (iv)
schedules on program

, BIR Form No. 1702 as ofJunc 2013. I,art lV - Computation ol Tax lor BIR Form No. 1702-RTi Schedule I Computation ofTax per

T6,\ l{egirne for BIR Form No. 1702-\Dq Part lV - Computation ofT&\ for BIR Form No. 1702-EX.
I BIR Form No. l?02 as ollune 2013. Schedule 12 fo. BIR Form No- 1702-RT; Schedule 13 for BIR Form No. 1702-MX; Schedule 9 for

BIR Foml No. 1702-EX.
I BIR Form No. 1702 as ofJune 2013. Schedule 13 for BIR Form No. 1702-RI: Schedule 14 for BIR Form No. 1702-MX; Schedule l0 for

BIR Foml No. 1702-Ex.
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R.A./IRR
Applicable

Years
Dividend Base

Moderschedule of
Remittance

settle tax obligalions for
prior years if included in the
income slatement as
revenues, and actual
disbursements of program
subsidies treated as
expenses. tn case of
operating subsidies, these
shall be considered part of
revenues;

2.Net earnings shall not
include dividend income
remi(ed directly to the
National Govemment in
compliance with Section
5(h) of these Rules; and,

3.This delinilion of Net
Earnings shall likewise
apply to GOCCS that are
exempted from income tax.

subsidies and subsidies
granted to settle tax
obligalions for prior year/s
treated as revenues, and
actual disbursements of
program subsidies treated as
expenses. The schedules
should be signed by the
GOCC'S chief execulive
officer.

Net Earnings - shall mean income derived from whatever source, whether
exempt or subject to tax, net of deductions allowed under Section 29 of National
lnternal Revenue Code (NIRC), as amended, and income tax and other taxes
paid thereon, but in no case shall in any reserve for whatever purpose be allowed
as deduction from net earnings.
Same definition with the previous IRR except Section 29, now Section 34, of the

amended NIRC under Presidential Decree No. 1158 and Republic Act No 8424
(Tax Reform Act of 1997).

15.5 The format in the computation of dividends as provided in the IRR of 1998 and

RIRR of 2016 are Presented below:

A. First Payment*

Net lncome After Tax (Based on report submifted to COA)
Add: Allowance for Bad Debts

Other Types of Provisionary Expenses
Other Deductions Not Allowable Under Section

29 of the National lnternal Revenue Code

xxx
xxx

xxx

xxx

xxx(NrRC)

Less: Bad Debts Written-Off xxx
xxx

xxx

xxxOther Types of Actual Losses for the Year
Dividend Base
Multip lied bv the Dividend Rate

xxx
xxo/o

Dividend Payable xxx
50YoMultipl ied by 50%
xxxDividend Due on or before April 30
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B. Second Payment**

Divid€nd Payable (To be recomputed following 1"1 payment
method based on COA Audit Report)

Less: 'l"t Pavment Made

xxx

xxx
Balance of Dividend Due xxx

* To be made on or before April 30 following the dividend year.
*'To be made within 7 working days upon receipt of COA Audit Report.

Net Taxable lncome-Regular
Less: lncome Tax Due

xxx
30%

Net Taxable lncome-Regular, net of tax
lncome Subject to Final Tax
Less: Final Tax

xxx
xxx
xxx

lncome Subject to Final Tax, net of tax
Net Taxable lncome-Regular, net of tax

xxx
XXX

XXXlncome Subject to Final Tax, net of tax
Total
x

xxx
500/

Dividends Due xxx

15.6 On February 04, 2020, the Team sought clarifications, through personal
intervielv with a representative from the Department of Finance - Corporate
Affairs Group (DOF-CAG) regarding the provisions of RA No. 7656 and its
RIRRs r,f CYs 1998 and 2016.

15.7 The DOF-CAG representative clarified that the dividend base shall be computed
using the Net Earnings presented in the current year audited financial
statements (AFS) before any prior year adjustments. She acknowledged,
though, that the restated amount is the true representation of the GOCC's Net
Earnlngs, however, using the restated amount will only raise confusion among
GOCCs which may result in possible adjustments in the prior year remittances.
Moreover, the RIRRs of 1998 and 2016 only mentioned the simple and plain
meaning of the Net Earnings defined in the said Act without mention of
restatements in the FS. Thus, dividend shall be computed based on the Net
Earnings of the current year financial statements before any prior year
adjustments.

15-8 lt was observed, however, that SHFC used the restated amount of Net Earnings
as dividend base for CY 2016 as presented in the CY 2017 AFS. The restated
amount was used in the computation of annual income tax due as reflected in

the original lTRs filed with the BIR for CY 2016. Since the 2016 RIRR simplifies
the assessment of dividend through the use of ITR filed with the BlR, we see no
impact on the dividend remittance of SHFC for the said year.

15.9 On the other hand, the DOF-CAG representative mentioned that the expense
must adhere to the criteria of allowable deductions under Section 34 of the Tax
Code, and likewise the Team re-evaluated the dividend base of SHFC for the
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covered audit period with available filed Annual lncome Tax Returns (lTRs) from
CYs 2014 to 2018.

15.10 Re-validation disclosed that SHFC claimed in full the interest expense incurred
for CYs 2014 to 2018 as deductions from its dividend base, contrary to Section
34(B) of the Tax Code, as amended, to wit:

Xxx (B) lnterest. -
(1) ln General. - The amount of interest paid or incuned within

a taxable year on indebtedness in connection with the
taxpayer's profession, trade or busrness shall be allowed as
deduction from gross income: Provided. however. That the
taxpayer's otherwise allowable deduction for interest
x aense shall be reduced bv oercent H2o/o) of the

interest income subiected to final tax: Provided, That
effective Januarv 1. 2009. the oercentaoe shall be thirlv-
three percent (33%o).Xxx (emphasis supplied)

1 5.1 1 Accordingly, the Corporation did not recognize interest arbitrage computed
based on the interest income subjected to final tax as indicated in its annual
lTRs filed with the BIR as detailed below:

Dividend
Year

lnterest lncome
Subject to Final Rate

Tax

lnterest
Expense
Arbitrage

Actual lnterest
Expense Reported

in the ITR

Addition to
Dividend Base

37 ,687 ,822
63,663,955
74,557,098
91 ,741,977

5,894,099
6,446,182
5,692,940
5,264,149

33%
33%
33%
33%
33%146 149 076 48,229 195 3 916 860 3,916 860

413,799,928 136, 553,975 27 ,214,230 27 ,214,230

'15.12 Although the Tax Code provides that interest expense shall be reduced by 33
per cent of the interest income subject to final tax, the non-deductible portion is
up to the extent of actual expense only, otherwise, the excess will be prejudicial
to the taxpayer. Hence, the addition to the dividend base amounting to P27.214
million which is considered a non-deductible reconciling item has resulted in the
under-remittance of dividends amounting to P13.607 million, or 50 per cent, as
re-computed below:

2014 2015 20't6 2017 2018
Net Income After Tax

(Based on COA
Audited FS)

Add/(Deduct)
Reconciling ltems:

1. Loan Reserve
2.Non-deductible

interest expense
3.Defened lncome

Tax Expenses

't 16,422,903 132,170,113 1 52,7 88,401 21 0,556,368 177,927,683

5,154,O22
6,446,182

4,363,332
5,692,940

5,021 ,705
5,264,149

1,609,912
3,916,860

0 (1,309,000) (1,506,512) (482,974)

(Forward)

0
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2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

12,436,981
21 ,009,105
24,603,842
30,274,852

5,894,099
6,446,182
5,692,940
5,264,149

3,013,882
5,894,099



2014 2015 2016 20't7 2014
4.Actual

Disbursements of
Program Subsidies
Treated as
Expenses

0 0'13,583,307 12,834,2'15 12,866,631

Dividend Base
Dividend Rate

125,330,884
50./"

143,770,307
50%

175,118,980
50%

232,169,925
50./"

195,838,112
50./.

Dividends due to NG
per re-compulation

Dividend paid to NG -
per sl lFC
comput4!qL

62,665/42

59,7'18,343

71,885,153

68,662,063

87,559,490

84,7't3,O20

116,084,962

'l '13,452,888

97,919,056

95,960,626

Under-Remittance (2,947,099) (3,223,090) (2,846,470) 12,632,074) 0,9144?9)
Total U nder-rem ittance 13,607,163

15.14 We reccmmended that Management:

a. Compute dividends due the NG strictly in accordance with RA No.7656
and its RIRR;

b. Review the allowable expenses deducted against Net Earnings, in
accordance with Section 34 of the Tax Code, as amended, pursuant to
the RIRR since this has significant impact on dividends and tax
remittances to DOF and BlR, respectively; and

c. Communicate and seek clarification with the DOF-CAG the under-
remittance of dividends as a result of recomputation in audit based on
Section 11 of the CY 2016 RIRR.

15.'15 Management commented that the interest expense was incurred in relation to an
acquireC asset of SHFC used in its trade or business under a finance lease
agreement and therefore, shall be allowed as deduction from gross income as
expressly provided under Section 34(BX3), to wit:

(B) (lnterest) -
Xxx
(3) Optional Treatment of lnterest Expense - At the option of

the taxpayer, interest incurred to acquire property used
in trade buslness or exercise of a profession may be
allowed as deduction or treated as a capital expenditure
(Emphasis supplied)

15.16 Also, the Management mentioned the case of Philippine Foods Properties lnc.
vs. Commissioner of lnternal Revenue, the Court of Tax Appeals (CTA)
reiterated the application of lnterest Expense as an allowable deduction, to wit:
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1 5.'l 3 Dividencis remitted to the NG through the BTr have not been computed in
accordance with the provisions of RA No. 7656 and its RlRRs, resulting in
under-remittance amounting to P13.607 million, depriving the NG of the
additional revenues and of improving its cash management.



15.18 Provided, however, that interest claimed as an outright expense should still
observe the tax arbitrage computed at 33 per cent of interest income subject to
final tax.

b. Dividends were not remitted to the NG within the period prescribed under the
RlRRs, resulting in possible penalty charges equivalent to the prevailing 364-day
regular Treasury Bill rate plus five per cent on the outstanding dividends due,
which may cause incurrence of unnecessary expenses.

15.19 Section 9(a) on the Responsibility, Sanctions and Penalty of the RIRR provides
that:

The Bureau of the Treasury @Tr), in coordination with Depaftment
of Finance (DOF), shail assess the GOCC a penalty charge for late
payment equivalent to the prevailing 364-day regular Treasury bill
rate plus five percent (5%) on the Dividend due. Xxx

15.20 Review of available documents disclosed instances of delay in the remittance of
dividend to the BTr, to wit:

Dividend
Year

Date of
Remittance

Prescribed No. of Days
Deadline Delayed Status

2014
2015
2UA

04t14t2015
04t04t2016
05t12t2017

04130t2015
0413012016
05t15t2017

59,718,343
68,662,063
84,713,020

113,452,888 06129t2018
05/08/2019

On-time
On-time
On-time

Late
Remittance

On-time

0
0
0

45
2017
2018 960 ozt)

422,506,940

15.21 Dividends not remitted to the NG within the prescribed period is contrary to the
pertinent provisions of RA No. 7656 and its RIRRs and results in penalty
charges considered as unnecessary expenses.

15.22 We recommended and Management agreed to strictly monitor and comply
with th-. timely remittance of dividends to the NG as prescribed in the RIRR
of RA rio.7656 to avoid penalty charges and unnecessary expenses,

111

(e) Optional Treatment of interest expense on capital expenditure -
At the option of the taxpayer, interest expense on a capital
expenditure incurred to acquire property used in trade,
bus,ness, or exercise of a profession may be allowed as
deduction in full in the year when incurred (Emphasis supplied)

'15.17 As audit rejoinder, we emphasize that the optional treatment of interest expense
on capital expenditure is constructed simply so that the taxpayer may claim it
either as an outright expense, or as a capitalized cost of the acquired assets for
purposes of periodic depreciation which the taxpayer is allowed to claim as
deduction.

Dividends Paid

05/15/2018
05115t2019 0

-



15.23 Management commented that the reckoning point should be from the date of
receipt by the Corporate Secretary of the Annual Audit Report (AAR), from which
the delay will be computed, and not from the prescribed deadline. They further
stressed that there were no actual penalties imposed by DOF on the late
remittances from previous years.

15.24 Management also conformed with the audit recommendation to prospectively
ensure compliance on the timely remittance dividend in order to avoid penalty
charges.

15.25 As an audit rejoinder, we reiterate Section 7 on the Mode of Remittance of the
1998 RIRR which explicitly states that the GOCC shall declare and remit
dividenCs of at least 50 per cent of dividend due on or before April 30 and the
balance thereof shall be remitted within seven working days after the receipt of
COA AAR for the dividend year. Accordingly, the law enforces that there shall be
an initial remittance of dividends to be made on or before April 30 from which
SHFC failed to comply.

16. SHFC was able to attribute and utilize P{.889 billion, or 75 per cent of its CY 20{9
Gender and Development (GAD) Budget of P2.517 billion which is 76 per cent of
its DBM approved COB amounting to P3.303 billion, in compliance with the Joint
Circular No. 2012-01 of Philippine Commission on Women (PGW), National
Economic and Development Authority (NEDA) and DBM, making SHFC a gender-
responsive agency.

16.1

to-z

Joint Circular No. 20'12-01 issued by the PCW, NEDA and DBM prescribes the
guidelines and procedures for the formulation, development, submission,
implementation, monitoring and evaluation including accounting of results of
agency annual GAD plans and budgets (GPBs), and GAD accomplishment
reports (AR).

Paragraph 6.1 on Costing and Allocation of the GAD budget of the above
Circular, states that:

At least five percent (5%o) of the total agency budget appropriations
authorized under the annual GAA shall correspond to activities
supporting GAD plans and programs. The GAD budget shall be
drawn from the agency's maintenance and other operating
expenses (MOOE), capital outlay (CO), and personal services (PS).
It is understood that the GAD budget does not constitute an
additional budget over an agency's total budget appropriations.

'16.3 On the other hand, Paragraph 6.4 of the same Circular on attributing agency
major programs to the GAD budget states that.

Attributiotl to the GAD budget of a poftion or the whole of the budget
of an agency's major programs is a means toward gradually
increasing the gender responsiveness of government programs and
budgets.
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16.4 Further Paragraph 5.3 of the same Circular states that:

Agencies are encouraged to assess the gender-responsiveness of
their major programs and proiecrs us,ng the HGDG tool. The result
of assessmenf will guide them in identifying areas for improvement.

16.5 Verification of documents disclosed that SHFC submitted on May 30, 2018 its
GPB to PCW for its review and endorsed on October 10, 2018 to DBM for its
approval. Using the HGDG tool, SHFC's GAD Focal Point System Committee
attributed its major programs in the presence of a representative from National
GAD Resource Pool accredited by PCW. SHFC got a score of 18 out of a
perfect score of 20 which means that the programs attributed are gender-

responsive.

16.6 Verification of the Annual Accomplishment Report disclosed that for CY 2019,
SHFC was able to utilize P3.823 million for its client-focused activities and
P3.037 million for its organization-focused activities, or a total of P6.860 million,
or 89 per cent of its GAD Plans and Budget ol P7.716 million. On the other hand,
attributions for SHFC'S programs amounted to P1.882 billion or 75 per cent of its
DBM-approved Loans Outlay of P2.509 billion. Details follow:

Programs/ProjecuActivities GAD Budget
Utilization/
Aftribution Percentage

Client-Focused
TAO Lecture Series: Gender

Perspectives in Spatial Planning
and Design

Financial Literacy Seminar and
Workshop for SHFC Employees
Batch 1 and 2

Medical lvlission and Seminar on
Cervical Cancer Awareness in
Zamboanga

Basic Teacher Training and Villarosa
Daycare Upgrading

Gender Sensitivity Training

400,000 29,519

2,'185,0000 1,886,332

550,000 263,452

1,235,000

684,000

243,933

1,400,149
5,054,000 3,823,385

Organization-focused
. Women's Month and CMP Month

IEC Materials
. Women's Month Celebration (kickoff)
. Men opposed to VAW Everywhere

Training-Workshop
. Training/Seminar on Violence

against Women and Children
o GADTIMPALA validation for Gender

Responsive Agency
. GAD 2020 Planning Budgeting and

Orientation on HGDG
. GAD Planning and Budgeting

Workshop
. GAD Agenda Write-shop
(Forward)

200,000

300,000
172,144

510,000

510,000

355,232

449,999
103,018

233,752

1,244,169
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Programs/ProjecuActivities GAD Budget Utilization/
Attribution Percentage

. Gender Sensitivity Training for
Employees

. Anti-Violence Against Women and
Children (VAWC) in Dapitan City

440,000

530,000

445,369

205,037

2,662,144 3,036,576
7,716,144 6,859,961 88.90

Attributions - Programs assessed
using HGDG Tool (Loans Outlay
based on DBM-approved COB)

2,509,340,000 1,882,005,000 75.00

517,056,144 1,888,864,961 75.04

16.7 lt may be noted that the SHFC did not limit itself with the minimum five per cent
allocation of the its budget based on Joint Circular No. 2012-01 in the
implementation of its GAD-related programs, projects and activities, but instead,
attributed and utilized 75 percent of its GPB which is 76 per cent of its DBM-
approved COB.

16.9 The implementation of GAD programs, projects and activities that are focused to
the beneflt of its clients and to the organization in conformity with its mandate
makes SHFC a gender-responsive agency.

16.10 We commended Management for being GAD-responsive and for the
continuous implementation of its GAD-related activities, including
attributicns of its projects and programs that are beneficial to its clients
and to the Corporation.

16.11 Management assured that SHFC will continue to implement its GAD activities,
including the attributions to its programs and projects that are beneficial to its
clients and the Corporation.

17. Funds amounting to P315.630 million remain idle since CY 2010 with no
utilization, except for administrative expenses, resulting in the non-attainment of
the objectives for which the Abot-Kaya Pabahay Fund (AKPF) was created,
specifically the amortization support and developmental financing component
pursuant to RA No. 6846, as amended, defeating the goal of the National
Government (i.lG) program in addressing the urgency of the housing need that
caters to low-income bracket families.

The AKPF was created under RA No. 6846 on January 24, 1990, otherwise
known as the Social Housing Support Fund Act, in order to promote the national
shelter program and to implement a continuing program of social housing that

17.1
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16.8 On August 14,2019, the 1Oth Anniversary of the Magna Carta of Women, SHFC
received a citation from by the PCW for their CMP Programs on Gender and
Development Transformation and lnstitutionalization through Mainstreaming of
Programs, Agenda, Linkages and Advocacies (GAD timpala). This is in
recognitlon of SHFC's efforts in pursuing gender equality and women
empowerment for its clientele through its programs.



shall make available to low income families, affordable houses and/or lots
equitably distributed in the 14 regions of the country by establishing a finance
support system that shall encourage active participation of a private sector.

17.2 ln ordei to carry out the purpose, the AKPF was created with an amount of
P2.500 billion to be constituted over a period of five years through a continuing
yearly appropriation of P500 million from the NG. The Fund shall be used
exclusively for the objectives of enhancing affordability of low-cost housing by
low-income families, providing developmental financing for low-cost housing
projects, and eliminating risks for the funding agencies involved in housing
namely the SSS, the GSIS and the Home Development Mutual Fund (HDMF).

17.3 Under RA No. 7835 dated December 16, 1994, also known as the
Comprehensive and lntegrated Shelter Financing Act or CISFA, the objectives
are as follows:

a. Ensure continuous funding support to vigorously implement the government's
program for urban and rural housing, resettlement and development of sites
and services, and the renewal of blighted areas;

b. Enhance the capability of low-income groups to acquire a decent and low
cost housing through the introduction of support mechanism and facilities
which shall render affordable housing acquisitions;

c. Xxx;
d. lncrease the public and private sector's participation in the investment of their

funds into the mainstream of housing finance for developmental and end-user
financing requirements of the National Shelter Program;

e. Xxx,
f. Xxx;
g. Serve the housing requirements of all underprivileged and those gainfully

employed but are not members of the GSIS, SSS and Pag-lBlG Fund; and
h. Xxx.

17.4 The Fund has three financial systems or components as follows:

b. Amortization Support and Developmental Financing Component (ASDFC)
being handled by the SHFC (transferred from NHMFC), a subsidiary of the
NHMFC. The Fund extends developmental financing loans up to 80 per cent
of the total project cost to the proponents of low cost housing projects and to
help low income homebuyers to buy their own housing units by way of
avaiiing themselves of amortization support during the first five years of
their housing loans.

c. Cash Flov/ Guaranty
Corporation (HGC),

(CFG) being handled
now the Philippine

by the Home Guaranty
Guarantee Corporation

I tc

a. Liquidity support and interest subsidy component (LSISC) by NHMFC. The
Fund aims to enhance affordability of low-cost housing by low income
families by means of subsidized monthly amortization for five years. The
aforesaid amortization support shall apply only to loans granted from the
approval of RA No. 7835 to five years thereafter on a first-come-first-served
basis to eligible borrowers.



(PhllGuarantee). The Fund ensures a viable cash flow for funding agencies
involved in housing in the face of liquidity risks resulting from non-collection of
loans.

17.5 The first two components, representing 60 per cent of the fund are administered
by the NHMFC while the CFG, or 40 per cent, is administered by HGC, now
PhilGuarantee.

17 .6 NHMFC Corporate Circular No. AKPF-001, as amended by AKPF-007, states

The Amoftization Suppod Fund, second component which was
handled by NHMFC then transfened to SHFC, is to help low income
homebuyers to buy their own housing units by way of availing
themselves of amoftization supporl duing the first five years of their
hausing loans under the AKPF. And this applies to housing loan
maLtgages granted from January 28, 1990 and shall cover housing
loans not exceeding P100,000 per unit as long as the Fund exists
provided the loan has a maturity of 15 years with a fixed interest
rate within the range of nine to 12 percent per annum.

The extent and Period of Support to be granted to eligible borrowers
is as fol/onzs:

Level A- family gross income not exceeding P8,000 per month who
shall be granted a loan of P80,000

,\mortization Period Amorlization Supporl
Months
Nlonths
Months
Months
Months

1to12
13-24
25 to 36
37-48
49-60

35% of Monthly Amoftization
30% of Monthly Amoiization
25% of Monthly Amoftization
20% of Monthly Amofiization
14% of Monthly Amodization

Level B - family gross income not exceeding P10,000 per month
who shall be granted a loan of P80,000 but not over P100,000

Amortization Support
25% of Monthly Amoftization
20% of Monthly Amortization
14% of Monthly Amoftization

7% of Monthly Amo ization

NHMFC Corporate Circular No. AKPF-002, as amended by SHFC Corporate
Circular" AKPF No. 13-001 , on the Developmental Financing Program states:

The Developmental Financing Program (DFP) as part of 2d
component is provided to proponents/developers of low cost
hausing projects with a selling price of not more than P60,000 per
house aneJ tot package and P45,000 per lot package. The NHMFC
shatt administer direct lending to the govemment entities and those

Months 1 to 24
Months 25 to 36
lt/lonths 37-48
Months 49-60

17.7
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Amartization Period



as otherwise classified. lt will also wholesale funds to interested
government and private financing institution who in turn will directly
lend to the pivate proponents. The developmental /oan serves as
seed capital for the development of propefty and construction of
housing units.

The purpose of the DFP are as follows:

a- Site upgrading/development and housing construction to eligible
Community Moftgage Program (CMP) pAeds as compliance to
balance housing requirements under Section 18 of RA 7279;

b. LGU sponsored housing projects where end-user financing shall
be provided either through CMP/Localized CMP or High Density
Housing (HDH) Program;

c. Site development and/or construction of high density housing
units for the HDH Program; and

d. Small scale inner city housing projects providing house and lot
packages for socialized housing borrowers with assured end-
user financing either through CMP/LCMP or the HDH program,
Banks ROPOA, foreclosed/idle properties of pension fund like
SSS, GS/S as wel/ as those of other institutions provided there
is an end-user financing through the afore-cited facilities.

Maximum loanable amount shall be P15 million for projects covered
by CMP and LCMP and P75 million for p@eds under HDH
Program which shall have a maximum term of 36 months after each
drawdown but shall have eadier maturiu based on project feasibility
and the availability of the take-out window.

Loan repayment

Payment of principal shall be made quafterly with the first payment
due on or before the end of eighteen (1dh) month from date of initial
loan release which shall be covered by post-dated checks to be
r'ssued rn advance by the developer or upon take out by the end
user financing window whichever comes first.

17.8 The following schedule shows the Allotment and Utilization of Funds

APPROPRIATION (in million)
Year Amortization Developmental TotalSuppod Loan

RELEASES (in million)
Amortization Developmental

Support Loan
Total

'1991

1992
1993
1994
1995
1996

100.00
100.00
100.00
bb.b/

200.00
0

300.00
300.00
300.00
200.00
400.00

0

159.17
24.OO
40.16

'156.67

194.88
185.13

79.58
12.OO

20.09
78.33
97.43
92.56

200.00
200.00
200.00

200.00
0

238.75
36.00
60.25

235.00
292.31
277.69

_ __!x3.33 566.67 1,5oo.O
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17.9 The difference of P360 million between the total amounts appropriated and
released would account for the unreleased funds from what was appropriated by
DBI\I from 1991 to 1996 amounting to P300 million and P60 million for the five
percent mandatory reserve requirement.

17.10 Total funds of the AKPF as at December 31, 2019 amounted to P2.531 billion,
with the following details, in million:

Particulars Amortization Developmental
Support Loan Total

Total Fund Reieased to NHMFC-AKPF 760.01 140.00
Add: Net lnterest and Penalty lncome

(from developmental loans and
investments)
Developmental Loan Repayments
Sale of Acquired Assets

812.54 439.29 1,251 .83

58.95
80.39

58.95
80.39

812.54 578.63 I 391 .17
'1,572.55 958.62 2,531.17

17.11 The fund util,zation of the AKPF as at December 3'|,, 2O19 is accounted for as
follows:

Particulars
Utilization (in million)

Amortization Developmental
Support Loan Total

Total Funds of the AKPF 572.55 958.62 2 531 .17
Less: Utilization

Amortization Support - Levels A and B
Developmental Loans Accounts

Receivable (24 projects - 11,'170
beneficiaries)

CMP lnterest Subsidy
Administrative and operating

expenses and capital outlay as at
1213112019

Litigation Expenses of
dacion/foreclosed properties

Payment of Real Property Tax of
dacion/foreclosed properties

'111 .7 0
108.12

389.91

77 .62
49.84

12.57

11.66

1 1.86

189.32
157.96

I t.oo

11 .86Transfer related expenses
262.08 553.46 815.54

Total 310.471 405.16 1,715.63
Less: Realigned Funds

Realigned Amortization Support Fund
to CMP per NHMFC Board Resol.
#3150 and 3163, series of 2001.

Realigned Funds to Liquidity Support
per NHMFC Board Resolution No.
3354, Series of 2005 dated Jan.

(900.00) (900.00)

(360.00) (140.00) (500.00)

06 2005
Fund Balance Available for Utilization 50-47 265.16 315.63

17.12 EO No. 272 dated January 20, 2004 mandated NHMFC to organize and
establish the SHFC as a NHMFC wholly-owned subsidiary. SHFC was formed
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in accordance with the Corporate Code and the pertinent rules and regulations
issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). ln October 2005, a
Trust Agreement was entered into by the NHMFC (Trustor) and SHFC (Trustee)
with SHFC's sole purpose of performing the powers and functions with respect
to the administration, management, development and implementation of the
CMP and AKPF.

17.14 The following shows the movement of the AKPF from the time it was transferred
to SHFC up to December 31,2019 under the Trust Agreement:

Amount in millions
Cash -in-Bank - LBP 1

Cash-in-Bank - LBP 2
lnvestment in Special Savings Deposit
lnvestment in Government Securities

o.74
3.35

19.06
167.59

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning 190.74
Add:

lnterest lncome
Developmental Loan Repayments
Sale of Acquired Assets

155.04
20.34
80.39

Total 446.51
Less:

Developmental Loan Payments
Amortization Support
Litigation Expenses
Payment of Real Property Taxes
Transfer Related Expenses
Operating Expenses

15.00
0.21
9.00

11.13
11.86
83.68

Total 130.88
Cash and Cash Equivalents - December 31 ,2019 315.63

17.'15 On the other hand, financing loans were extended to the developers of the
following projects:

Proiect Location Approved
Loan

Date of
Aooroval

Released
Loan Remarks

Project
Exodus

2 Overland
Subdivision

(Forward)

Angono,
Rizal

27,630,000 12t1991 14,010,000 Fully Paid thru Unified Home
Lending Program (UHLP)
take outs

4,200,000 Fully Paid thru UHLP take
outs

Bagac,
Bataan

4,200,000 't2l'1992
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17.13 The Amortization Support and Developmental Financing Componeril (ASDFC)
was transferred by NHMFC to SHFC thru Trust Agreement wherein the Trustor
(NHMFC) entrusts, assigns, transfers and delivers unto the Trustee (SHFC), the
outstanding balance of the AKPF Funds in the total amount of p601.164 billion.
Cash and Cash in Bank balance as at December 31 , 2019 amounted to p31 5.63
million, or an increase of P124.89 million from the time the Fund was transferred
by NHMFC to SHFC. The increase was due to collections of developmental
loan repayments, interest earned from the developmental loan and sale of
acquired assets.



3 Carmenville
PTF

4 Munsayac
Subdivision

N4alaybalay,
Bukidnon
Antonio
lsabela

24,000,000

15,000,000

12t2003

9/1996

24,000,000

15,000,000

Fully Paid lhru UHLP take
OUtS

Disposed and Sold

7 Kabahay
Guro Village

San Jose
Del Monte
Bulacan

5 Villa Aguilla
Subd

25,000,000 '12l'1996

6 Viila Victoria
Subdrvision

Victoria
Tarlac

22,300,000 411997

Dacion en Pago
Sold by SHFC to Munsayac
Subd in the amount of P20
million per CTS dated Nov.
11, 2009

25,000,000 Disposed and Sold

Dacion en Pago
Sold by SHFC thru CTS to
Brakass Property
Development for P27.327
million March 1'1, 20'14

18,800,000 Disposed and Sold

Dacion en Pago
SHFC sold to Brakass
Property Development under
CTS for P16 million on
September 28, 20'12

13,500,000 Disposed and Sold

Dacion en Pago.
Sold lor P14,27B,500 by
SHFC to Servequest per CTS
dated July 27, 2010

1 2,400,000 lnvestment Property.

Sold by SHFC to RA De Leon
Appraisal and Realty
Services in the amount of
P15 million dated March 3,
2012.

The sale did not materialize
25,000,000 lnvestment Property

Sold by SHFC to Soninsa
Realty Brokerage Services
under CTS dated October 24.
2012 in the amount of P26
million.

The Sale did not materialize
13,000,000 lnvestment Property.

On-going transfer of TCTS rn

the name of SHFC
3,000,000 lnvestment Property

Dacion en Pago.
On€oing transfer of TCTS in
the name of SHFC

9,000,000 lnvestment Property.

Dacion en Pago.
On-going transfer of TCTS in
the name of SHFC

13,500,000 11/1996

Guimba,
Nueva Ecija

15,000,000 5t1997

9 Malinoville
Subd

San
Fernando
Pampanga

10 Juel Counlry Bambang,
Homes Nueva

Viscaya

1 1 Olympia
Village

12 UPLB
ONAPUP
Village

25,000,000 11l'1997

13,000,000 2t1,997

Palayan,
Nueva Ecija

6,000,000 3/1997

(Forv,/ard )

Bay, Laguna '11,000,000 12l1997
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Approved Date of Released
Loan Approval Loan

I\,,1a liwa lo,
Tarlac

8 Villa Felipe
Heights

I



Project Location Approved
Loan

Date of
ApDroval

Released
Loan Remarks

14 Catbalogan
Citihomes

15 La V sta
Cruz Subd

San Rafael
Tarlac

26,000,000 5/1997

13 Cristina
Homes I

Subd

16 Cristina
Homes ll
Sub

17 Villa Rita
Subd

'18 Plainville
Homes

Daet,
Camarines
Nofie

Foreclosed. Transfened in
lhe name of SHFC

26,000,000 lnvestment Property

Foreclosed. \Mth on-going
case

18,000,000 lnvestment Property

Foreclosed on going transfer
in the name of SHFC

'15,000,000 lnvestment Property

Items in Litigation. Awaiting
the resolution oflhe case
filed by GNP Construction
prior to foreclosure

13,000,000 Past due accounts
Missing 32 TCTS

Cabanatuan
City

5,500,000 511997 5,500,000 lnvestmentP.operty

Cabanatuan 18,000,000 3/2003
City

Bayombong 15,000,000 11/'1997
Nueva Ecija

19 Villa Haniya

20 Evergreen
Subd

21 Rivera
Heights
Subdivision

22 Vtlla
Alejandrea
Subdivision

lVaiabang,
Lanao del
Sur
Dinalupihan,
Bataan

10,000,000 122006
Foreclosed

5,000,000 lnvestment Property

Foreclosed

Ongoing transfer in the name
of SHFC

9,000,000 10/1996

Last drawdown paid by SHFC
Sept. 25, 2007

9,000,000 lnvestment Property

9,000,000 5t1997
Foreclosed

6,000,000 lnvestment Property

27,500,000 11i 1997
Forec,osed

22,000,000 Long term Receivable

Cauayan
lsabela

38,000,000 11/1997

Gamished by lhe LGU due to
non-payment of tax

30,500,000 Long-term Receivable

40,000,000 11/'1997

Items in Litigation. vvith
Missing Titles

40,000,000 Long term Receivable

Mariveles
Bataan

23 Palao
Country
Hornes

24 Corryville
Housing
Project

i\,lariveles
Bataan -

Eureka St
Makati

13,000,000 't211991

389,910,000

17.16 Out of the 24 projects approved by NHMFC through AKPF Developmental
Financing, only three had been fully paid thru UHLP loan take outs. Other
projects were already foreclosed, dacioned and sold by and in the process of
transferring the TCTs in the name of SHFC.
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Catbaloqan 26,000,000 11/1997
Samar

Foreclosed. Transferred in
the name of SHFC

23,000,000 lnvestment Property

17.17 As can be gleaned from the above table, the last project, Plainville Homes, was
approved by SHFC in CY 2006. The P5.000 million drawdowns were released
in CY 2007. For the Palao Country Homes, the loan was approved and the first



17.18

17.19

drawdown amounting to P20 million was released by NHMFC while the
remaining 2nd - 5th drawdowns totaling P20.000 million, broken down to P9.000
million in 2006, P5.000 million in 2007, and P6.000 million in 2010 were released
by SHFC.

The Villa Alejandrea Subdivision project under the account Long{erm
Receivable is under the ltems in Litigation account due to missing TCTs. On the
other hand, the Rivera Heights Subdivision was garnished by the LGU of Bataan
due to non-payment of realty tax and the presence of third-party claimant which
is the Authority of Freeport Area of Bataan (AFAB), The TCTs are already in the
name of Bataan LGU.

Further analysis disclosed that the following seven projects had no single
amortization payment from the time the loan was released, contrary to NHMFC
Corporate Circular No. AKPF 006, as amended by SHFC Corporate Circular No.
13-001 series of 2013, which states that the loan matures within 36 months after
each drawdown, thus, the developers of these projects had no financial capacity
to pay at the time the loan was granted.

Project
Amount
Released

Amortization
Payments

No. of
Releases

1 La Vista Cruz Subdivision
2 Cristina Homes I Subdivision
3 Villa Rita Subdivision
4 Juel Country Homes
5 Olympia Village
6 Vllla Alejandrea Subdivision
7 Rivera Heights Subdivision

26,000,000
5,500,000

15,000,000
1 3,000,000
3,000,000

30,500,000
22,000,000

5
3
4
4
2
3
3

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

115,000,000

17.20 The following four projects are still recorded as Longterm Receivables despite
having i^emained outstanding for a long period of time instead of undergoing the
foreclos ure process. Details follow:

Name of Project Approved
Loan

Released
Loan

Date
Released

Balance as at
Dec.31 2019

Rivera Heights Subd.
Villa Alejandrea Subd.
Palao Country Homes
Corryvilie Houslng

Project

27,500,000
38,000,000
40,000,000
13,000,000

22,000,000
30,500,000
40,000,000
13,000,000

November 1997
November 1997
November 1997
December'1991

22,011 ,606
30,500,000
29,791,950

7 .617 ,933

17 _21

89 921,499

The AKPF funds amounting to P315.630 million which remain idle since CY
2010 with no r-rtilization, except for administrative expenses, and the improper
monitoring of the implementation of previous pro.iects resulted in the non-
attainment of the objectives for which it was created, specifically the amortization
support and developmental financing component, pursuant to RA No. 6846, as
amended, defeating the goal of the NG program in addressing the urgency of the
housing need that caters to low-income bracket families.
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18. Status of Suspensions, Disallowances and Gharges

'18.1 The total audit suspensions, disallowances and charges and settlements as at
December 31 , 2019 are shown below:

Particulars
Balance,
1t1t2019

lssued
this period
(January to

December 2019)

Settlement this
period

(January to
December 2019)

Balance,
12t31t2019

NS
ND
NC

0
71,187,312

0

n

5,657,500
0

U

40,500
0

0
76,804,312

0

a. ND No. 2019-01(2018) amounting to P5.658 million dated October 17,2019
perta;ns to the release of Collective Bargaining Agreement. As of to date no
Appeal Memorandum from Management was received by this Office.

b. ND No. 2O17-O1-CIB- TD (2016) dated February 9, 2018 amounting to
P71.030 miilion pertains to the garnished peso time deposit with DBP,
including bank charges enforced by an Urgent Exparte Motion from case AC-
g73-RCMB-NCR LVA-024-01 titled SOHEAI vs. SHFC which is under appeal
with the Commission on Audit.

c. ND issued for the payment of grocery subsidy and 13th month pay is being
settled through salary deduction with a balance of Pl'16,333.
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17 .22 We recommended that Management:

a. Make representation with proper authorities and recommend the
transfer of the AKPF funds which have been idle for several years, to
other housing programs of SHFC, such as the CMP and HDH, to provide
more decent and affordable housing units to the intended beneficiaries
who are the lSFs;

b. Fast-track the transfer of the TCTS of the foreclosed and dacioned
properties in the name of SHFC; and

c. Dispose of properties already in the name of SHFG through public
bidding.

17.23 Management commented that they plan to utilize the P315.630 million to partially
finance the CIvIP modalities of SHFC. Currently, they are revisiting the existing
guidelines on the loan assistance program to adapt to the changing condition of
the market. Also, Management set their intention to tie up with the Local
Government Units and other National Government Agencies for the disposition
of the AKPF acquired assets in order to augment these funds.

17 .24 Fwlher, Management mentioned that the Trust Administration Department had
been fast-tracking the transfer of titles to SHFC. The delay in the transfer was
beyond the control of SHFC such as the slow processing of tax clearance and
unlocated TCTs in the file of the Registry of Deeds, etc. Thus, the Management
commits to finish this undertaking and to dispose the projects the soonest
possible time in order to recover loss of SHFC.
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STATUSoFIMPLEMENTATIoNoFPRIoRYEARS,AUDITREGoMMENDATIoNS

out of 78 audit recommendations for both sHFC and AKPF embodied in the cY 2018

Annual Audit Report, 34 were fully implemented, 33 were partially implemented, nine were

reconsidered, one was not implemented and one was issued with Notice of Disallowance'

orrot tn" 34 partially/not implemented audit recommendations, 24 were reiterated in Part ll

of this Report. Details are presented below:

Reference

A. Social Housing Finance Corporation

CY 2OI8 AAR

a. Prioritize allocation of
payments of MBs who
availed of the one-year
updating and remedial
accounts to MCR;

c. Submit work breakdown
schedule to post and
allocate UC for CY 2018 by
at least:

i. 65 per cent of the UC bY

end of CY 2019; and
ii. 35 per cent of the UC bY

end of CY 2020;

65 per cent of the
UC by end of CY
2019; and

Status/
Actions
Taken

Partially
implemented

Reiterated in
Observation
No. 1, Part ll
of this
Report.

Partially
implemented

Reiterated in
Observation
No.1, Part ll
of this
Report.

Partially
implemented

Reiterated in
Observation
No. 1, Part ll
of this

Observation
No.1 ,

page 52

'1. Undistributed Collections
(UC) totaling P430.326 million
remained un-Posted to
Mortgage Contract
Receivable (MCR) due to the
absence of a policy on the
proper and timely distribution
of UC to the appropriate
individual ledgers of the
member-borrowers (MBs).
Thus, the UC and the MCR
accounts are both overstated
by the same amounts.
Moreover, the General
Ledger (GL) or controlling
account for UC was not
reconciled with the Subsidiary
Ledger (SL) balances,
resulting in a variance of
P67.213 million, or 84 Per
cent of the GL balance. Both
the overstatement and
variance affect the fair
presentation of the account
balances in the financial
statements, contrary to
Paragraph 15 of PhilipPine
Accounting Standards (PAS)
1.

Audit

Observations
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b. Require the
responsible/concerned
operating uniUdepartment
to coordinate and reconcile
the individual MBs with the
CA account under the FCD;

d. Reconcile the variance
between the SL and GL
balances by at least:

Reiterated in
Observation
No. 1, Part ll
of this
Report.

Partially
implemented

Recommendations

-



Reference
Status/
Actions
Taken

Report.

Partially
implemented

Reiterated in
Observation
No. 1, Part ll
of this
Report.

ii. 35 per cent of the
UC by end of CY
2020;

e. Oblige the CAs to remit
amortizations of MBs with
the accompanying
Remittance Report and
Abstract of Collection
reflecting the individual
monthly payments by the
MBs in accordance with the
Collection Agreement;

f. Require the lnformation
and Communication
Technology Department
(ICTD) to enhance the
database to include the
HDH Projects and all other
accounts not yet in the
database;

h. Formulate policy on the
number of days within
which to distribute/allocate
payments made by MBs to
avoid the accumulation of
UC; and

i. Improve and update
guidelines on substitution of
MBs to avoid further
accumulation of UC every
year.

Partially
implemented

Reiterated in
Observation
No.1, Part ll
of this
Report.

Partially
implemented

Reiterated in
Observation
No. 1, Part ll
of this
Report.

Partially
implemented

Reiterated in
Observation
No. 1, Part ll
of this Report.

Partially
implemented

Reiterated in
Observation
No. 1, Part ll
of this
Report.

Audit

Observations Recommendations
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0

g. Require the NHMFC to
submit listing of MBs
relative to the transfened
accounts amounting to
P83.570 million;



Reference

Observation
No.2,
page 56

Observation
No.3,
page 59

3. A variance of P608.773
million between the General
Ledger (GL) and Subsidiary
Ledger (SL) balances of the
Moftgage Contracts
Receivable - Community
Mortgage Program (MCR-
CMP) account as at
December 31, 2018 casts
doubt on the accuracy,
reliability and validity of the
account, conlrary to Section
1 1 1 of Presidential Decree
(PD) No. 1445 and Paragraph
15ofPAS1.

Formulate policy/guidelines
on the assessment,
measurement and recording
of impairment losses of its
recorded assets for CY
2018 as required under PAS
36 and 39.

b. Reconcile the variances
between SL per CA and SL
per MBs as well as SL and
GL balances of P608.773
million by at least

i. 65 per cent of the
variance by end of
cY 2019;

ii. 35 per cent of the
variance by end of
CY 2020; and

Status/
Actions
Taken

This
Observation
was first
raised in the
AAR for CY
2010 and
reiterated in
CYs 201 1 to
2018.

Not
implemented

Reiterated in
Observation
No. 2, Part ll
of this
Report.

This
observation
was first
raised in the
AAR for CY
2016 and
reiterated in
CYs 2017
and 2018.

Partially
implemented

Reiterated in
Observation
No. 3, Part ll
of this
Report.

Audit

RecommendationsObservations
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a. Require the
responsible/concerned
operating uniUdepartment to
coordinate and reconcile the
individual MBs with the CA
account under the FCD;

Fully
implemented

2. Assets of SHFC
amounting to P19.189 billion
were not stated at their fair
value due to the absence of
policy on the assessmenl,
measurement and recording
of impainlent losses as
reqLrired under PAS 36 and
39 for CY 2018, thus, casting
doubt on the reliability and
valuation of the corporate
assets.

I



Refe re n ce

Observation
No. 4,
page 61

c- Require the ICTD to
assist the FCD in enhancing
and developing an efficient
and effective database.

a. Compute for and
demand the payment of
liquidated damages from the
Contractor, pursuant to
Article Xl of the Building
Construction and Site
Development Agreement;

b. lmplement the following
remedies provided in the
Agreement against the
Contractor:

Give written notice to
the Contractor to
proceed with such work
and to perform such
agreement;

Status/
Actions
Taken

Partially
implemented

Reiterated
under
Observation
No. 3, Part ll
of this
Report.

This
Observation
was first
raised in the
AAR for CY
2016 and
reiterated in
CYs 2017
and 2018.

Reconsidered

SHFC has no
direct
contract/
arrangement
with the
Contractor
engaged by
the HOA.

Reconsidered

SHFC has no
direct
contracV
arrangement
with the
Contractor
engaged by
the HOA.

4. A High Density Housing
Project (HDHP) amounting to
P725.379 million was not
completed within the period
stipulated in the Building
Construction and Site
Development Agreement
dated June 8, 2015. lt has a
slippage of 857 days, or
almost two and a half years,
as at December 31, 2018,
depriving the lnformal Settler
Family (lSF)-beneficiaries
living in waterways and
danger areas of affordable
and decent housing, resulting
in the non-attainment of the
objectives of the Program,
including the non-recovery of
the Corporate investment in
housing projects.

lf the Contractor fails to
do so within seven
days from receipt
thereof, the HOA and
SHFC shall have the

Audit

RecommendationsObservations

127



Reference

Observation
No. 5,
page 67

5. Abse;rce of month{o-
month contract extension for
janitorial and security
services with expired
contracls in CYs 20'17 and
2018 is contrary to the
Revised Guidelines on the
Extension of Contracts for
General Support Services
issued by the General
Procurement and Policy
Board (GPPB) and RA No.
91 84. Payments amounting to
P98.219 million were made
for the services rendered.

6. Collective Negotiation
Agreement (CNA) incentive
amounting to P5.658 million
was granted by SHFC to its
230 officers and employees
despite accomplishment
below the required rating
based on SHFC's
Performance Scorecard on

option to proceed
against the bond and
enter the premises and
to employ any other
contractor to complete
the work at the
expense of the
Contractor; and

c. As part of due
diligence in future projects,
ensure that SHFC
undertakes assessment of
the contractor/developer
and that loan releases are
made only on the basis of
duly validated Statement of
Work Accomplishment
pursuant to Sections 8 and
9 of Corporate Circular HDH
No. 14-002 dated March 31,
2014.

a. lmmediately subject the
procurement of janitorial
and security services to
competitive bidding process;
and

b. Strictly comply with RA
No. 9184 on the rules and
regulations on the
procurement of support
services.

Make representation with
the GCG for the final score
of the Corporation based on
the GCG-approved
Performance Scorecard.

Status/
Actions
Taken

Fully
implemented

Fully
implemented

Disallowed
the CNA
incentive of
P5.658
million
granted to
SHFC
officers and
employees

Audit

Observations Recommendations

t10

Observation
No. 6,
page 7'l

Fully
implemented

I



Reference

Observation
No. 7,
page 73

Key Performance lndicators
as approved by the
Govemance Commission for
GOCCs (GCG), contrary to
DBM Budget Circular No.
2018-05.

7. Past due/in-default car
loan amortizations amounting
lo P2.225 million of eight
retired officers and former
mernbers of the Board of
Directors remain uncollected
as at December 31,2018,
contrary to the IRR of the
SHFC Officers Vehicle
Acquisition Assistance
Program (VAAP), resulting in
the non-recovery or loss of
the funds expended for the
car loan program.

a. lmmediately collect the
total car loan obligation from
the retired officers and
former members of the
Board;

b. Extrajudicially enforce
the Deed of Reconveyance
or Deed of Sale and/or
Chattel Mortgage
Agreement and immediately
repossess the motor vehicle
from the Officer concerned;
and

c. Exercise immediately
the legal remedies provided
under the IRR of the SHFC
Officers VAAP.

Status/
Actions
Taken

under Notice
of
Disallowance
(ND) No.
2019-
01(2018)
dated
October
't7,2019

Reconsidered

The
observation
was
reiterated
with
modification
in
Observation
No 10, Part ll
of this
Report.

Reconsidered

The
observation
WAS

reiterated
with
modification
in
Observation
No. 10, Part ll
of this
Report.

Reconsidered

The
observation
was
reiterated
with
modification
in
Observation

Audit

Recommendations
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Observations



Audit

Observations Recommendations
Reference

Observation
No. 8,
page 76

Observation
No. I a,
page 77

Observation
No. 9 b,
page 79

Status/
Actions
Taken

9. Cashiers/Tellers

9.1 . The two Collecting
Tellers were outsourced
personnel, not officially
designated and not
accordingly bonded, contrary
to Section 101 of PD No.
1445 and Sections 4.1 and
6.2 of Treasury Circular No.
02-2009, exposing the
Corporation to the risk of non-
replacemenUrecovery of
government funds in case of
shortages, defalcations and
unrelieved losses.

9.2. Fidelity bonds of two
former Accountable Offlcers
of the Treasury Department
were still renewed, despite
their having been transferred
to other departments and
whose functions do not
require the possession,
custody or control of funds or
properties, contrary to
Section 7 .4 of Treasury
Circular No- 02-2009, thus,
entailing unnecessary

Gather/restructure available
data required for the
immediate disposal of all
unserviceable property and
equipment in accordance
with the modes prescribed
under COA Circular No. 89-
296.

Properly designate and
secure approved bond from
the BTr for employees
whose duties require the
possession or custody and
control of government funds
or property.

a. Submit the request for
the cancellation of the
Fidelity Bond of the two
Accountable Of{icers who
no longer function as such
pursuant to Section 7.4 of
Treasury Circular No. 02-
2009; and

No. 10, Part ll
of this
Report.

Partially
implemented

The three
quotations
received from
prospective
buyers are for
evaluation
and approval
of the
Committee
on Disposal.

Fully
implemented

Fully
implemented

Fully
implemented
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8. Unserviceable
equipment items with
acquisition cost of P1.567
million which have long been
stored and occupying space
in the office, remain
undisposed, contrary to
Section 79 of PD No. 1445
and COA Circular Nos. 89-
296 and 2004-008, resulting
in their further deterioration.

b. Strictly monitor the
period of effectivity of the
Fidelity Bonds of
Accountable Officers and do



Reference

Observation
No. 9 c,
page 80

Observation
No. 9 d,
page 81

expenses in the form
premium payments.

9.3. Eight pieces/set of
unused Community Mortgage
Receipts (CMRs) and two
pieces/set of unused Official
Receipts (ORs) were
detached from the booklet
currently being used by the
Tellers during the cash count,
contrary to Section '123 of PD
No. 1445 which may result in
the possible misplacement or
loss of unused CMRS/ORs or
even unauthorized/fraudulent
collection of funds.

9.4. One piece of CMR and
one piece of OR were pre-
signed by one Teller who was
on leave of absence for the
period July 3, 2018 up to July
29, 2018, defeating the
objectives of internal control,
thus, exposing the
Corporation to lhe risk of
unauthorized or fraudulent
collection and possible loss of
public funds.

9.5. There were 28 CMRs
cancelled due to various
deficiencies of information on
the checks received by the
Tellers/Cashiers for payment,
contrary to Clearing House
Operation Memorandum
(CHOM) No. 15-460A issued
by the Philippine Clearing
House Corporation, resulting
in the accumulation of unpaid
housing loan amortizations
and additional cost to the

of not renew the bond on its
expiration of those whose
function no longer require
the possession, custody and
control of government
funds.

Require the Tellers to

a. Stop the practice of
detaching CMRs/ORs from
the booklet if not for
immediate issuance; and

b. Exercise due care and
keep the unissued
accountable forms intact
and attached to the booklet.

a. lmmediately
discontinue the praclice of
pre-signing CMRs and ORs;
and

b. Skictly implement
sound internal control,
especially on the issuance
of accountable forms.

Exercise due care in
scrutinizing the checks
presented for payment to
ensure completeness and
correctness of information
on the face of the check.

Status/
Actions
Taken

Fully
implemented

Fully
implemented

Fully
implemented

Fully
implemented

Fully
implemented

Audit

Observations Recommendations
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Observation
No. 9 e,
page 81



Audit

Observations Recommendations

Observation
No. 9 f,
page 82

Observation
No. 9 g,
page 83

Observation
No. I h,
page 84

Status/
Actions
Taken

Corporation for the cancelled
CMRS.

9.7. Monthly Reports of
Accountability for
Accountable Forms (MRAAF)
Without Money Value by each
Cashier were not prepared
and submitted to COA,
contrary to Section 100 of PD
No. 1445, resulting in the
delay in the conduct of the
mandatory audit and difficulty
in the reconciliation and
monitoring of accountable
forms received and issued at
any given month.

9.8. The Head Cashier also
acts as the Petty Cash
Custodian, contrary to
Section 123 of PD No. 1445,
defeating the purpose of
internal control on the proper
s.gregation of duties and
responsibilities to reduce the
risk of error or fraud.

a. Require the Accounts
Management Department to
exercise utmost due care in
the preparation of Order of
Payment and in the printing
of CMRs and ORs and to
verify correctness of
information in the Order of
Payment to avoid spoilage;
and

b. Require the tellers of
the Cash Management
Department to submit
monthly report of cancelled
accountable forms stating
the reasons for cancellation,
including the complete set
of all the cancelled
accountable forms.

lmmediately require all
Cashiers to prepare the
MRAAF every fifth of the
following month and submit
to COA for the mandatory
audit.

a. Segregate the functions
of the Head Cashier and
Petty Cash Custodian to
two employees for sound
internal control; and

b. Require
Accountable Offlcer
properly accomplish

Fully
implemented

Fully
implemented

Fully
implemented

Fully
implemented

Fully
implemented

the
to

the
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Reference

9.6. A total of 155 ORs and
ClvlRs were cancelled due to
laxity in the preparation of
Order of Payment and the
preparation and printing of
the receipts, resulting in the
incurrence of additional cost
to the Corporation for the
replacement of spoiled
accountable forms.



Reference

Obseryation
No- 9 i,

page 85

Observation
No.10,
page 85

Observation
No.'11,
page 88

Status/
Actions
Taken

Likewise, replenishments
were not properly recorded in
the cashbook, resulting in
incomplete recording of
transaction details for easy
monitoring and reconciliation.

9.9. There were 380 General
Fund 1 (LBP) checks with
covering serial numbers
468921 to 469300 which
were printed in the old format
that is no longer acceptable
to banks, contrary to
Memorandum Circular No.
3126 of the Philippine
Clearing House Corporation
(PCHC).

10. Public bidding was not
conducted for the acquisition
of insurance provider to
manage the Group Mortgage
Redemption lnsurance (MRl)
of loan bonowers of the CMP
and other similar home
financing programs of SHFC,
contrary to RA No. 9184,
otherwise known as the
Govemment Procurement
Reform Act, thus, defeating
the principles of
transparency, accountability,
equity, efficiency and
economy.

11. A total of 161
Disbursement Vouchers
(DVs) amounting to P76.963
million for CY 2018 remained
un-submitted as of audit date,
ccntrary to Section 107 of PD

cashbook by recording
transactions chronologically,
showing in the Particulars
column the details of the
transactions and posting the
corresponding amounts in
the debit and credit columns
before showing the balance.

Cancel all checks in the old
format and submit to the
Office of the Auditor with
proper report as
corroborating evidence for
proper disposal.

Skictly comply with the
provision of RA No. 9'184 to
conduct public bidding for
the provisions of the group
MRI to loan borrowers.

a. lmmediately submit the
'16'l DVs with complete
supporting documents for
the conduct of mandatory
post-audit; and

Fully
implemented

Partially
implemented

This
Observation
was first
raised in the
AAR for CY
2017 and
reiterated in
cY 2018.

Fully
implemented

Audit

Observations Recommendations

1'I

'ril;ir.-r&

Reiterated
with
modification
in
Observation
No. 9, Part ll
of this
Report.



Audit

RecommendationsObservations
Refureirce

Observation
No. 12,
page 89

Observation
No. 13,
Page 94

No. 1445, Sections 7.'1.'l and
7 .?.1 (a) of COA Circular No.
2009-006 and Section 6.5 of
COA Circular No. 95-006,
delaying the conduct of
nrandatory post-audit and the
timely implementation of audit
recommendations should
there be audit observations
noted.

12. Acquisition of four
drones, or remote-controlled
system aircraft, amounting to
P260,000 intended for
SHFC's Regional Operations
Offices for the survey of
project sites was not
supported with proper
documentation, contrary to
the Philippine Drone
Regulation insurance and the
Manual of Standards for
Aerodromes by the Civil
Aviation Authority of the
Philippines (CAAP).
Moreover, in addition to the
Environment Compliance
Permit (ECC), DENR requires
all project proponents to
undertake an Engineering
Geological and Geohazard
Assessment.

13. Travel expenses
amounting to P70,884
incurred for the Learning
Exchange Program were not
in accordance with the
mandate of SHFC as
provided under Executive
Order No. 272. Mo.eovet,
airline ticket rebooking and
other fees amounting to
P13,212 werc charged to
travel expenses.

b. Strictly adhere to the
provisions of PD No. 12145,

COA Circular Nos. 2009-06
and 95-006 on the
submission of DVs to COA.

a. Submit the documenls
on the planning for the
purchase of the drones
including the specifications
and intended benefits of the
equipment purchased to
justify its necessity; and

b. lssue the equipment to
the concemed unit for the
immediate use in
accordance with the
intended purpose.

Demand for the refund of
the travel expenses totaling
P84,096, otherwise, the
disbursement shall be
disallowed in audit.

Status/
Actions
Taken

Fully
implemented

Fully
implemented

Fully
implemented

Fully
implemented

'134



Audit

Observations Recommendations
Reference

Observation
No. 14,
Page 96

Observation
No. 15,
Page 97

Status/
Actions
Taken

14 Procurement of airfare
tickets was still made
through direct booking or
travel agencies, instead of
procuring them from the
Department of Budget and
M a nagement-Procurement
Service (DBM-PS) under the
Government Fares
Agreement (GFA) using the
Philippine Government
Electronic Procurement
System (PhilGEPS), contrary
to the Government
Procurement Policy Board
(GPBB) Resolution No. 11 -
2017 and Sections 1,2 and
6(b) of Administrative Order
(AO) No. 17, series of 201 1 .

15. The amount allocated for
Gender and Development
(GAD) programs, projects,
and activities (PPAS) was
only P7.716 million or .003
per cenl, instead of P138.068
million which is five per cent
of the approved Corporate
Operating Budget (COB)
amounting to P2.761 billion,
contrary to Joint Circular No.
2012-01 issued by the
Philippine Commission on
Women (PCV\,), National
Economic and Development
Authority (NEDA) and
Department of Budget and
Management (DBM). Out of
the total allocation, only
P2.931 million or 38 per cent
was utilized, reducing the
opportunity of women and
other concerned parties to
participate and benefit from
the GAD PPAs. Moreover,
two out of the 12 planned

Comply with the
requirements of PhiIGEPS
in adopting the GFA.

a. Properly allocate or
attribute GAD-related
expenses to maximize the
use of the budget required
to be allocated for GAD
activities to conform strictly
with the provisions under
Paragraph 2.3 of Joint
Circular No. 2012-01 issued
by PCW-NEDA-DBM; and

b. Monitor properly the
implementation of the
planned GAD PPAS, which
should be done as per
schedule within the budget
year, as approved by PCW.

Reconsidered

GPPB
Resolution
No. 21-2019
was issued
approving the
delisting of
Airline
Tickets under
the
Government
Fares
Agreement in
the List of
Common Use
Supplies and
Equipment of
the
Procurement
Service.

Fully
implemented

Fully
implemented

135
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Audit

RecommendationsObservations
Reference

CY 2017 AAR

Observation
No. 3,
page 48

Observation
No. 5,
Page 53

GAD activities were not
implemented.

16. CMP accounts totaling
P88.154 million transferred by
the NHMFC without the
corresponding supporting
documents and 638 accounts
with negative balances
amounting to P8.818 million
cast doubts on the accuracy
of the lnsurance Receivable -
MBs account balance of
P295.38? million under the
CMP, contrary to paragraph
15 ofPAS 1.

17. MCR - Past Due
account balance per GL of
P2.854 billion for he 27,257
accounls differed by P1.533
billion or 54 per cent against
the SL balances totaling to
P1.321 billion, contrary to
Section 111 of PD No. 1445
and Paragraph 15 of PAS 1,

thus, casting doubt on the
accuracy and reliability of the
account. Moreover, the MCR
- Past Due account has
remained past due and
uncollected for a period
ranging from four months to
more than ten years and
without a single payment after
take out.

a. Analyze and reconcile
the accounts with lapsed
MRI premiums and
immediately apply the
negative balances to future
periods of insurance
coverage or to the loan
balances or refund to the
MBs if loan is already fully
paid; and

b. Skictly adhere to
Corporate Circular No.
CMP-18 and SHFC Office
Order No. 08-0137.

a. Reconcile and adjust
the MCR-Past Due account
by at least:

. 30 per cent by 2018

. 30 per cent by 20'19

. 40 per cent by 2020

d. Foreclose the
delinquent accounts
specially those of more than
ten years and without a
single payment after take
out, after exhausting all
remedies, and consolidate
in the name of SHFC as
prescribed under R.A. 9507.

Status/
Actions
Taken

Partially
implemented

The Finance
and
Comptroller-
ship
Department
is still in the
process of
completing
the working
papers for the
one-time
reconciliation.

Fully
implemented

Partially
implemented

Reiterated in
Observation
No. 3, Part ll
of this
Report.

Reconsidered

Management
only imposes
substitution
process
instead of
foreclosure.



Audit

RecommendationsObservationsReferen ce

Observation
No. 6,
Page 54

18. A High-Density Housing
(l-lDH) project amounting to
P414.O49 million was
approved by the Board and
payment amounting to
P'I00.329 million was made
despite Greater Metro Manila
Area (GMMA) Hazard MaP

result that the lot is

susceptible to moderate
flooding, within the tsunami
inundated area, suscePtible
to moderate liquefaction,
tl]ereby not suitable for
relocation contrary to EO No.

272 and CorPorate Circular
No. 13-026.

19. 19 Double availment
and inconsistencies and
incomplete information were
noted in the
database/masterlist of MBs
who availed under the CMP
and HDH Proiects, contrary to
Section 16 (c) of RA No. 7279
and Sectlon 4 (6) of PD No.

1445 and Corporate Circular
No. HDH 14-001, Series of
1989. Thus, the authenticity
of the intended rightful MBs of
the projects is doubtful, which
maY result in the non-
att;inment of the objectives of
the CMP and HDH Projects

a. Require from member- Fully

applicants the submission of implemented
Certificate of No Availment
of Housing UniUProject from
any Shelter Agencies to
prevent douhle availment of
the housing units: and

lf the result of the soil
testing of the subject
property is favorable,
demand the contractor to

complete the Project.

b. Coordinate with
HUDCC for the
establishment of the
database for all housing
agencies to avoid double
availment.

Statusl
Actions
Taken

Partially
implemented

Management
has already
met with the
Contractor of
the Project
and it was
agreed upon
that the latter
may proceed
with the
construction
only after the
hauling of
garbage to be
done by the
accredited
hauler of the
Valenzuela
City
Government.
The
construction
of perimeter
fence will be
done after the
hauling
services.

Fully
implemented

Observation
No. 10,
Page 66



Audit

RecommendationsReference

Observation
No. 12,
Page 71

Observation
No.16,
Page 80

2016 A,iR

Observation
No.2,
Page 29

Observations

20 No coverage for
Mortgage Redemption
lnsurance (MRl) and Fire and
Allied Peril lnsurance (FAPI)
was provided on the '13

completed and accepted
HDH and 87 CAs of CMP
proJects with a total cost
P1.375 billion, contrary to
HDH Corporate Circular Nos.
16-008, 15-007 and 14-003
and Corporate Circular No.
CN4P-18 and SHFC Office
Order No. 08-0137. Thus,
3,486 MBs may be dePrived
of the benefit of having fully
paid housing loans in case of
death or occurrence of fire
and allied perils and Posing
risk on the non-recovery of
SHFC'S investment into
housing.

21. The Chattel Mortgage
Agreements (CMA) entered
into by and between the
SHFC and the 11 CAs with
approved loans in the
aggregate amount of P4.016
billion are contrary to the
Chattel Mortgage Law (Act
No. 1508), Article 2125 of the
Civil Code of Philippines and
reievanl jurisprudence
decided by the Supreme
Court (SC), thus, the interest
of the SHFC is put to risk
against third party claimants
in case of default by the MBs
and the alienation or disposal
of the housing units.

22. Advances from Member
Borrowers (MBs) amounting
to P216 million as of

a. Expedite the enrollment
of the 2,932 MBs for HDH
and 87 HOAs/CAS MBs
occupying the 100 per cent
completed and accePted
CMP and HDH projects for
both the life and non-life
insurance coverage.

Exercise its right to demand
the execution and the
recording of the CMA with
the RD in which the
mortgage is formalized in
order to protect its interest.

a. Determine individuallY
the property being Paid for,
to identify the MB-payor and

Status/
Actions
Taken

Fully
implemented

Partially
implemented

The
registration of
the Titles
with the
Registry of
Deeds is still
on going.

Partially
implemented
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Reference

record unposted payments
to MBs individual ledgers;
and

b, Adjust Receivable
account and the related
accounts accordingly.

Status/
Actions
Taken

Reiterated
under
Observation
No- 1, Part ll
of this
Report.

Partially
implemented

Reiterated
under
Observation
No. 1, Part ll
of this
Report.

Partially
implemented

Management
has already
transferred
three tltles in
the name of
SHFC.

Reconsidered

December 31, 2016 are not
supported with schedules and
not reconciled with lndividual
Subsidiary Ledger of MBs,
contrary to Section 111 of PD
1445 and Paragraph 15 of
PAS 1, thus, casting doubt on
the reliability and fair
presentation of the account
balance and not beneficial to
MBs.

Observation
No. 4,
Page 34

23. Thirty-one Transfer
Cenificate of Title (TCTS)
under Usufruct Agreemenl of
HDH lot acquisition project
valued at P392.284 million
are still not transfened in the
narne of SHFC, thus, contrary
to Section 6 of Corporate
Circular No. 14-005 series of
20'14. Likewise, TCT on the
lot acquisition through SHFC
Re-Financing Program of an
LGU, amounting to P16.359
miliion was not transferred in

the name of the CA and with
no annotation of SHFC
Modgage while full payment
was already made, contrary
to section 5 0f the IRR 2014-
003, thus, may result to non-
recovery/loss of fund in case
of a third party claimant.

24 The variance of P999.70
miilion between the balances
of Assets held in Trus!
Nl-iMFC and Trust liabilities -
NFIMFC casts doubt on the

Expedite the transfer of the
subject TCTS in the name of
SHFC for Usufruct and in
the name of CA for the
refinanced amount and
annotate the same in the
name of SHFC in
compliance with Corporate
Circular HDH No. 14-005
series of 20'14 and IRR
2014-003

Require the Accounting
Department to review and
reconcile the difference of
P999.70 mlllion between the
Assets held in trust-NHMFC

Assets-held-
in trust-
NHMFC and

Audit

RecommendationsObservations
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CY 2013 AAR

Observation
No. 2,
Page 24



Audit

RecommendationsObservations

Status/
Actions
Taken

Reference

Observation
No.4,
Page 27

Observation
No.6,
Page 30

reliability of the account
balances and contrary to
Section '111 of PD No. 1445
and the principles of fair
presentation of the
Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting.

25. CMP loans amounting to
P1.328 million were granted
twice to 24 same
beneflciaries with take-out
dates from 2007 to 2012,
contrary to Section 6.2.2 of
SHFC Corporate Circular No.
11-017 series of 201'1, thus
constitutes irregular
transaction as defined under
COA Circular 2012-003 (3.1)
dated October 29. 2012.

and prepare the necessary
adjusting entries to correct
the variance noted.

a. lnvestigate and file
appropriate charges against
the officers and employees
responsible/liable or
determined to be liable for
the granting of double CMP
loans to MBs. lmpose
sanctions to the
beneflciaries in accordance
with Section 15.3 of SHFC
Corporate Circular No.
2O1'l-O17 , and

Trust
Liabilities-
NHMFC are
not reciprocal
accounts.

Reconsidered

There is no
database and
pertinent
documents
from where to
check who
among the
officers and
employees
were
responsible in
the
processing of
the loan
applications.

It was only in
CY 2014 that
the Double
Availment
Management
System was
developed.

Partially
implemented

Substitution
of the
confirmed
double
availees is in
process.

Fully
implemented

26. Absence of supporting
documents to substantiate
the Guaranty deposits
payable in the amount of

b. lmmediately demand the
full payment of the second
loans granted to subiect
beneficiaries and rescind
the second lease purchase
agreement for violation of
the terms and conditions of
the contract.

Require the Accounting
Department to submit the
documenls that will
substantiate the guaranty
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Audit

RecommendationsObservations

Status/
Actions
Taken

Referen ce

Observation
No. 16,
Page 99

Observation
No. 17,
page 100

P702,888 received from the
NHMFC in 2005 casts doubt
on the accuracy and validity
of the account balance.

deposits payable of
P702,888 and Prepare
adjusting entries, where
necessary.

B. Abot-Kaya Pabahay Fund

CY 2018 AAR

27. Assets of AKPF
amounting to P260.219
million were not stated at their
fair value for CY 2018 due to
absence of policy on the
assessment, measurement
and recording of impairment
losses as required under PAS
36 and 39, thus, casting
doubt on the reliability and
valuation of the Fund's
assets.

28. Other Non-Current
Assets composed of
Foreclosed and Dacion en
Pago Properties totaling
P180.870 million were
presented in the statement of
Financial Position under the
line item of Other Non-
Gurrent Assets, instead of a
separate line item of
lnvestment Property, contrary
to lnternational Accounting
Standards (lAS) 40, which
may lead to misinterPretation
of flnancial information that is

Formulate policy/guidelines
on the assessment,
measurement and recording
of impairment losses of its
recorded assets as required
under PAS 36 and 39 for
cY 2018.

Properly classify the Other
Non-Current Assets
composed of Foreclosed
and Dacion en Pago
Properties to lnvestment
Property, in compliance with
IAS 40.

Partially
implemented

This will be
addressed,
together with
Observation
No. 2, Part ll
of this Report
when the
Contract of
Services for
the
consultant for
Accounting
matters will
take effect.
The contract
is still with the
Legal Office
of SHFC for
review.

Fully
implemented
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RecommendationsReferen ce

Observation
No. '18,

Page 102

Observation
No. 19,
Page 105

Status/
Actions
TakenObservations

relevant to economic decision
of stakeholders.
29. The House and Building
Structures with appraised
value of P20.789 million
lodged under the Other Non-
Current Assets account of the
AKPF were not enrolled for
Fire and Other Allied Perils
lnsurance (FAPI) coverage
with the Government Service
lnsurance System (GSIS),
contrary to Section 5 of RA
No. 656, Memorandum
Circular No. 634, s. 1973 of
the Office of the President,
and Section 3 of COA
Circular No. 2018-002, thus,
exposing SHFC to the risk of
non-indemnification of
insurable assets in case of
loss arising from fire, theft,
earthquake, storm and other
fortuitous events.

30. A total of 2,205 Transfer
Certificates of Title (TCTS) of
the Foreclosed and Dacion
en Pago Properties booked
under Other Non-Current
Assets are not Yet
consolidated in the name of
SHFC, considering thal
foreclosure proceedings and
settlements in kind had been
undertaken as early as 2002,
or more than 16 years,
causing delay in the disposal
of the property and exposing
the housing structures to
iurther deterioration.

Audit

a. lmmediately enroll the
House and Building
Structures component of
the Foreclosed Properties
and Other Assets for FAPI
Coverage with the GSIS;
and

b. Adhere strictly to the
provisions of RA 656, MC
634 and COA Circular No.
2018-002.

a- Prioritize the transfer of
the TCTS of the Foreclosed
and Dacion en Pago
Properties in the name of
the SHFC; and

b. Facilitate disposal of
the properties to recover the
funds invesled into housing.

Fully
implemented

Fully
implemented

Partially
implemented

Reiterated
with
Modification
in
Observation
No. '17, Part ll
of this Report

Partially
implemented

Reiterated
with
Modification
in
Observation
No. 17, Part ll
of this Report
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Reference

Observation
No. 20,
Page 106

Observations

31. Real Property Taxes
(RPT) amounting lo P4.735
million under the Due to
LGUS account remained
unpaid as at December 31,
2018, despite having been
accrued for one year to over
seven years, contrary to RA
No. 7't60, or the Local
Government Code of 1991.
This may result in the delay of
consolidation of titles in the
name of SHFC as this
constitutes lien on the
property, or SHFC may even
lose the property if the LGU
concerned avails of the
remedies by administrative
action thru levy on real
property or by judicial action.

Audit

a. lmmediately pay
required RPT to avoid:

i. accumulation of
interests and
penalties,

ii. losing the property if
LGU avails of
remedies by
administrative action
thru levy on real
property or by
iudicial action;

iii. delay in the
consolidation of titles
in the name of SHFC
to facilitate disposal;
and

Status/
Actions
Taken

the Fully
implemented

Partially
implemented

The Rivera
Heights
Subdivision
title is already
in the name
of the LGU of
Bataan, but
the
annotation is
still in favor of
SHFC.

For the La
Vista Cruz
Subdivision,
the case is
ongoing.
SHFC has
already filed
counter claim
for the offer
of the
developer to
repurchase
the property.

Recommendations

-r

b. Follow-up status of the
ongoing cases filed for
speedy disposition of the
properties.

143



Status/
Actions
Taken

Reference

Observation
No.7,
page 43

32. There are laPses in

management and
implementation of AKPF
which are contrary to the
TrLrst Agreement entered into
by and between the NHMFC
and the SHFC, resulting in

the iollowing deficiencies that
expose SHFC to the non-
recovery of loan exposure.

A total of 202 TCTs remain
unaccounted and undelivered
by three developers who
availed of the DeveloPmental
Loan Projects in violation of
Section 3.02 of the Loan
Agreement and Trust
Receipts, thus, Posting the
risk that the TCT/s and

Corporation loan exposure
may not be recovered.

Nine developers were able to
avail of a loan amounting to
P134.50 million under AKPF
despite non-comPliance with
schedule of comPletion for
the land development and

housing construction,

a. Undertake immediate
legal action to
secure/recover the financial
exposure on the above-
mentioned projects and
update this office of the
status of action taken
considering the Period that
lapsed;

For the Palao
Case, SHFC
has already
completed
the
presentation
of evidence
and filed a
Formal Offer
of Evidence
and is
awaiting
resolution of
the case.

Partially
implemented

For
Catbalogan
City Homes
and Cristina
Homes 1,

TCTS are
already in the
name of
SHFC.

The transfer
of TCTs in
the name of
SHFC for the
foreclosed
properties of
Villa Haniya,
Christina
Homes ll and
Evergreen
Subdivision
are in
process.

For Juel
Country
Homes,

Audit

RecommendationsObservations
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Audit

RecommendationsReference

cY 2015 AAR

Observation
No.8,
Page 41

Status/
Actions
Taken

contrary to the Section 4
(4.02) of the Memorandum of
Agreement and Section 2.02
of the Loan Agreement. Thus,
a very low percentage of
development and the return
of investment on the loan
exposure, after 19-21 years
remains nil.

A total of 726 TCTs of
acquired properties with loan
an.rounting to P66 million
were not consolidated in the
naME Of thc NHMFC/SHFC
notwithstanding the lapse of
eight to 14 years after the
expiration of one-year
redemption period, thus,
resulting in the delay in the
disposal of asset and
exposing the property to
furiher depreciation or
deterioration.

33. The proceeds of the
developmental loan granted
for the development of a
suirdivlsion totalling to
P30.500 million for the benefit

b. Determine the persons
liable for the deficiencies
noted and file appropriate
administrative action for
failure to perform their
functions.

a. Conduct further
investigation and inquiry on
the report dated February
11, 2005 submitted by the
Joint lnspection Team.

Olympia
Village and
UPLB
ONAPUP.
Dacion en
Pago -
Transfer of
TCTS in the
name of
SHFC on
going.

Partially
implemented

A letter was
sent
to the
Administrator
of the Land
Registration
Authority on
November
22, 2019
requesting
for assistance
in the
investigation/
validation of
the
authenticity of
the titles
offered as
collateral for
the Villa
Alejandria
Subdivision,
AN AKPF
Project.

Partially
implemented

Reiterated
with
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Observations

The existence of third-party
claimants on the Property
mortgaged for a Subdivision
and the foreclosed property of
a Subdivision Projects cast
doubts on the recovery of
capital exposures amounting
to P22 million and P26
million, respectively, and on
the legality of the
rights/ownership of the
property.



Audit

RecommendationsObservations

cY 20 12 AAR

Observation
No. 8,
Page 33

of project beneficiaries was
not properly implemented
contrary to Section 4.02(a) of
the Memorandum of
Agreement (MOA) between
the NHMFC and its
proponent.

34. AKPF develoPmental
loans totaling P97.719 million
remained non-Performing
from 2 years to 18 Years but
no foreclosure action was
initiated or more aggressive
collection measures adopted
that could affect the recovery
of corporate exposure.

lnitiate foreclosure action or
adopt more aggressive
collection measu[es, if

warranted, on long
outstanding receivables in

order to quickly recover
corporate exposure. Also,
establish guidelines on the
disposition of non-
performing assets to
prevent accumulation
thereof.

Status/
Actions
Taken

Modification
in
Observation
No. 32 b, (CY
2016), Part lll
of this Report

Partially
implemented

Reiterated
with
Modification
in
Observation
No. 32a, (CY
2016), Part lll
of this Report
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ABOT-KAYA PABAI.IAY FUND
SOCIAL HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION (as Trustee)

AMORTIZATION SUPPORT ANO DEVELOPMENTAL FINANCING COMPONENTS
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

* "'iffEffiHli3::;* ^"

Note 20't9 2018

ASSETS

4
5

315,538,020
4,770,478

310,755,953
10 676 632

320 408,498 321,432,585

Non-current assets
Receivables
Property and equipment
lnvestment property

5
f)

7 189, 838,'t67

68,493,490
179,310

180,869,876
257,432,728 249,542,676

TOTAL ASSETS 577,841,226 570,975,261

LIABIL]TIES AI{D FUND BALANCE

Liabilities
lnter-agency payables

Other current liabilities
8
9

24,531 ,',t12 19,867 ,?77
750 009 234 1071

TOTAL LIABILITIES 25,28',t,121 2't ,101 ,384

Fund balance 10 552,560,105 549 873,877
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 577,841,226 570,975,261

The Notes on pages 151 to 165 form part of these financial statements
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Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables

67,441,124
153,437



ABOT-KAYA PABAHAY FUND
SOCIAL HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION (as Trustee)

AMORTIZA'IION SUPPORT AND DEVELOPME'{TAL FINANCING COMPONENTS
STATEIIENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
(ln Philippine Peso)

2019 201A

INCOME
Service and business income 11 15,285,339 9,923,915

't5,285,339 9,923,915

EXPENSES
Personnel services

Maintenanc,e and other operating epenses
Financial expenses
Non-cash expenses

12

13
14

15

3,182167
9,886,€2

178,324
25,473

7,478,727
5,354,111

17,732
28,474

13,272,796 12,879,048

tNcoM E/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX
Other non-operating income 16

2,012,543
10,897

(2,9s5,133)

16,468
2,O23,N (2,938,665)

NET INCOME/ r.oss)

The Notes on pages 151 to 165 form part of these financid statements.
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Note

2.023.40 (2.938.665)



ABOT-KAYA PABAHAY FUND
SOCIAL HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION (as Trustee)

AMORTIZAT'ON SUPPORT AND DEVELOPMENTAL FINANCING COMPONENTS
STATETIENTS OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
For the Years Ended December31,2019 and 2018

(ln Philippine Peso)

Note Total

552,109,614
(2,938,66s)

702,928

Balance at December 31, m19 552 105

149

Balance a6 at January 1,2018
Net loss
Retained eamings
Balance at December 3

Balance as at Jan@ry 1,2019 U9,873,877
Net income 2,O23,44O
Retained eamings 662,788

The Notes on pages 151 to 165 form part of these ,inancial statements.



ABOT-KAYA PABAHAY FUND
SOCIAL HOUSTNG FTNANCE CORPORATTON (as Trustee)

AMORTIZATION SUPPORT AND DEVELOPMENTAL FINANCING COMPONENTS
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 20i8
(tn phitippine peso)

Note 20,19

Acquisition of Property, plant and equipment
0

0

0

0
Net cash provided by investin g activities 0

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 4,482,067
3't0,755,953

8,732,830
302,O23,123Cash and cash eouivalents at beginning of the year

CASH A:.{D CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 4 315,638,020 310,755,953

150

-

2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
lnstallment sales receivable, current 20,13i,62S ,11,6g4,779

lnterest income received 2,123,1i1 2,077,259
Refund of cash advance SZO,TOO 301,563
Buyer for emittance to BIR i4SA11 O
Other receipts 600 O
Payment of realty tax (16,600,494) (4,251,2211
Payment of cash advance (1,493,942) {765,440)
Payment of operating expenses (394,359) (210,9,11|,

layment of foreclosure expenses O (103,793)
Net casl provided by operating activities 4,gB2,O6i q732.ef,O

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capitalized cost

0

The Notes on pages '151 to 165 form part of these financial statements.



ABOT.KAYA PABAHAY FUND
SOCIAL HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION (as Trustee)

AMORTIZATION SUPPORT AND DEVELOPMENTAL FINANCING COMPONENTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
(Amounts in Philippine Peso)

,I. GENERALIT,,iFORMATION

The AbolKaya Pabahay Fund (AKPF) was created under Republic Act (RA) No. 6846 under
the trusteeship of the National Home Mortgage Finance Corporation (NHMFC) and was
amended under RA No. 7835. The Fund shall be used exclusively for enhancing the
affordability of low-cost housing by low income families thru the amortization support
component and by providing developmental financing for low-cost housing projects.

ln October 2005, the Amortization Support and Developmental Financing (ASDFC)
component of AKPF was transferred to the Social Housing Finance Corporation (SHFC), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the NHMFC created by virtue of Executive Order (EO) No. 272
which was signed and approved by the President ofthe Republic ofthe Philippines on January
20,7004.

2.7 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

a. Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Repofting Standards

The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in accordance with
the Philippine Financial Reporting Slandards (PFRS).

The financial statements have been prepared using the measurement bases
specifled by PFRS for each type of asset, liability, income and expense.

D. Presentation of Financial Statements

The financial statements are presented in accordance with Philippine
Accounting Standards (PAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statemenfs. The Fund
presents all items of income and expenses in a single statement of
comprehensive income.

c. Functional and Presentation Currency

These flnancial statements are presented in Philippine peso, the Fund's
functional and presentation currency.

15't

2. SIGNiFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES

The recording of the Fund's financial transactions is centralized in the Finance and
Controllership Department. The Fund submits a monthly summary of transactions duly
reviewed, certifled and approved by its responsible officers to the Finance and Controllership
Department forjournal entry voucher preparation and recording in the books of accounts.



2.2 Adootion of New and Amended PFRS

a. Effective in 2019 that are relevant to the AKPF:

(, PFRS 9 (Amendment), Financial lnstruments - Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation. The amendment clarifies that prepayment
features with negative compensation aftached to financial instruments may
still qualify under the Solely Payments of Principal and lnterest (SPPI) test.
As such, the financial assets containing prepayment features with negative
compensalion may still be classified at amortized cost or at Fair Value with
changes Through Other Comprehensive lncome (FVTOCI).

The following new PFRS, amendments and annual improvements to existing
standards are mandatorily effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019 but are not relevant to the AKPF'S financial statements:

(, PFRS 16, Leases (new) -Tlrc new standard will eventually replace PAS
17, Leases.

For lessees, it requires to account for leases "on-balance sheet" by
recognizing a 'right of use' asset and a lease liability. The lease liability is

initially measured as the present value of future lease payments. For this
purpose, lease payments include fixed, non-cancellable paymenls for
lease elements, amounts due under residual value guarantees, certain
types of contingent payments and amounts due during optional periods to
tl're extent that extension is reasonably certain. ln subsequent periods' the
"righfof-use" asset is accounted for similar to a purchased asset subiect
to depreciation or amortization. The lease liability is accounted for similar
to a financial llability which is amortized using the effective interest method-
However, the new standard provides important reliefs or exemptions for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets. lf these exemptions are
used, the accounting is similar to operating lease accounting under PAS
17 where lease payments are recognized as expenses on a straight-line
basis over the lease term or another systematic basis (if more
representative of the pattern of the lessee's benefit).

For lessors, Iease accounting is similar to PAS 17's. ln particular, the
distinction between finance and operating leases is retained. The
definitions of each type of lease, and the supporting indicators of a finance
lease, are substantially the same as PAS 17's. The basic accounting
mechanics are also similar, but with some different or more explicit

152

b. Effective in 2019 that are not relevant to the AKPF:

(i, PAS 19 (Amendments) , Employee Benefits - clarification on amendments,
curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan, the current service cost
and net interest for the remainder of the annual reporting period are
calculated using updated actuarial assumptions - i.e. consistent with the
calculation of a gain or loss on the plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement.



guidance in few areas. These include variable payments, sub-leases,
lease modifications, the treatment of initial direct costs and lessor
disclosures.

(i, IFRIC 23, IJncertain over lncome Tax Treatments. The interpretation
provides clarification on the determination of taxable profit, tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and tax rates when there is

uncertainty over income tax treatments. The core principle of the
interpretation requires the Company to consider the probability of the tax
treatment being accepted by the taxation authority. When it is probable
that the tax treatment will be accepted, the determination of the taxable
profit, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and tax rates shall
be on the basis of the accepted tax treatment. Otherwise, the Company
has to use the most Iikely amount orthe expected value, depending on lhe
surrounding circumstances, in determining the tax accounts identifled
immediately above.

c. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2020 and
thereafLer:

(r,, PAS 28, lnvestment in Associates (Amendments) - Clarification on Fatr
Value through Profit or Loss Classiflcation (effective from January 1,

2018). The amendments clarify that the option for venture capital
organization, mutual funds and other similar entities to elect the fair value
through profit or loss classification in measuring investments in associates
and joint ventures shalt be made at initial recognition, separately for each
associate or joint venture.

f, PFRS 3 (Amendments), Eus,ness Combinations and PFRS 11

(Amendments), Joint Arrangements - Remeasurement of Previously Held
lnterests in a Joint Operation. The amendments clarify that previously held
interest in a joint operation shall be remeasured when the Company obtains
control of the business. On the other hand, previously held interests in a
joint operation shall not be remeasured when the Company obtains joint

control of the business.

(ii) PAS 12 (Amendments), lncome taxes - Tax Consequences of Dividends.

The amendments clarify that all income tax consequence of dividend
payments should be recognized in profit or loss.

(iii) PAs 23 (Amendments), Borrowing costs - Eligibility for Capitalization. fhe
amendments clarlfy that any specific borrowing which remains outstanding
after the related qualifying asset is ready for its intended purpose, such
borrowing will then form part of the entity's general borrowings when
calculating the capitalization rate for capitalization purposes.

fiv.) PFRS 17 lnsurance Contracts supersedes PFRS 4 lnsurance conlracts as
at January 1, 2021. fhe new standard requires insurance liabilities to be
measured at a current fulfillment value and provides a more uniform
measurement and presentation approach for all insurance contracts. These

5f::xr



2.3 Financial Assets

A financial asset is any asset that is

a. Cash;

b. An equity instrument of another agency;

c. A contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset;

d. A contractual right to exchange financial assets or liabilities with another entity
on potentially favorable terms; or

e. A contract that will or may be settled in the Corporation's own equity instruments
and is a non{erivative for which the Corporation is or may be obliged to receive
a variable number of the Corporation's own equity instrument; a derivative that
will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Corporation's own equity
instruments. For this purpose, the Corporation's own equity instruments do not
include puttable financial instruments classified as equity instruments.

Recog n ition and Me asurement

Financial assets are recognized in the Financial Position when, and only when,
the Corporation becomes a party to the contractual provisions ofthe instrument.
At initial recognition, the Corporation measutes its flnancial assels at fair value
plus, in the case of financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. After initial recognition, the Corporation measures its financial assets at
fair value or amortized cost in accordance with PFRS rules on financial
instrurnents.

Classification

A more detailed description of the categories of flnancial assets relevant to the
authority are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at
cost. Cash includes cash on hand and in bank. Cash equivalents are short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to cash and or at a very
near maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of
changes in interest rates. Cash is measured at face value.
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requirements are designed to achieve the goal of a consistent, principle-
based accounting for insurance contracts.

Under the prevailing circumstances, the adoption of the foregoing new ano
amended PFRSS is not expected to have any material effect on the financial
statements of the Fund.
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Loans and receivables are none derivative financial assets with flxed or
delerminable payments and maturities lhat are not quoted in an active market.
They are not entered into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale
and are not designated as or financial assets at Fair Value Through Other
Comprehensive lncome (FVOCI) orfinancial assets at Fair Value Through Profit
and Loss (FVPL).

Subsequent to initial measurement, loans and receivables are calTied at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment in

value, if any. Any interest earned on loans and receivables shall be recognized
as part of "lnterest income" in the Statement of lncome and Expenses.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on

acquisition and fees that are integral part of the effectave interest rate. The
periodic amortization is also included as part of interest income. Gains or losses
are recognized in profit or loss when loans and receivables are derecognized
or impaired, as well as through the amortization process.

Allowance for impairment is maintained at a level considered adequate for
potentially uncollectible receivables. The level of allowance is based on

historical collection, current economic trends, and changes in the customer
payment terms, age status of receivables and other factors that may affect
collectability. The allowance is established by charges to income in the form of
provision of doubtful accounts (now referred to as impairment)

2.4 Propertv and EqutDment

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use Expenditures for
additions and major improvements are capitalized; expenditures for repairs and

maintenance are charged to expense as incurred.

Depreciatlon is computed using the straightiine method over the estimated useful

lives of the assets as follows:

Years

Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment

'10

10

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts untilthey are no longer in use

and no further charge for dePreciation is made in respect to those assets.

2-5 Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are contractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial
asset or to exchange financial instruments with another agency on potentially

unfavorable terms. Financial liabilities are recognized when the Corporation
becomes a parly to the contractual terms of the instrument. All interest related
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charges are recognized as an expense in profit or loss under the caption Financial
Expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive lncome_

Trade and other payables, due to related parties and other non-current liabilities
are recognized initially at their fair values and subsequently measured at amortized
cost, using effective interest method for maturities beyond one year, less settlement
payments.

Financial Iiabilities are classified as current liabilities if payment is due to be seftled
within one year or less after the end of the repo(ing period (or in the normal
operating cycle ofthe business, if longe0, oTAKPF does not have an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the end of the
reporting period. Otherwise, these are presented as non-current liabilities.

Revenue comprises revenue from rendering of services measured by reference to
the fair value of consideration received or receivable by AKPF for services
rendered.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that the revenue can be measured reliablyi it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to AKPF; and the costs incurred
or to be incured can be measured reliably. ln effect, the recognition of an income
occurs sirnultaneously with the recognition of a decrease in liabilities or an increase
in assets. ln addition, interest income on special savings is accrued on a time
proportion basis, by reference to the principal amount outstanding and at the
interest rates applicable.

Cost and expenses are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive lncome
vr'hen a ciecrease in future economic benefits related to a decrease in an asset or
an increase in a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably. This means, in
effect, that recognition of expenses occurs simultaneously with the recognition of
an increase in liabilities or a decrease in assets.

When economic benefits are expected to arise over several accounting periods and
the assccjation with income can only be indirectly determined, expenses are
recognized in the income statement on the basis of rational allocation procedures.
This is often necessary in recognizing the expenses associated with the using up
of assets. These allocation procedures are intended to recognize expenses in the
accounting periods in which the accounting benefits associated with these items
are consumed.

An expense is recognized immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive lncome
!vhen expenditure produces no future economic benefits or when future economic
benefits do not qualify or cease to qualify for recognition in the Statement of
Financial Position as an asset.
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Financial liabilities are derecognized from the Statement of Financial Position only
when the obligations are extinguished either through discharge, cancellation or
expiration. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid or payable is recognized in profit or loss.

2.6 Revenue and Expense Recoqnition



Cost and expenses are also recognized upon utilization of services or at the date
they are incurred. All costs are reported in the Statement of Comprehensive lncome
on an accrual basis.

2.8 Events After the End ofthe Re Period

Any post year-end event that provides additional information about AKpF's flnancial
position at the end of the reporting period (adjusting event) is reflected in the
iinancial statements. Poslyear-end events that are not adJusting events, if any, are
disclosed when material to the financial statements

3. SIGNiFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of AKPF's financial statements in accordance with pFRS requires
management to make judgments and estimates that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and related notes. Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may
ultimately differ from these estimates.

a Recognition of Provisions and Contingencies

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and
contingencles.

b. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

2. Z Emplovee Benefits

i. lmpairment of Trade and Other Receivables

An aCequate amounl of allowance for impairment is provided for specific and
groups of accounts, where objective evidence of impairment exists. AKPF

The employees of the AKPF are members of the Social Security System (SSS)
which provides life and retirement insurance coverage.

The Corporation recognizes the undiscounted amount of short-term employee
benefits, like salaries, wages, bonuses, allowance, etc., as expense unless
capitalized, and as a liability after deducting the amount paid.

The Corporation recognizes expenses for accumulating earned leaves. Non-
accumulating compensated absences, like special leave privileges, are not
recognized.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next reporting period:
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evaluates the amount of allowance for impairment based on available facts and
circumstances affecting the collectability of the accounts, including, but not
Iimited to, the length of AKPF's relationship with the customers, the customers'
current credit status, the average age of accounts, collection experience and
historical loss experience.

ii. Estimaiion of Useful Lives of Propefty and Equipment

AKPF estimates the useful lives of property and equipment and intangible assets
based on the period over which the assels are expected to be available for use.
The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets are reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ from
previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial
obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets.

The carrying amounts of property and equipment, and intangible assets are
analyzed in Note 6. Based on management's assessment as at December 31,
2019 and 2018, there is no change in estimated useful lives of those assets
during those years. Actual results, however, may vary due to changes in

estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned above.

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

This account consists of:

2019 2018

lnvestment in treasury bills - local
Cash in bank - LBP '1

Cash in bank - LBP 2

313,924,841
1,488,762

224,417

302,877,791
3,059,233
4,8'18,929

315 638 020 310 oa'l

lnvestment in treasury bitls - local represents investment in time deposits classified as highly
liquid inveslments maturing from 60 days up to 91 days or not more than three months from
date of placements.

5. RECEIVABLES

This account consists of:

2019 2018

Current:
lnterest receivable
Sales conlract receivable - current

3,718,1',|2
1,052,366

6,1 54,003
4,522,629

10,676,632

(Forward)

4,770,478
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2018
Non-current:
Loan receivable - others
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

89,92't,499
22,440,375

89,921,499
22,44O,375

67,441,124 67 ,441 ,124
Sales contract receivable - long-term 0 1,0s2,366

67,441,124 68,493,490

5.1 InterestReceivable

5.2 Sales Contract Receivable

This account represents the amortization due on the sale of acquired assets which
are due after one year.

5.3 Loans Receivable - Others

This account pertains to accounts previously classified as Past Due Receivable-
Developmental Loans and ltems-in-Litigation.

a. Rivera Heights Subdivision

A Technical Working Group (TWG) for the renegotiation with the province of
Bataan for the repurchase of Rivera Heights Subdivision was constituted per
Office Order No. 18-0852.

The TWG convened last August 23, 2018 to discuss some possible actions for
the repurchase of Rivera Heights Subdivision for presentation to Management
for approval. However, as at December 31, 2018, there was still no update
regarding the matter.

The AKPF was tasked by the TWG to secure a copy of the new title already in
the name of Province of Bataan and to verify back titles with annotation of mode
of transfer.On December 6, 2019, AKPF was able to secure a photocopy of 1

new litle in the name of the Province of Bataan. The certified true copy of this
title and back titles are still for scanning. After this, the TWG will convene again.
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This account consists of accrued interest from lnvestment in Treasury Bills. The
investment in treasury bills earns interest at the prevailing rates of 2.53 per cent to
5.47 per cent.

This was endorsed to Legal Department on June 24, 2007 due to the unreturned
282 titles. lt was again endorsed to Legal Department for the foreclosure by the
Local Governmient Unit (LGU) of Bataan on November 29,2007 due to non-
payment of realty taxes. However, the negotiation did not push through
because of the claim of the Authority for Freeport Area of Bataan (AFAB) on the
property by virtue of Proclamation No.740 series of 1970 and amended by
Prociamation No. 900 series of '1971. An initial meeting was held on September
9, 2016 to discuss the issue.



SHFC has already completed its presentation of evidence and filed a Formal
Offer of Evidence as manifested during the compliance hearing on May 27,
2019.

The case was submitted for resolution. The compliance hearing was set on
December 9, 2019.

On December 9, 20'19, Plaintiff requested for extension to file its memoranda,
hence, compliance hearing was reset on January 27, 2020.

6. PROP:RTY AI'ID EQUIPMENT

gross carrying amounts and accumulated depreciation of property and equipment at the
ing and end of 2019 and 2018 are shown below

Office
Equipment

lnformation and
Communication

Technology

Furniture and
Fixtures

Leased Assets
lmprovement,

Building
Total

461,376 34,815 99,235 193,243 788,669
Cost

January 1 , 2019

December 31, 2019 461,376
(Forward)

34,815 99,235 193,243 788,669
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b. Villa Alejandrea Subdivision

This was endorsed to Legal Department due to missing owner's copy of
Transfer Certificate of Title (TCT) no. T-27415O as mortgaged collateral with a
total area of 120,000. However, only the e-copy oflhe said title (T-274150) is in
SHFC's possession.

Based on the site inspection/verification report dated February 11, 2005
undertaken by NHMFC, it was revealed that G-Carmel surrendered to NHMFC
as security for the loan a title which was not the actual property that was
developed and improved out of the developmental loan acquired from NHMFC.

The representative of G-Carmel offered to substitute the collateral property with
the property actually developed out of the AKPF loan. The property was
allegedly covered by TCT No. T-284306 with an area of 97,545 square meters
under his name.

On November 20, 2019, SHFC wrote to Land Registration Authority (LRA)
requesting for investigation of lost collateral title. This letter was already
fonrrrarded to the investigating unit ofthe LRA on December 16, 2019.

c. Palao Country Homes

This was endorsed to Legal Department for foreclosure on March 30, 2015 and
still awaiting for the resolution of the case filed by GNP Construction against
SHFC before the Regional Trial Court (RTC) of Quezon City assailing SHFC'S
decision of disapproval of requested waiver of interest prior to filing of
foreclosure.



lnformation and
Communication

Technology

Furniture and
Fixtures

Leased Assets
lmprovement,

Building
Total

Accumulated
Depreciation

January 01, 2019
Depreciation

(447,161)
(3,543)

(31,333)

0

(67,094)

(4,e38)
(63,771)

(17,392)
(609,359)

(25,873)
December 31, 20'19 (450,704\ (31,333) (72,032\ (81,163) (635,232)
Net Book Value
December 31, 2019 10,672 3,4A2 27,203 112,080 153,437

Cost

January 1, 2018 461,376 34, B 15 99,235 193,243 788,669
December31,2018 461.376 34,815 99,235 193,243 788,669

Accumulated
Depreciation

January 1, 2018

Adjustments
Depreciation

(443,618)

0

(3,543)

(31,521)

188

0

(59,363)

0

(7,73't)

(46,379)

0

(17,392)

(580,881)

188

(28,666)
December 31, 201 B 1447 ,161) (31,333) (67,094) (63,771') (609,359)
Net Book Value
December 31, 2018 14,2't5 3,482 32,141 '129,472 179,310

2019 2018
lnvestment property 189,838,157 180,869,876

lnvestment Property pertains to eight foreclosed properties namely: La Vista Cruz
Subdivision, Villa Haniya Subdivision, Evergreen Subdivision, Cristina Homes 1, Cristina
Homes 2, Villa Rita Subdivision, Catbalogan City Homes and plainville Homes Subdivision.

This also consist of properties acquired from the setflement of accounts through Dacion en
Pago for five projects namely: Juel Country Homes, UpLB Subdivjsion, Malinoville
Subdivision, Villa Felipe Heights Subdivision and Otympia Vi age.

8. INTER-AGENCY PAYABLES

This account consists of:

20 t9 2018
19,527,643
5,003,469

'15,132,593

4,734,684
24,531,112
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19,867,277

Office
Equipment

7. INVESTMEI,.iT PROPERTY

Due to cther funds
Due to LGUS



8.7 Due to Other Funds

8.2 Due to LGUS

9. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

This account represents personal services and other administrative expenses
advanced by SHFC.

This account represents unpaid real property taxes due on the Rivera Heights
Subdivision.

2019
Other payables 750,009 1,234,107

Other payables represent taxes withheld from interest income on lnvestment in Treasury Bills
- Local with Land Bank of the Philippines.

10. FUND BALANCE

2019 2018
Fund balance, beginning
Net income/(loss)
Retained earnings

549,873,877
2,023,440

662,788

552,109,6'14
(2,938,665)

702,928
Fund balance, end 552,560,105 549,873,877

Retained earnings account comprises of the prior year's adjustments (Taxes, Duties and
Licenses) due to over accrual.

11. SERVICE AND BUSINESS INGOME

20't9 2018
lnteresl income - investments
lnterest income - sales contract receivable
lnterest income - developmental loan
Fines and penalties - business income

14,954,250
331,089

0
0

8,374,908
913,915
559,683
75,409

't5 285 339 9,923,915
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,I2. PERSONAL SERVICES

This account consists of:

2019 2018
Salaries and wages - regular 1,499,190 3,445,159

155,210
72,O31
65,000
57,356
15,000
12,000

728,20',1
1,104,798 2,648,729

Personnel benefit contributions
Providenvwelfare fund contributions
Retirement and life insurance premiums
PhilHealth contributions
Pag-lBlG contributions
Empioyees compensation insurance premiums

280,907
44,494
16,519

3,300
870

84,866
580,301

33,90s
7 ,200
2,160

346,090 708 432

Other personnel benefits
Terminal leave benefits
Birthday gift

226,089
6,000

658,407
18,000

232,089 676,407
3,182,167 7,478,727

13. MAINTENANCE AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

This account consists of:

2019 2018

Taxes, insurance premiums and other fees
Taxes, duties and licenses
Fidelity bond premiums
lnsurance expense

7,548,192
3,000

8',t,145

3,665,458
3,000

3,668,458
(Forward)
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Other compensation
Year-end bonus
Transportation allowance
Representation allowance
Personnel economic relief allowance
Cash gift
Clothing/uniform allowance
Other bonuses and allowances

288,193
176,820
162,000
143,908
30,000
36,000

1,811,808

7,632,337



2019
General services

Other general services
Security services
Janitorial services

6'r 9,876
96,026
16,430

470,836
96,026
16,430

732,332 583,292

Traveling expense
Travelinq expenses - local 318,300 206,099

318 300 206,099

Utility expenses
Electricity expenses
Water expenses

92,128
15,644

93,194
12,916

107,772 106 110

Supplies and materials expenses
Office supplies expenses
Fuel, oil and lubricanls expenses

30,669
35,152
1,026

31 ,218
37 ,620

'191Other s lies and materials expenses
66 447 69.029

Communication expenses
Telephone expenses 59,976 61,956

59,976 61,956

Other maintenance and operating expenses
Rentllease expenses
Representation expenses
Prjnting and publication expenses
Doclrmentary slamps expenses

233,325 233,325
1,885
8,753

18,170
397,034

12,631
21,680

701,232Other maintenance and operating expenses
968,868 AAO to/

9,886,432 5,354,1 1 1

14. FINANCIAL EXPENSES

This account consists of:

2019 2018
Management supervision/trusteeship fees
Bank charges

176,424
1,900

16,182
1,550

17 ,732178,324
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2019 2018
Depreciation

Depreciation - machinery and equipment
Depreciation - leased assets improvements

3,543
17,392
4,938

3,35s
17 ,392

7 ,731Depreciation - furniture , fixtures and books
25,873 28,478

16. OTHER NON-OPERATING INCOME

This account consists of interest income from bank deposits amounting to P10,897 and
P16,468 for the years 2019 and 2018, respectively.

17. COL'IPLIANCE WITH TAX LAWS

SuDDldmentarv lnformation Required Under Revenue Requlatio ns (RR) No. 15-2010

On November 25, 2010, the BIR issued RR No. 15-2010 amending certain provisions of RR
No. 21-2002, as amended and implementing Section 6 (H) of the Tax Code of 1997 which
authorize the Commissioner of lnternal Revenue to prescribe additional procedural and/or
documentary requirements in connection with the preparation and submission of financial
statements accompanying the tax returns. These regulations require that additional
disclosures in the notes to financial statements shall be made to include information on taxes
and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable year.

ln compliance with the requirements set forth in RR No. 15-2010, hereunder are the
information on taxes, licenses and fees paid or accrued during the taxable year.

2019 2018
Taxes and licenses

Final tax paid on income
Real property tax
Fidelity bond premium

2,973,241
4,574,911

3,000

2,149,899
1 ,515,559

3,000
7 551 192 668 458
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15. NON.CASH EXPENSES

This account consists of:
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ANNEX A

ENCROACHED AREA
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Area subject for rip rapping (beside the river)


